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1   Councillor Preface 

Introduction to the 2015/16 Statement of Accounts by Councillor Martyn Rawlinson, 
Cabinet Member for Resources. 
 
Thank you for taking the time to read Preston City Council's Statement of Accounts for 2015/16. 
The accounts have, once again, been produced accurately and on time, in line with International 
Financial Reporting Standards. 
 
Preston City Council's accounts have been produced against a backdrop of rapidly reducing 
resources from Central Government. The Council has completed two major savings programmes 
since 2010 and are embarking on a new one following the Local Government Finance Settlement 
in December 2015; Preston's Revenue Support Grant from Government will be phased out by 
2020/21 and the future distribution of National Non-Domestic Rates (Business Rates) remains 
unknown. Another major Council income stream, the New Homes Bonus, could also be reduced. 
The difficulties that these policies create extend to the provision of even basic statutory Council 
functions. 
 
Despite the Government's 'Austerity' policy, Preston City Council has maintained its 
professionalism and efficiency in its financial management and governance procedures. Both the 
Council's internal and external auditors remain satisfied that we are managing Council Tax payers 
resources effectively while recognising the future risks in our financial position. Enforced staff and 
departmental restructures have been managed smoothly, with careful planning, in order to 
maintain the delivery of our statutory obligations. Preston Council has an embedded culture of 
financial prudence among its staff and officers. 
 
We have also recognised that our non-statutory functions need to change. Our Fairness policies 
revolve around challenging traditional economic models to maximise the effects of local resources 
on the lives of those in most need of help. 
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2   City Treasurer’s Narrative Report (Section 151 Officer) 

1. Introduction 
 
The purpose of this narrative report is to provide information about Preston, including keys issues 
affecting the Council and its accounts. It also provides a summary of the financial position as at 
31st March 2016 and adopts the following structure: 
 

• An Introduction to Preston; 
• Information about the Council; 
• The Council’s Non-Financial Performance in 2015/16; 
• Financial Performance of the Council in 2015/16; 
• Economic Climate and Financial Outlook for the Future; 
• Principal Risks and Uncertainties affecting the Council; 
• Explanation of Financial Statements; and 
• Conclusion. 

 
2.  An Introduction to Preston 
 

Preston 
is a city in Lancashire, situated in the heart of the 

Preston is a City in Lancashire, situated in the 
heart of the North West of England, on the north 
bank of the River Ribble. The southern section of 
Preston is mostly urbanised and is one of the 
most networked Cities in the country, whilst 
north Preston is quite rural.  

Preston is one of twelve lower tier district 
Councils in the county of Lancashire and shares 
borders with Wyre, Fylde, South Ribble and 
Ribble Valley.

Population 
 
Preston has a population of around 140,500. By 2037 the population of Preston is projected to 
increase to 145,500, a percentage change of 3.6% from 2012 estimates. Greater population 
increases are a sign of affluence as people move to where there are jobs, good schools and a good 
environment. 
 
Preston’s population is relatively young with a higher than average percentage of under 25s and 
fewer elderly people. The presence of the large university, UCLan, in central Preston has a strong 
impact on the age distribution in the area. Preston also has a smaller proportion of older people 
(65+) compared with the national average. 
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Preston is a diverse city, the ethnic makeup based on the 2011 census is shown in the comparative 
graphs below:-  

          
 
 
3. Information about the Council  
 
Preston City Council is a district council, working alongside Lancashire County Council as part of a 
two-tier local government system. 
 
We have 22 wards and 57 elected Councillors who are responsible for taking decisions about the 
future of Preston and important public services such as planning, housing, leisure and culture, and 
rubbish and recycling. 
 
As well as representing the public, Councillors also represent political parties. After the local 
election on 7th May 2015 the political make-up of the Council was: 
 

Political Make-up 
32  Labour Councillors 
19 Conservative Councillors 
  5 Liberal Democrat Councillors 
  1 Independent Councillor 
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The Council spends more than £85 million a year providing a range of public services from pest 
control to planning. It is one of the largest employers in the area with 996 employees. 
 
During an average year, the Council: 
 

Collects rubbish from approx 60,500 households every week; 
Regularly inspects more than 1,350 food premises in the area; 
Cleans all Preston's streets, collecting 16,000 tonnes of litter each year; 
Recycles and composts 16,000 tonnes of rubbish; 
Maintains more than 550 hectares of parks and open spaces; 
Runs two leisure centres, with almost one million people using the facilities every year; and 
Has a wide collection of artwork and local historical treasures on display at the Harris Museum 
and Art Gallery. 

 
 
Environmental 
 
Preston City Council, along with the 14 District Councils (including the two Unitaries) within 
Lancashire are striving to meet the Government’s stringent targets for reducing emissions by 34% 
by 2020 and a further reduction of 80% by the year 2050 (based on 1990 levels). 
 
Preston City Council has reduced its Green House Gas Emission since 2008 by around 60%.  This has 
been achieved by investing in energy saving measures including the installation of new energy 
efficient heating boilers, replacing an existing gas boiler for a bio-mass boiler, the introduction of 
energy efficient LED lighting, the installation of voltage optimisation equipment and staff 
awareness training.  
 
Since 2011/12 we have increased the tonnages of recycled waste from 16,542 tonnes to 19,912, 
this represents an increase in the recycling rate of 3.31%, raising it from 34.7% to 38.01%. This is 
against a backdrop nationally of stagnating recycling rates. Over the same timeframe we have also 
reduced the size of the vehicle fleet through rationalisation of the workforce. In turn this has 
allowed us to reduce our waste fleet size, from 29 to 25 vehicles, and mileage, from 280,901 to 
264,413, and therefore also reduce our CO² emissions. 
 
 
4.  The Council’s Non- Financial Performance in 2015/16 
 
During 2015/16 the Council has worked hard implementing the second year of the savings plan 
proposals.  Revenue expenditure has reduced in line with savings targets, and a number of savings 
have been achieved ahead of target.  At the same time, significant progress has been made on a 
number of projects which are improving the City for residents, visitors and businesses alike.  
Preston continues to be a growing vibrant City. 
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There have been a number of key issues which have faced the Council during 2015/16: 
 
Key Issues that influenced the Council and its Financial Position in 2015/16: 

• the Government’s austerity measures resulting in reduced Government funding; 
• the Welfare Reform Act;  
• Preston, South Ribble and Lancashire City Deal;   
• Major plans for City Centre Development;  
• three years savings plan to implement £3.6m of ongoing savings by 2017/18; and 
• Working towards the next major savings plan. 

 
 
Review of our Plan for 2015/16 
 
Our overall ambition is that Preston is a growing vibrant City.  We try to make all our efforts as a 
Council count towards achieving this by focusing on three priority areas:- 
• Your Council 
• Your City 
• Fairness for You 

 

 
 
During 2015/16 the Council has been working on a number of projects or areas of activity that are 
key to the achievement of our priorities, and which are having a significant impact across the City 
including continuing with the plans for the City Centre Development. The following gives a 
summary of progress during 2015/16 and the next steps.  
 
 
 
 

9



How we Performed in 2015/16 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Your Council 
• How we performed.. 
• Replaced our 

traditional phone 
system with Microsoft 
Lync, a fully Internet 
Protocol (IP) system 

• Fully implemented 
Individual Registration 
(IER) by December 
2015 
 

• What's next   
• continuing to progress 

a number of projects to 
make services 
accessible 24 hours a 
day e.g. 
• e-billing for Council 

Tax 
• e-booking for leisure 

• Implementation of 
Interactive Voice 
Recognition software 
(IVR) for Council Tax 
and NNDR services 

• Replacement of the 
current Planning IT 
system 

Your City 
How we performed 
• City Centre Plan  - 

examination in Public  
November 2015 

• City Centre 
Development - 
significant progress on  
Revitalised Market 
/New Cinema & 
Restaurant 
Development schemes 

•  Preston, South Ribble 
and Lancashire City 
Deal - significant 
progress 

•  Moor Park 
Restoration   - 
successful Heritage 
Lottery Funding £2.3m 

• Active in furthering the 
work of the Key Cities 
Group. 
 

• What's next 
• City Centre Plan  - the 

Inspectors report is 
expected in Summer 
2016 prior to adoption 
later this year 

• Continuing with the 
City Centre 
Development  plans 

• Working towards 
completion of the 
Winckley Square 
Gardens project & 
Townscape Heritage 
Initiative scheme 

Fairness for You 
• How we performed 
• Formulated  and 

addressed an action  
plan in response to the 
Lancashire Fairness 
Commission 
recommendations  

• Adoption of the Inner 
East Preston 
Neighbourhood plan 

• Partner in a EU funding 
transation urban 
project 

• Promoted affordable 
warmth - joint working 
with other Authorities  
- Cosy Homes in 
Lancashire scheme 
(CHiL) 

• Highly successful 
implementation of the 
Government funded  
Ultrafast Broadband 
scheme 
 

• What's next 
• Working with landlords 

in St Matthew's ward 
to bring properties up 
to standard 

• Work towards 
increasing the flow of 
affordable housing 
units 

• Continue to deliver 
financial outreach 
measures 
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Managing Performance  
 
At the start of every year each of the Council’s services sets out a service delivery plan which 
covers the key Council Priority work areas and key performance areas. Progress is monitored 
through quarterly performance reports to the relevant individual Cabinet Members with any 
significant performance areas reported to Cabinet or Council. The key annual performance 
indicators can be found in the Achieving Preston’s Priorities – Review of 2015/16 Report. 

 
5. Financial Performance of the Council in 2015/16 
 
The Council set an original revenue net budget of £21.2m (February 2015 Budget Council) for 
2015/16. This was revised to £19.9m (February 2016 Budget Council), £20.7m (net of Government 
grants) as a result of known forecast issues and reported to Budget Council in February 2016. The 
Council finances its net budget through Council Tax, General Government Grants and Retained 
Business Rates income.  
 
Service Financial Performance 
 
The Council manages and presents in-year financial information in the format of Directorate Cash 
Limit Budgets. The Directorate cash limit outturn position was reported within the Outturn Report 
to Cabinet 22nd June 2016. Full details of expenditure, income and budget variances are set out 
within the report which is available following this link:  2015/16 Outturn Report. This does not fully 
align with the way the financial information is shown in the annual statements, however this is 
reconciled in note 26 to the Statement of Accounts. The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement has been set out as per the requirements of the CIPFA Code. 
 
Table: Directorate Cash Limits – 2015/16 Outturn Position: 
 

 
 
 
The outturn position for 2015/16 resulted in an underspend of £1.445mm against budget which 
has enabled the Council to contribute to general fund reserves. This improves the Council’s 
financial position in the short term however in the long term the financial position still remains a 
key concern. When taking into consideration the requests for carry forward of budget 
underspends totalling £0.899m into 2016/17 the underlying underspend is £0.546m  

£2.1m 

£3.7m 
£4.1m 

-£2.2m 

£6.9m 

£1.9m 

£3.5m £3.3m 

-£2.5m 

£6.8m 

-£4.0m

-£2.0m

£0.0m

£2.0m

£4.0m

£6.0m

£8.0m

Chief Executive Corporate
Services

Customer
Services

Development Environment

Budget

Actual
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The Council previously set aside Government funding relating to business rates in order to 
alleviate peaks and troughs on the financial forecast from the timings of when an Authority 
accounts for deficits or surpluses on the Collection Fund.  In 2015/16 £1.965m has been released 
into General Fund Revenue.  

 
The Council has a policy to avoid compulsory redundancy where possible, seeking volunteers and 
identifying redeployment opportunities.  It was estimated that there would be in the region of 80 
posts affected over a four year period from April 2014.  There have been 55 posts affected during 
2015/16.  The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) included a budget provision to fund the 
costs of redundancy.  

 
The Council has a Reserves and Balances policy which is reviewed annually by the Cabinet Member 
for Resources.  The next update will be in October 2016 and will reflect the impact on balances 
from the outturn position.  
 
The table below shows the summary revenue budget outturn for 2015/16: 
 
Summary of Revenue Expenditure in 2015/16 Budget 

£m 
Actual 
£m 

Variance 
£m 

    
Service Directorate – Cash Limit Net Expenditure (see chart above) 14.7 12.9 -1.8 
Centrally Managed Budgets  2.2 1.4 -0.8 
Corporate Items 2.1 2.0 -0.1 
Financing & Investment Income & Expenditure 0.6 0.6 -0.0 
Minimum Revenue Provision 0.7 0.7 0.0 
Direct Revenue Financing 0.4 0.3 -0.1 
Net transfer to/(-)from earmarked reserves 0.1 1.4 1.3 
Total Net Expenditure  20.7 19.3 -1.4 
    
Financing:    
Government Grants -5.6 -5.6 -0.0 
Non-Domestic Rate Distribution -4.8 -4.8 -0.0 
Council Tax Requirement -9.5 -9.8 0.0 
Sub total -20.2 -20.2 -0.0 
Net Call on General Fund Balance 0.5 -0.9 -1.4 
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Capital Investment in 2015/16  
 
During 2015/16 the Council spent £4.25m on 
capital projects against a target estimate of £4m. 
This was financed via various funding sources as 
indicated in the pie chart opposite. Further 
details can be found in the Outturn report 
presented to Cabinet June 22nd 2016. 
 

 
Examples of capital schemes by Council Priority:  

 
 
Future Capital Spending Plans 
 
The Council has an ambitious five year capital programme of £28.9m which includes key schemes 
aiming to create regeneration of the City Centre, investment in major infrastructure via the City 
Deal Partnership and external funding investment towards restoration of Moor Park. The table 
below shows the predicted spend over the period to 2019/20.   
 
 

(a) Table: Capital Investment Programme Summary 2015/16  to 2019/20: 
 

Priority Area 2015/16 
£m 

2016/17 
£m 

2017/18 
£m 

2018/19 
£m 

2019/20 
£m 

Total 
£m 

 : 

Your Council 0.5 0.8 0.5 0.5 0.7 3.0  

Your City 2.3 6.8 5.6 3.2 2.4 20.3  

Fairness for You 1.2 2.9 0.7 0.8 0.1 5.6  

Estimated Expenditure 4.0 10.5 6.8 4.5 3.2 28.9  
The capital programme, approved at the Budget Council meeting in February 2016, identified spend between 
approved schemes and those still awaiting scheme approval by Cabinet. The table above highlights spend in relation to 
the Council’s key priorities 
 
 

28% 

56% 

7% 9% 

Financing of 2015/16 Capital 
Expenditure 

Capital Receipts £1.2m

Government Grants & Contributions £2.4m

Contribution from Reserves £0.3m

Prudential Borrowing £0.4m

Yo
ur

 C
ity

  
Parks & Open Spaces  
£0.7m   (Includes HLF 
schemes on Avenham & 
Miller Park and Moor 
Park.) 
Superfast Broadband 
scheme £0.5m 
City Centre Investment 
Project £0.3m 
City Deal Community 
Infrastructure Levy 
£0.8m 

Fa
irn

es
s f

or
 Y

ou
  

Housing Schemes  
£0.6m 
Including Disabled 
Facilities Grants, 
Renovation Grants and 
Empty Dwellings Yo

ur
 C

ou
nc

il  
Waste Management 
Recycling Efficiency 
Scheme £0.3m 
Fleet/Vehicle 
Replacement £0.3m 
ICT Schemes £0.1m 
Council Buildings - 
Town Hall £0.4m 
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The Council has estimated the following financing sources will be available to fund the capital 
investment programme: 
 

Balance Sheet 
 
The Council’s net assets have increased by £26.6m from end of March 2015 to end of March 2016. 
The significant change has been the result of the £14.4m decrease in Pension Liability, mainly the 
Actuarial re-measurement. The Council currently has a significant level of non-earmarked reserves, 
however these are being used to fund the shortfall between how much the Council spends and how 
much funding the Council receives. These will reduce over the life of the latest forecast to minimum 
recommended levels i.e. £1.1m.  In addition the Council holds a number of earmarked reserves for 
specific purposes and capital receipts available for financing future capital investment. The table 
below shows a summarised view of the balance sheet: 
 
Table: Balance Sheet Summary 
 At 31 March 2015 At 31 March 2016 
 £m £m 
Non-current assets 170.9 177.4 
Net current assets – debtors, stock and cash less short 
term creditors and liabilities 

(117.0) (96.9) 

Net Assets 53.9 80.5 
Represented by: Useable reserves 27.5 31.0 
Represented by: Unusable reserves 26.4 49.5 
 
 
Non-Current Assets - In 2015/16, the Council invested £2.35m on developing or acquiring capital 
assets (see June 2016 Cabinet report). In addition the Council carries out a programme of 
revaluations on its operational assets, also an annual review is conducted to ensure that the 
valuation in the accounts does not differ materially from fair value of the asset. The main changes 
in asset values during 2015/16 have resulted from the in-year capital investment and increased 
valuation of the Harris Building and Museum, Library and Art Gallery of £4m.  
 
A number of Homes & Community Agency assets are still waiting to be transferred to the Council 
(The Council received £8.0m from the Homes and Communities Agency (HCA) as an endowment in 
respect of the transfer of ownership and ongoing maintenance of community related assets in 
2009/10 however legal transfers are still in progress with HCA’s legal advisors).  
 
Borrowings and Investments 
 
The Council is able to borrow money from PWLB (an agency of HM Treasury), banks and building 
societies, or from other public bodies. The Council’s long-term borrowing need as at 31st March 

£2.4m £12.0m £3.1m £3.8m £0.9m £7.0m 

Disabled Facilities Grant £2.4m Borrowing £12m

Capital Receipts £3.1m External Contributions £3.8m

Revenue Funding £0.9m Community Infrastructure Levy £7m
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2016 was met by a combination of long term actual debt of £17.3m and internal cash balances. The 
use of internal cash balances in lieu of borrowing has continued to be the most cost effective means 
of funding capital expenditure.  These amounts are analysed in the notes to the Balance Sheet.  The 
interest payable in relation to the Council’s borrowing totalled £0.8m in 2015/16.   
 
The Authorised Limit for External Debt is a key Prudential Indicator that controls the overall level of 
borrowing and is a statutory limit set by the Council that must not be breached.  The Council’s 
Authorised Limit for external debt for 2015/16 was £26.9m. The Council’s actual total debt was 
£17.3m which is well below the Authorised Limit. 
 
The Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), a key Prudential Indicator, determines the amount that 
the Council needs to borrow for a capital purpose and is the total of the Council’s capital assets less 
all of the Council’s capital reserves.  The CFR for the year ending 31st March 2016 was £18.6m.   
 
Long Term Debt:  

• £17.3m  (£17.3m 2014/15) 
 
The Council’s investments are exposed to interest rate risk and volatility in the money markets.  This 
has led to investment returns remaining at low levels. The security of capital remains the Council’s 
main investment objective. During the year £12m of the longer term investments were diversified 
into new pooled investment funds and UK Government Gilts. 
The investments held as at 31 March 2016 was: 
 
Investments:  

• £22.1m  (£22.0m 2014/15) 
 
Pension Fund Liabilities 
 
The Council has net pension liabilities of £82.3m in the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2016 
(£96.8m as at 31 March 2015). This reflects the value of pension liabilities which the Council is 
required to pay in the future (as they fall due), offset by the value of assets invested in the Pension 
Fund. The Pension Fund has to be reviewed every three years as part of the comprehensive 
actuarial review of the pension fund. The next triennial review will be carried out during 2016 with 
changes to the pension being effective from 1st April 2017 (the last triennial review was effective 
from 1st April 2014).  
 
Analysis of the £14.4m decrease to the Net Pension Liability:  

• £17.8m actuarial re-measurement, less 
• £3.4m loss arising from employer contributions of £4.4m being less than the pension 

obligations of £7.8m. 
 
The Collection Fund (Council Tax and Business Rates)  
 
The Council is required to maintain a separate fund in respect of Council Tax and National Non-
Domestic Rates (NNDR).  The surplus on the Collection Fund for Council Tax was £0.034m and will 
be shared between the City Council (billing authority), the County Council, the Police Authority 
and the Fire Authority in the following years. The City Council’s share of the surplus is £0.006m. 
The actual rate of in year collection of Council Tax for 2015/16 was 94.1% (94.6% for 2014/15). 

15



The in-year collection rates have reduced since April 2013 mainly due to Council Tax being 
collected from claimants who previously received full Council Tax Benefit.   
 
From April 2014 Government introduced a new business rates scheme.  Under the new system 
the Council retains a 40% share of its NNDR.  As at 31st March 2016 there was a deficit of 
£0.441m on the collection fund for NNDR. The Council’s share of the deficit is £0.176m which 
will be accounted for in 2017/18 and 2018/19 in line with legislation.   
 
Principal Risks and Uncertainties 
 
The Council has a risk management strategy in place to identify and evaluate risks. All risks are 
identified, potential impacts are highlighted and controls and mitigations are set in place. The 
Corporate Management Team (CMT) identified a number of key corporate risks which the Council 
monitors and reports to Cabinet Members and Audit Committee during the year. These include: 
 
Corporate Risks Include: 
 
Failure to have effective partnership working or effective collaborative  working 

Failure to deliver Council priorities and ambitions as expressed in the Council’s Achieving 
Preston’s Priorities  (APP)  
Failure to secure value for money through inadequate procurement and commissioning 

Failure to support Council priorities through ineffective ICT systems 

Failure to have a skilled and motivated workforce to deliver its services and priorities 

Failure to achieve ambitious City building plans 

Failure to adequately resource Council services  
 
 
Key Future Financial Risks – Along with the corporate risk there are a number of key financial risks 
identified within the Medium Term Financial Strategy which potentially could have a significant 
impact on the financial forecast, these are:  
 
Key Financial Risks 
Further reductions in Government funding 

Changes in Government Policy  

Pension Fund Deficit  

Preston Bus Pension Guarantee 

Universal Credit 

Estimated Sale of Council Owned assets not being achieved 

Unexpected movements in cashflow 

Unexpected movements in interest rates 

Security of monies invested with counterparties 

The Achieving Preston’s Priorities report to Budget Council February 2016 sets out the above and 
details the risks, potential impact and mitigations/controls in place. 
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6.  The Economic Climate and Financial Outlook for the Future: 
 
The latest MTFS reported to Budget Council in February 2016 set out the capital and revenue 
resources available to the Council and how we use them to deliver essential services and the 
objectives in our priority areas. It also highlighted the key areas/issues facing the Council in the 
current year and future years.  
 
 
The Local Government Finance Settlement 2016/17 published in February 2016 identified further 
significant reductions in Government funding over the next four years and reported that the 
Council will cease to receive Revenue Support Grant by the end of March 2019. The four year 
funding settlement is subject to the submission of an ‘Efficiency Statement’ which Councils have 
until the 14 October 2016 to publish on their websites.  
 
At the moment there are some uncertainties around future Government funding, mainly the 
impact from Business Rates reform 2020/21 onwards, and the outcome of consultation on existing 
New Homes Bonus scheme funding.  Until further details are known the Council is uncertain how 
these will impact on the financial forecast. 
  
The financing of the latest Financial Forecast is shown in the chart below: 
 

             
 
 
The above chart shows the level of savings needed in order to balance what the Council 
spends against the funding it receives. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 17

 18

 19

 20

 21

 22

 23

 24

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20

£m
 

Revenue Financing 

Savings Target Call on Reserves Funding Available

17



 
7. Explanation of the Financial Statements  

The Statement of Accounts sets out the Council’s income and expenditure for the year, and its 
financial position at 31 March. The format and content of the financial statements is prescribed by 
the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015/16 (the 
Code) and the Service Reporting Code of Practice 2015/16(SeRCOP) and comprises core and 
supplementary statements. 

 
The Core Financial Statements: The Supplementary Financial Statements: 

 
 
Movement in Reserves Statement – this 
statement shows a summarised view of the 
movement in year on the different reserves 
held by the Council, analysed into ‘usable 
reserves’ (those which can be applied to fund 
expenditure) and ‘unusable reserves’ (those 
which cannot be used to fund expenditure). 

 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement – this statement shows the 
accounting cost in the year of providing 
services in accordance with general 
accounting practices rather than actual cost of 
services funded through taxation.  The first 
section shows entries for income and 
expenditure arising from day to day 
operational services and the second section 
shows increase or decrease to net worth as a 
movement in fair value of assets. 

 
Balance Sheet – this sets out the Council’s 
assets and liabilities as at 31st March 2016 
and how these are funded (by reserves, 
borrowing, provisions and other balances).   

 
Cash Flow Statement - summarises the 
inflows and outflows of cash arising from 
transactions with third parties for revenue 
and capital purposes.   

 
Notes to the Core Financial Statements - 
assist in the interpretation of the Accounts by 
summarising significant accounting policies 
and other explanatory information.  

 
Statement of Responsibilities for the 
Statement of Accounts - identifies the officer 
who is responsible for the proper 
administration of the Council’s financial 
affairs. 

 
Annual Governance Statement - gives 
assurance on effectiveness of the Council’s 
Governance arrangements including its 
monitoring and evaluation of its code of 
governance and highlighting any planned 
changes in the coming period. 

 
Collection Fund - this fund is maintained 
separately to record the collection of Council 
Tax and National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR) 
due.  The Council operates the Collection 
Fund under the Local Government Finance Act 
1988.  It contains the income and expenditure 
relating to Council Tax and National Non-
Domestic Rates.   
 
Glossary – an explanation of some of the 
key technical terms used in these accounts. 
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8.  Conclusion 
 
In conclusion, the Council has a proactive approach to financial forecasting and budget 
management with extensive systems and procedures in place. In 2015/16 the Council has in 
overall terms achieved its financial targets and aspirations and has worked successfully within 
reduced budgets to deliver services.  However, the Council continues to face a turbulent future in 
respect of its finances. Looking ahead, a combination of increased costs, falling revenues and 
further significant reductions in Central Government grant means further savings are required in 
order for the Council to balance ‘what the Council spends’ against the ‘income the Council 
receives‘.  Officers and Elected Members have already commenced working towards the next 
three years savings plan in order to ensure the Council has a balanced budget beyond 2017/18.  
Cabinet intend to publish an Emergency Budget at the Council meeting in October 2016.  
 
9.  Access to further information 
 
If you would like to receive further information about the Statement of Accounts please contact 
Accountancy Services at Preston Town Hall, Lancaster Road, Preston, PR1 2RL. 
 
Signed      Date      
 
 
 
 
 
 
Jackie Wilding 
City Treasurer 
(Section 151 Officer) 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

19



Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts 

 
 

 
The Council’s Responsibilities 
 
The Authority is required: 

 To make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that 
one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs.  For Preston City 
Council the officer is the City Treasurer; 

 
 To manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and 

safeguard its assets; and 
 

 Approve the Statement of Accounts. 
 
The Chief Financial Officer’s Responsibilities. 
 
The City Treasurer is responsible for the preparation of the Council’s Statement of Accounts in 
accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA (Chartered Institute of Public Finance & 
Accountancy) 2015/16 Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the 
Code).  
 
In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the City Treasurer has: 
 

 selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently; 
 
 made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent;  

 
 complied with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting (the Code); 

 
 kept proper accounting records which were up to date; and, 
 
 taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 

 
 
The Chief Financial Officer’s Certification 
 
I certify that the Statement of Accounts presents a true and fair view of the financial position of the 
Authority at the reporting date and its income and expenditure for the year ended 21 September 2016. 
 
Signed      Date      
 
 
 
 
 
Jackie Wilding      
City Treasurer      
(Section 151 Officer) 
 
The Council has delegated the responsibility for approving the Statement of Accounts to the Audit 
Committee. In accordance with the Accounting and Audit Regulations 2015, I certify that the 
Statement of Accounts was approved by the Audit Committee on 21 September 2016. 
 
Signed      Date 
 
 
 
 
 
Councillor Moore 
Chair of Audit Committee 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF PRESTON CITY 
COUNCIL 
 
 
We have audited the financial statements of Preston City Council (the "Authority") for 
the year ended 31 March 2016 under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 
(the "Act"). The financial statements comprise the Movement in Reserves Statement, 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, the Balance Sheet, the 
Cash Flow Statement, the Collection Fund and the related notes. The financial 
reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and 
the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United 
Kingdom 2015/16. 
 
This report is made solely to the members of the Authority, as a body, in accordance 
with Part 5 of the Act and as set out in paragraph 43 of the Statement of 
Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by Public Sector Audit 
Appointments Limited. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to 
the members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report 
and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or 
assume responsibility to anyone other than the Authority and the Authority's 
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have 
formed. 
 
 
Respective responsibilities of the City Treasurer and auditor 
 
As explained more fully in the Statement of the City Treasurer Responsibilities, the 
City Treasurer is responsible for the preparation of the Statement of Accounts, which 
includes the financial statements, in accordance with proper practices as set out in 
the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United 
Kingdom 2015/16, which give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and 
express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and 
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to 
comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors. 
 
Scope of the audit of the financial statements 
 
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. 
This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to 
the Authority’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately 
disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the City 
Treasurer; and the overall presentation of the financial statements. In addition, we 
read all the financial and non-financial information in the Narrative Report and the 
Annual Governance Statement  to identify material inconsistencies with the audited 
financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently materially 
incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in 
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the course of performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent material 
misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report. 
 
Opinion on financial statements 
 
In our opinion the financial statements: 

 present a true and fair view of the financial position of the Authority as at 31 
March 2016 and of its expenditure and income for the year then ended; and 

 have been prepared properly in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015/16 and 
applicable law. 

 
Opinion on other matters 
 
In our opinion, the other information published together with the audited financial 
statements in the Narrative Report and the Annual Governance Statement is 
consistent with the audited financial statements. 
 
Matters on which we are required to report by exception 
 
We are required to report to you if: 

 in our opinion the Annual Governance Statement does not comply with the 
guidance included in ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: a 
Framework’ published by CIPFA/SOLACE in June 2007; or 

 we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Act; or 
 we make a written recommendation to the Authority under section 24 of the 

Act; or 
 we exercise any other special powers of the auditor under the Act. 
 

We have nothing to report in these respects. 
 
Conclusion on the Authority’s arrangements to secure value for money 
through economic, efficient and effective use of its resources 
 
Respective responsibilities of the Authority and auditor 
 
The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper 
stewardship and governance, and to review regularly the adequacy and effectiveness 
of these arrangements. 
 
We are required under Section 20(1)(c) of the Act to be satisfied that the Authority 
has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in 
its use of resources. We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, 
whether all aspects of the Authority's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency 
and effectiveness in its use of resources are operating effectively. 
 
Scope of the review of the Authority's arrangements to secure value for money 
through economic, efficient and effective use of its resources 
 
We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice 
prepared by the Comptroller and Auditor General as required by the Act (the "Code"), 
having regard to the guidance on the specified criteria issued by the Comptroller and 
Auditor General in November 2015, as to whether the Authority had proper 
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arrangements to ensure it took properly informed decisions and deployed resources 
to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people. The 
Comptroller and Auditor General determined these criteria as those necessary for us 
to consider under the Code in satisfying ourselves whether the Authority put in place 
proper arrangements to secure value for money through the economic, efficient and 
effective use of its resources for the year ended 31 March 2016. 
 
We planned our work in accordance with the Code. Based on our risk assessment, 
we undertook such work as we considered necessary to form a view on whether in all 
significant respects the Authority has put in place proper arrangements to secure 
value for money through economic, efficient and effective use of its resources. 
 
Conclusion  
 
On the basis of our work, having regard to the guidance on the specified criteria 
issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in November 2015, we are satisfied 
that in all significant respects the Authority has put in place proper arrangements to 
secure value for money through economic, efficient and effective use of its resources 
for the year ended 31 March 2016. 
 
Certificate 
 
We certify that we have completed the audit of the accounts of the Authority in 
accordance with the requirements of the Act and the Code. 
 
 
Karen Murray 
 
Karen Murray 
 
4 Hardman Square  
Spinningfields 
Manchester  
M3 3EB 
21 September 2016 
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Introduction to the Core Financial Statements

Introduction to the Core Financial Statements

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require the Council to produce a Statement of Accounts for 
each financial year. These statements contain a number of different elements which are explained below:

The Movement in Reserves Statement  (Page 26)

This statement shows the movement on the different reserves held by the Council, analysed into 'usable
reserves' (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and 'unusable
reserves'. The Surplus or (Deficit) on the Provision of Services line shows the true economic cost of
providing the Council's services, more details of which are shown in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement. This is different from the statutory amounts required to be charged to the
General Fund Balance for Council Tax setting. The 'Net Increase or Decrease before Transfers to
Earmarked Reserves' line shows the statutory General Fund Balance before any discretionary transfers
to or from earmarked reserves are undertaken by the Council.

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement  (Page 27)

This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally
accepted practices, rather than the amount to be funded from taxation. Councils raise taxation to cover
expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be different from the accounting cost. The taxation
position is shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

The Balance Sheet  (Page 28)

The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities recognised
by the Council. The net assets (assets less liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by the Council.
Reserves are reported in two categories. The first category of reserves are usable reserves, i.e. those
reserves that the Council may use to provide services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of
reserves and any statutory limitations on their use (for example the Capital Receipts Reserve that may
only be used to fund capital expenditure or repay debt). The second category of reserves are those that
the Council is not able to use to provide services. This category of reserves includes reserves that hold
unrealised gains and losses (for example the Revaluation Reserve), where amounts would only become
available to provide services if the assets are sold; and reserves that hold timing differences shown in the
Movement of Reserves Statement line 'Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under
regulations'.

The Cash Flow Statement  (Page 29)

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Council during the
reporting period. The statement shows how the Council generates and uses cash and cash equivalents
by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing activities. The amount of net cash flows
arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations of the Council are
funded by way of taxation and grant income or from the recipients of services provided by the Council.
Investing activities represent the extent to which cash outflows have been made for resources which are
intended to contribute to the Council's future service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities
are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the Council.
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£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

 5,976  13,376  5,052  956  25,360  60,293  85,653 

(7,449) - -                -                 (7,449) -                 (7,449)

22(a) 
& 

34(e) -             -                    -                -                 -                 (24,257) (24,257)

(7,449) -                    -                -                 (7,449) (24,257) (31,706)

10  9,475 -                    (87)  233  9,621 (9,621) -                

 2,026 -                    (87)  233  2,172 (33,878) (31,706)

(1,253)  1,253 -                -                 -                 -                 -                

 773  1,253 (87)  233  2,172 (33,878) (31,706)

 6,749  14,629  4,965  1,189  27,532  26,415  53,947 

 1,607 -                    -                -                  1,607 -                  1,607 

22(a) 
& 

34(e) -              -                    -                -                 -                  24,954  24,954 

 1,607 -                    -                -                  1,607  24,954  26,561 

10 (570) -                    (35)  2,420  1,815 (1,815) -                

 1,037 -                    (35)  2,420  3,422  23,139  26,561 

21(a) (101)  101 -                -                 -                 -                 -                

 936  101 (35)  2,420  3,422  23,139  26,561 

 7,685  14,730  4,930  3,609  30,954  49,554  80,508 

Total 
Council 

Reserves

Total 
Usable 

Reserves

Balance as at 1 April 
2014

Surplus/(Deficit) on 
provision of services

Earmarked 
General 

Fund 
Reserves

General 
Fund 

BalanceN
ot

e

Total Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure

Adjustments between 
accounting basis and 
funding basis under 
regulations

Capital 
Grants 

Unapplied

Capital 
Receipts 
Reserve

Unusable 
Reserves

Net Increase or Decrease 
before Transfers to 
Earmarked Reserves

Transfers to/from 
Earmarked Reserves

Movement in Reserves Statement

Increase/Decrease 
(movement) in year

Balance as at 31 March 
2016 carried forward

Surplus/(Deficit) on 
provision of services

Other Comprehensive 
Expenditure and Income

Adjustments between 
accounting basis and 
funding basis under 
regulations

Net Increase or Decrease 
before Transfers to 
Earmarked Reserves

Total Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure

Transfers to/from 
Earmarked Reserves

Other Comprehensive 
Expenditure and Income

Increase/Decrease 
(movement) in year

Balance as at 31 March 
2015 carried forward

Movement in Reserves 
during 2015/16
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Gross Gross Net Gross
Expend Income Expend Expend

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Continuing Operations Note

 3,474  1,935  1,539 Central Services  3,626  2,107  1,519 

 5,167  2,985  2,182 Planning Services  5,565  3,084  2,481 

 10,096  4,277  5,819 Environmental & Regulatory Services  9,854  4,429  5,425 

 10,441  4,229  6,212 Cultural and Related Services  10,287  4,181  6,106 

 1,558  1,250  308 Highways & Transport Services  1,536  1,352  184 

 54,923  52,631  2,292 Housing Services  52,324  50,268  2,056 

 3,068  132  2,936 Corporate and Democratic Core  2,971  283  2,688 

 331  20  311 Non Distributed Costs  1,063 -                1,063 

 89,058  67,459  21,599 Cost of Services 26  87,226  65,704  21,522 

 40 Other Operating Expenditure 6 (283)

 2,765 
Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure 7  1,863 

Other Income
(1,017) Other Income 36 (507)

 5,929 (Surplus)/Deficit of Discontinued Operations 9 -               

(21,867) Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income 8 (24,202)

 7,449 (Surplus)/Deficit on Provision of Services (1,607)

 164 
(Surplus)/Deficit on revaluation of non-current 
assets 22(a) (7,111)

-              
(Surplus)/deficit on revaluation of available-for-
sale financial assets 22(g) (15)

 24,093 
Remeasurements of the net defined 
(benefit)/liability 34(e) (17,828)

 24,257 (24,954)

 31,706 (26,561)

Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement

Gross

2015/162014/15

Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Income
Net

Expend
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As at
31 March 2015

Note
£'000 £'000

 74,921 Property, Plant & Equipment 12  80,815 

 32,917 Heritage Assets 13  33,652 

 40,493 Investment Properties 16  39,826 

 350 Assets Held for Sale (more than 1 year)  801 

 32 Intangible Assets  7 

 22,005 Long-term Investments 14(a)  22,058 

 236 Long-term Debtors 14(a)  227 

 170,954 Total Non Current Assets  177,386 

 255 Short-term Investments 14(a) -                    

 214 Inventories  206 

 7,175 Short-term Debtors 17  7,713 

 7,918 Cash and Cash Equivalents 19  17,920 

 15,562 Total Current Assets  25,839 

(186) Short-term Borrowing 14(a) (189)

(9,476) Short-term Creditors 20 (14,408)

(9,662) Total Current Liabilities (14,597)

(4,801) Provisions 15 (4,456)

(17,511) Long-term Borrowing 14(a) (17,505)

(96,768) Pension Liability 34(d) (82,332)

(3,827) Capital Grants Receipts in Advance 18 (3,827)

(122,907) Total Long Term Liabilities (108,120)

 53,947 Net Assets  80,508 

 
Represented by

 27,532 Usable Reserves 21 & MIRS  30,954 
 26,415 Unusable Reserves 22 & MIRS  49,554 

 53,947 Total Reserves  80,508 

As at
31 March 2016

 Balance Sheet 
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2014/15 2015/16

Note
£'000 £'000

(7,449) Net surplus or (deficit) on the provision of services  1,607 

 14,574 
Adjustment to surplus or deficit on the provision of services for non-cash 
movements 23  6,224 

(1,892)
Adjustment for items included in the net surplus or deficit on the provision of 
services that are investing and financing activities 23  4,697 

 5,233 Net cash flows from operating activities  12,528 

(114) Net cash flows from investing activities 24 (6,690)

 1,873 Net cash flows from financing activities 25  4,164 

 6,992 Net increase or decrease in cash and cash equivalents  10,002 

 926 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period  7,918 

 7,918 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period 19  17,920 

Cash Flow Statement
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Notes to the Core Financial Statements 
 

1.  Accounting Policies       ……………………………………………………………………………………. 

1.  General Principles 

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council’s transactions for the 2015/16 financial year and 
its position at 31 March 2016. The Council is required to prepare an annual Statement of Accounts by 
the Accounts and Audit regulations 2015 which require the accounts to be prepared in accordance 
with proper accounting practices. These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015/16 (the Code) and the Service Reporting Code of 
Practice 2015/16 (SeRCOP), supported by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).   

The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical cost, modified 
by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial instruments. 

2.  Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors 

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a 
material error.  

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or the 
change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other events and 
conditions on the Council’s financial position or financial performance. Where a change is made, it is 
applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening balances and comparative 
amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always been applied. 

Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the current and future years 
affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior period adjustment. 

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending opening 
balances and comparative amounts for the prior period. 
 
3.  Accruals of Income and Expenditure  
 
The financial statements have been prepared on an accruals basis for all transactions and balances.  
Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made or 
received.  
In particular: 
 revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Council transfers the significant 

risks and rewards of ownership to the purchaser and it is probable that economic 
benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Council; 

 revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the Council can measure 
reliably the percentage of completion of the transaction and it is probable that economic 
benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Council; 

 supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed – where there is a gap 
between the date supplies are received and their consumption then they will be carried 
as inventories on the Balance Sheet; 

 expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees) 
are recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments 
are made; 

 interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for 
respectively as income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for the 
relevant financial instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the 
contract; and, 

 where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received 
or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet. 
Where debts may not be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a charge 
made to revenue for the income that might not be collected. 
 
 
 

 

33



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 
 

 
 
4.  Cash and Cash Equivalents  
 
Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits available on demand. Cash equivalents are short-
term (less than three months) highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts 
of cash with insignificant risk of change in value. 
 
In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are 
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Council’s cash management. 
 
5.  Contingent Liabilities  
 
A contingent liability arises either: 
 

 where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible obligation whose existence 
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly 
within the control of the Council; and,  

 where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that an outflow of 
resources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably. 

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts. 

6.  Contingent Assets  
 
A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible asset 
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not 
wholly within the control of the Council. 
 
Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts 
where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service potential. 
 
7.  Employee Benefits  
 
(i)  Short-term Employee Benefits 
 
Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year end. They 
include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, bonuses and non-
monetary benefits (eg. cars) for current employees and are recognised as an expense for services in 
the year in which employees render service to the Council. An accrual is made for the cost of holiday 
entitlements earned by employees but not taken before the year-end which employees can carry 
forward into the next financial year.  To ensure no impact on Council Tax a corresponding transfer is 
made to the Accumulated Absence Account. 
 
(ii)  Termination Benefits 
 
Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Council to terminate an 
officer’s employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision to accept voluntary 
redundancy and are charged on an accruals basis to the service lines in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement. 
 
Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require the 
General Fund balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund or 
pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In 
the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are required to and from the Pensions Reserve 
to remove the notional debits and credits for pension enhancement termination benefits and replace 
them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable 
but unpaid at the year end. 
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Notes to the Core Financial Statements 
 

(iii)  Retirement Benefits 
 
Employees of the Council are members of the Local Government Pensions Scheme administered by 
Lancashire County Council.  The scheme provides defined benefits to members, earned as 
employees work for the Council. Retirement benefits are determined independently of scheme 
investments and the Council must contribute to any deficit where assets are insufficient to meet 
retirement benefits. 
 
The Local Government Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme: 
 
 the liabilities of the scheme attributable to the Council are included in the Balance Sheet on an 

actuarial basis using the projected unit method, i.e. an assessment of the future payments that 
will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based on 
assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates, etc. and projections of earnings for 
current employees. Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a real 
discount rate of 3.5% determined by reference to market yields at the balance sheet date based 
on high quality corporate bonds; and, 

 the assets of the pension fund attributable to the Council are included in the Balance Sheet at 
their fair value. 

 
The change in the net pension liability is analysed into the following components: 
 
 current service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned this year 

allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the services for which 
the employees worked; 

 net interest on the net defined benefit liability, i.e. net interest expense for the Council.  This is 
the change during the period in the net defined benefit liability that arises from the passage of 
time charged to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line of the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement;   

 remeasurements comprising: 
- the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined 

benefit liability) charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure; and, 

- actuarial gains and losses.  Due to changes in the net pensions liability that arise because 
events have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because 
the actuaries have updated their assumptions.  This is charged to the Pensions Reserve as 
Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. 

 contributions paid to the pension fund.  This is cash paid to the pension fund in settlement of 
liabilities. 
 

Statutory provisions require the General Fund balance to be charged with the amount payable by the 
Council to the pension fund, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting 
standards.  This means that there are transfers in the Movement in Reserves Statement to remove the 
notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the 
pension fund and any amounts payable but unpaid at the year end. 
 
The Council has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the event of 
early retirements.  Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to a member of staff are 
accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and accounted for using the same policies as 
are applied to the Local Government Pension Scheme. 
 
8.  Events after the Balance Sheet Date  
 
Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and adverse, that occur 
between the end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of Accounts is authorised 
for issue which may have a bearing upon the financial results of the past year. Two types of events 
can be identified: 
 those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting 

period – the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events; and,  
 those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period – the 

Statement of Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of 
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Notes to the Core Financial Statements 
 

events would have a material effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of 
the events and their estimated financial effect. 

  
Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement of 
Accounts. 
 
9.  Exceptional Items  
 
Material items of income and expense are disclosed separately either on the face of the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement or in the notes to the accounts, depending on 
how significant the items are to an understanding of the overall financial performance of the Council. 

 
10.  Provisions  
  
Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council a legal or constructive 
obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits or service potential, for 
which a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are a charge to the 
Net Cost of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 
11.  Reserves  
 
Reserves are classified as either ‘usable’ (identified and maintained for specific future purposes and 
contingencies and include General Fund reserve, Earmarked reserve and Usable Capital Receipts 
reserve) or ‘unusable’ (kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets, financial 
instruments, retirement and employee benefits and do not represent usable resources for the Council) 
– these reserves are explained in the relevant policies. 
 
The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover 
contingencies. Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the General Fund Balance in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement. When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is 
charged to the appropriate service in that year against the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 
Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The reserve is then appropriated 
back into the General Fund balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement so that there is no net 
charge against Council Tax for the expenditure. 
 
12. Value Added Tax (VAT) 
 
VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from Her Majesty’s 
Revenue and Customs (HMRC). VAT receivable is excluded from income.  
 
13.  Government Grants and Contributions 
 
Government grants and third party contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Council 
when there is reasonable assurance that the Council will comply with the conditions attached to the 
payments, and the grants or contributions will be received. 
 
Amounts recognised as due to the Council are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement until conditions attached to the grant or contribution have been satisfied. 
Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential embodied 
in the asset in the form of the grant or contribution are required to be consumed by the recipient as 
specified, or future economic benefits or service potential must be returned to the transferor. 
 
Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are carried 
in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is credited 
to the relevant service line or taxation and non-specific grant income (non-ring fenced revenue grants 
and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 
Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are 
reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the grant 
has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve. 
Where it has been applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in the Capital 
Grants Unapplied Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account once they have been 
applied to fund capital expenditure. 
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14.  Central Support Service Overheads  
 
In accordance with the costing principles of the CIPFA Service Reporting Code of Practice (SeRCOP) 
the costs of overheads and support services, e.g. accountancy, legal, human resources are charged 
to those that benefit from the supply or service.  The full cost of overheads and support services are 
shared between users in proportion to the benefits received. The exception is Corporate and 
Democratic Core (costs relating to the Council’s status as a multifunctional, democratic organisation) 
and Non Distributed Costs which are accounted for as separate headings in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement, as part of Net Expenditure on Continuing Services. 
 
15.  Intangible Assets  
  
Intangible Assets are assets that do not have physical substance and are held for use in the provision 
of services or for administrative purposes on a continuing basis (e.g. software licences). They are 
controlled by the Council as a result of past events and future economic or service benefits flow to the 
Council from intangible assets. These assets are capitalised at cost and amortised (depreciated) to 
the relevant revenue service over their economic lives.  This amortisation is then reversed out in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement and a transfer is made to the Capital Adjustment Account. 
An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal. The gains or losses arising from the disposal are 
recognised in the Surplus / Deficit on the Provision of Services. 
 
16.  Inventories and Long Term Contracts  
 
Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable value.  The cost 
of inventories is assigned using the First in First out (FIFO) costing formula. 
 
Long term contracts are accounted for on the basis of charging the Surplus/ Deficit on the Provision of 
Services with the value of works and services received under the contract during the financial year.  
 
17.  Investment Property 

Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. 
The definition is not met if the property is used for Council’s services delivery or is held for sale. 

Investment properties are initially measured at cost. After initial recognition they are measured at fair 
value. The fair value reflects market conditions at the Balance Sheet date. A gain or loss arising from 
a change in the fair value of investment property is recognised in the Financing and Investment 
Income and Expenditure line within the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  

Investment properties are not depreciated but are re-valued annually according to market conditions.  

An investment property is derecognised on disposal. Gains or losses arising from the disposal are 
recognised in the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line within the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement.  

Revaluation and disposal gains and losses are reversed out of the General Fund balance in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account. 

Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing and Investment 
Income and Expenditure line within the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  

18.  Property, Plant and Equipment  
 
Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods or 
services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be used during 
more than one financial year are classified as property, plant and equipment. 
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(i)  Recognition 

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of property, plant and equipment is 
capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the Council will receive future 
economic benefits or service potential associated with the item.  This excludes expenditure on routine 
repairs and maintenance of property, plant or equipment which is charged direct to service revenue 
accounts. 

Capital expenditure is initially added to the value of an asset but if that is not considered to be the 
case it is classed as impairment. Expenditure under £20k is classed as deminimis and treated as 
revenue expenditure.  

(ii)  Measurement 

Non-current assets are valued on the basis recommended by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance 
& Accountancy (CIPFA) and in accordance with the Valuation Standards 6th Edition issued by The 
Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS).  Non-current assets are classified into the groupings 
required by the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting.   

Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising: 

 the purchase price;
 any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be

capable of operating in the manner intended by management; and,
 the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on

which it is located.

The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value, unless the 
acquisition does not have commercial substance (i.e. it will not lead to a variation in the cash flows of 
the Council). In the latter case, where an asset is acquired via an exchange, the cost of the acquisition 
is the carrying amount of the asset given up by the Council. 

Land and buildings and other operational assets are valued at current value determined as the 
amount that would be paid for the asset in its existing use (existing use value – EUVs). Where 
sufficient market evidence is not available, for example leisure centres, fair value is estimated at 
depreciated replacement cost. Short life assets such as vehicles, are held at depreciated historical 
cost as a proxy for current value on the grounds of materiality. 

Community assets and infrastructure are valued at historical cost net of depreciation.  

Assets under construction are held at historical cost and are not depreciated until brought into use. 

Surplus assets are valued at fair value based on market value, determined by the measurement of the 
highest and best use value of the asset. These are assets that are not in use by the Council but do not 
meet the definition of assets held for sale. Surplus assets mainly relate to land that may be available 
for regeneration purposes. 

Increases in valuation are matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve. In some cases when there 
is an increase in revaluation the increase will reverse out a previous impairment loss charged to the 
Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Service or where the increase is reversing a previous revaluation 
decrease charged to the Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Service the increase in valuation is 
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.   

When there are decreases in value and there is a balance on the Revaluation Reserve relating to the 
asset, the value is written down against that balance (up to the amount of accumulated gains). Where 
there is no or insufficient balance in the Revaluation Reserve the value of the asset is written down 
against the relevant service line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. When 
revaluation gains or losses are credited or charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement they are reversed out in the Movement in Reserves Statement to the Capital Adjustment 
Account.    
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Assets included in the Balance Sheet at fair value are revalued regularly to ensure that their carrying 
amount is not materially different from their fair value at the year end.  Assets are revalued at a 
minimum of every five years.  

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the date of its 
formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into the Capital 
Adjustment Account. 

(iii)  Impairment 

Assets are assessed at each year end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be 
impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the 
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying amount of the 
asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall. 

The amount of the impairment is charged to the Revaluation Reserve but only to the extent that the 
impairment does not exceed the amount in the Revaluation Reserve. Thereafter, the impairment is 
charged to the Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Service. This charge is reversed out through the 
Movement in Reserves Statement to the Capital Adjustment Account.    

When an impairment loss is subsequently reversed, the reversal is credited to the relevant service line 
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement up to the amount of the original impairment 
loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had not been recognised.  

(iv)  Depreciation 
 
Depreciation is provided for on all property, plant and equipment with a finite useful life. Useful life is 
estimated at the time of acquisition or revaluation.  An exception is made for assets without a 
determinable finite useful life (i.e. freehold land and certain community assets) and assets that are not 
yet available for use (i.e. assets under construction). 

Depreciation is calculated on the following bases: 

 dwellings and other buildings – straight-line allocation over the useful life of the property 
as estimated by the valuer; 

 vehicles, plant, furniture and equipment – straight-line allocation over the useful life of 
the asset; and, 

 Infrastructure – straight-line allocation as advised by a suitable qualified officer. 

Where an item of property, plant and equipment has major components whose costs are significant in 
relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately in accordance with the 
Council’s componentisation policy.  

A summary of the Council’s componentisation policy is: 

 the deminimis level for identifying property to be componentised will be 0.5% of the total 
property, plant  & equipment value; 

 the deminimis level for component size will be 20% of the asset value; and, 
 similar component lives will be grouped together. 

 
Components have been recognised in the financial year where: 
 

 there has been a revaluation of an asset; 
 there has been an acquisition of an asset; and,  
 enhancement expenditure has been incurred.  

 
Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current value 
depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable based on their 
historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment 
Account. 
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Newly acquired assets are depreciated the year following acquisition, although assets in the course of 
construction are not depreciated until they are brought into use, thereafter an equal charge to revenue 
is made over the useful life of the assets. 

19.  Disposals and Non-Current Assets Held for Sale  

When it becomes evident that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally through a 
sale rather than its continued use, it can be reclassified as an asset held for sale. An asset can only be 
classed as held for sale if it is available for immediate sale in its present condition, the sale must be 
highly probable, it is being actively marketed and the sale should be expected to be completed within 
one year of its original classification. When events or circumstances extend the period beyond one 
year and there is sufficient evidence that the Council remains committed to the sale of the assets they 
are classified as long term assets held for sale.  

Assets held for sale are held at the lower of the carrying amount and the fair value less cost to sell. If 
this results in a loss in value the loss is posted to Other Operating Expenditure in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement. Gains in fair value are recognised only up to the amount of any 
previous loss recognised in the Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services. Depreciation is not 
charged on assets held for sale. 

If these assets no longer meet the classification of assets held for sale they are reclassified back to 
non-current assets and valued at the lower of their carrying amount before they were classified as held 
for sale.  

20.  Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets   
 
Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following amounts to record the 
real cost of holding non-current assets during the year: 
 
 depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service; 
 revaluation and impairment losses attributable to the clear consumption of economic 

benefits on tangible non-current assets used by the service where there are no 
accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written off; 
and, 

 amortisation (depreciation) of intangible non-current assets attributable to the service. 
 
21.  Revenue Expenditure Funded From Capital under Statute 
 
Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute (REFCUS) is expenditure of a capital nature 
that does not result in the creation of a non-current asset on the Balance Sheet. These are generally 
grants and expenditure on assets not owned by the Council.  
 
Expenditure is charged to the Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services as the expenditure is 
incurred. This is reversed out through the Movement in Reserves Statement and a transfer made to 
the Capital Adjustment Account.  
 
22.  Leases 
  
Leases are classified as either finance or operating leases based on the extent to which the risks and 
rewards incidental to ownership of a leased asset lie with the lessor or lessee. Leases are classified 
as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards 
incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the lessor to the lessee. All other 
leases are classified as operating leases. Land and building elements of a lease are considered 
separately for the purpose of lease classification. 

The Authority as Lessee 

Finance Leases 

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the Balance Sheet at the 
commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the lease’s inception (or the present value of 
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the minimum lease payments, if lower). The asset recognised is matched by a liability for the 
obligation to pay the lessor. Premiums paid on entry into a lease are applied to writing down the lease 
liability.  

The lease payments are apportioned between a charge for the acquisition of the interest which is to 
write down the deferred liability and a finance charge which is recognised in the Financing and 
Investment Income and Expenditure line within the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. 

The leased property, plant and equipment are subject to depreciation and the MRP on these assets 
equals the amount of the lease payment that is applied to write down the deferred liability. The 
deferred liability is either classified as short or long term in line with the lease repayments.  

Operating Leases 

Lessee 

Rental income paid under operating leases is treated as a revenue transaction and is charged to the 
relevant service expenditure in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as an expense 
of the services benefitting from use of the leased property, plant or equipment.  

Lessor 

Rental Income from operating leases is recognised on a straight line basis over the lease period and is 
shown in the Other Operating Expenditure in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
Assets held for use as operating leases are recorded on the Council’s Balance Sheet. 

23.  Financial Instruments  
 
The term ‘financial instrument’ covers both financial assets and financial liabilities and includes both 
the most straight forward financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade payables 
and the most complex ones such as derivatives and embedded derivatives.   
 
Amounts relating to Council Tax, National Non-Domestic Rates, and other statutory debts are not 
included within the definition of financial instruments as they do not arise from contracts.  

(i)  Financial Liabilities 

A financial liability is an obligation to transfer economic benefits controlled by the Council and can be 
represented by a contractual obligation to deliver cash or financial assets or an obligation to exchange 
financial assets and liabilities with another entity that is potentially unfavourable to the Council. 

The Council’s financial liabilities held during the year are carried in the Balance Sheet at amortised 
cost and comprised: 

 long-term loans from the Public Works Loan Board and commercial lenders; 
 transferred debt liability to South Ribble Borough Council as a result of historic local 

government reorganisation; and 
 trade payables for goods and services received. 

Their fair values have been estimated by calculating the net present value of the remaining contractual 
cash flows at 31st March 2016, using the following methods and assumptions: 

 loans borrowed by the Council have been valued by discounting the contractual cash flows 
over the whole life of the instrument at the appropriate market rate for local authority loans; 

 the value of “lender’s Option Borrower’s Option” (LOBO) loans have been increased by the 
value of the embedded options.  Lenders’ options to propose an increase to the interest rate 
on the loan have been valued according to a proprietary model for Bermudan cancellable 
swaps.  Borrower’s contingent options to accept the increased rate or repay the loan have 
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been valued at zero, on the assumption that lenders will only exercise their options when 
market rates have risen above the contractual loan rate; 

 The fair values of other long-term loans and investments have been discounted at the market 
rates for similar instruments with similar remaining terms to maturity on 31st March;  

 No early repayment or impairment is recognised for any financial instrument; and 
 The fair value of short-term instruments, including trade payables and receivables, is assumed 

to approximate to the carrying amount. 

 (ii)  Financial Assets 

A financial asset is a right to future economic benefits controlled by the Council that is represented by 
cash or other instruments or a contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset.  The 
financial assets of the Council are held under the following classifications: 

(i) Loans and receivables (financial assets that have fixed or determinable payments and are not 
quoted in an active market) comprising: 

 cash in hand; 
 bank current and deposit accounts; 
 fixed term deposits with banks and building societies; 
 loans to other local authorities; and 
 trade receivables for goods and services delivered. 

(ii) Available for sale financial assets (those that are quoted in an active market) comprising: 
 money market funds and other collective investment schemes; and 
 treasury bills and gilts issued by the UK Government. 

(iii) Assets held at fair value through profit and loss comprising: 
 externally managed investments that are held for trading by a fund manager. 

 
Financial assets classified as available for sale are carried in the Balance Sheet at fair value.  For 
most assets, including treasury bills and shares in money market funds and other pooled funds, the 
fair value is taken from the market price.   

24. Heritage Assets 

The majority of the Council’s Heritage Assets are held in the Harris Museum. The museum has three 
collections of Heritage Assets, fine art, decorative art and social history. These are held for their 
contribution to knowledge or culture and to support an understanding and appreciation of the Council’s 
local and surrounding area. The remaining heritage assets are statues, war memorials and civic 
regalia. Heritage Assets are recognised and measured (including the treatment of revaluation gains 
and losses) in accordance with the Council’s accounting policies on property, plant and equipment. 
However, due to the nature of these assets, the measurement rules are more relaxed. The Council’s 
collections of Heritage Assets are accounted for as follows: 
 
(i) Fine Art 

 
The fine art collection includes a number of prominent pieces from British artists relating to Preston 
and the North West region. The fine art valuations are reported in the Balance Sheet at insurance 
valuation which is based on market values. These insurance valuations are updated on an annual 
basis. 
The fine art collection has an indeterminate life and a high residual value therefore the Council does 
not consider it appropriate to charge depreciation. 
Overall the fine art collection remains fairly constant and acquisitions and donations are rare. When 
the Council does acquire a piece of art work it is held on the Balance Sheet at cost and any donations 
will be held at insurance values with reference to an appropriate commercial market for the art work 
using the most relevant and recent information available from sales at auctions. 
 
(ii) Decorative Art 

 
The decorative art collection including ceramics and glass, scent bottles, card cases, enamels, clocks, 
watches and silver were all valued in the 1990s. The general fashion for collecting these items goes in 
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peaks and troughs. The decorative art is valued externally and is reported in the Balance Sheet at the 
external valuation indexed up to a present day value. However, not all decorative art has been 
reported in the Balance Sheet, including costumes and textiles. This collection has in excess of 5,200 
objects or pieces and it is the opinion of the Council that the collection cannot be valued because of 
the diverse and often unique nature of the collection. Therefore cost or valuation information is not 
available and conventional valuation approaches lack sufficient reliability. The cost of obtaining the 
valuations would be disproportionate in terms of the benefit derived. 
Acquisitions are again initially recognised at cost or if bequeathed or donated are recognised at 
valuation ascertained by the museum’s curators in accordance with the Council’s policy on valuations. 
If information is available a reference to an appropriate commercial market for the art work using the 
most relevant and recent information available from sales at auctions will be used. 
 
(iii) Social History 

 
Included with the Council’s social history collection is the archaeology and ethnography collection. In 
the opinion of the Council, the archaeological and ethnography collection of artefacts cannot be valued 
because of the diverse and often unique nature of the collection. Therefore, cost or valuation 
information is not available and conventional valuation approaches lack sufficient reliability. The 
Council is of the opinion that the costs of obtaining the valuations for these items would be 
disproportionate in terms of the benefit derived. For the majority of the collection, neither cost nor 
valuation information can be provided and therefore reported in the Balance Sheet. Two social history 
collections, the Numismatics and Dolls, and Clocks and Watches were externally valued. The value 
disclosed in the Balance Sheet is the external valuation indexed up to the present day.  
 
(iv) Civic Regalia 

 
The Council’s Civic Regalia is reported in the Balance Sheet at insurance valuation. The valuation is 
updated annually as part of the insurance renewal process. The Council’s Civic Regalia comprises of 
a Mayor’s chain and pendant, the collar of the Mayor of Preston and the Mayor’s pendant and grand 
chain of the City of Preston. 
 
(v) Memorials 

 
Within the Council's Parks and Public Open Spaces there are a number of war memorials. These 
memorials have been previously held under property, plant & equipment and held at historical cost on 
the Balance Sheet at a nominal value. Therefore, these memorials have been transferred to heritage 
assets on the same valuation basis.  
 
(vi) Heritage Assets – General 

 
The carrying amounts of Heritage Assets are reviewed where there is evidence of impairment for 
Heritage Assets, for example where an item has suffered physical deterioration or breakage. Any 
impairment is recognised and measured in accordance with the Council’s general policies on 
impairment. The Council rarely disposes of Heritage Assets. However, if the Council did dispose of a 
Heritage Asset the proceeds would be accounted for in accordance with the Council’s existing 
policies.  
 
 
25. Tax Income (National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR) and Council Tax) 
 
NNDR and Council Tax income included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for 
the year will be treated as accrued income and will be recognised in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement within the Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income line.  
 
As a Billing Authority, the difference between the NNDR and Council Tax included in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the amount required by regulation to be 
credited to the General Fund is taken to the Collection Fund Adjustment Account and reported in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement.  
 
NNDR and Council Tax income is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits or service 
potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Council, and the amount of revenue can be 
measured reliably. 
 

43



Notes to the Core Financial Statements 
 

Revenue relating to NNDR and Council Tax is measured at the full amount receivable (net of any 
impairment losses) as they are non-contractual, non-exchange transactions and there can be no 
difference between the delivery and payment dates. 
 
26. Acquisitions and Discontinued Operations 
 
When an operation has been discontinued all the assets, liabilities and associated reserves will be 
written out of the Council’s accounts and transferred to the new operating organisation.  In accordance 
with the Code of Practice, the Council is only required to account for discontinued operations if the 
activities have actually ceased. Transfers of services to another public sector body are not considered 
to be discontinued operations.  
 
27. Fair Value 
 
The Council measures some of its non-financial assets, such as surplus assets and investment 
properties, and some of its financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the 
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement assumes that the 
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:  
 
a) in the principal market for the asset or liability; or  

b) in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.  
 
The Council measures the fair value of an asset or liability on the same basis that market participants 
would use when pricing the asset or liability (assuming those market participants were acting in their 
economic best interest).  
When measuring the fair value of a non-financial asset, the Council takes into account a market 
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by 
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.  
 
The Council uses appropriate valuation techniques for each circumstance, maximising the use of 
relevant known data and minimising the use of estimates or unknowns in line with the highest and best 
use definition within the accounting standard. 
 
The inputs to valuations for fair value assets takes into account the three levels of categories for inputs 
to valuations for fair value assets:  
  

 level 1 – quoted prices;  
 level 2 – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the 

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and  
 level 3 – unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.  
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2. Accounting Standards Issued, Not Adopted







3. Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies

Pensions

Business Rates - NNDR

The effects on the net pensions liability of changes in individual assumptions can be measured. For instance, a
0.1% per annum increase in the discount rate assumption would result in a decrease in the pension liability of
£4.8m. Also, a one year addition to the members life expectancy would result in an increase in the pension
liability of £5.3m.

The items on the Council’s Balance Sheet for which there is a significant risk of material adjustment in the
forthcoming financial year are:-

Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a number of complex judgements relating to the
discount rate used, the rate at which salaries and pensions are projected to increase, changes in retirement
ages, mortality rates and expected returns on pension fund assets. A firm of consulting actuaries is engaged to
provide the Council with expert advice about the assumptions to be applied.  

Since the introduction of the Business Rates Retention Scheme effective 1 April 2013, Local Authorities are
liable for refunding ratepayers who have successfully appealed against the rateable value of their properties on
the rating list. A provision has been recognised for these liabilities up to and including 31 March 2016. The
estimate has been calculated using the Valuation Office (VAO) ratings list of appeals and the analysis of
successful appeals to date. The costs will be shared between Central Government, Preston City Council,
Lancashire County Council and Lancashire Fire Authority. The Council's share of the business rate appeals
provision is £4.02m, this has increased by £0.88m from the previous year.

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

4. Assumptions Made About the Future and Other Major Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In applying the accounting policies set out in Note 1, the Council has had to make certain judgements about
complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events. The critical judgement made in the
Statement of Accounts is:

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting 2016/17 has introduced changes in accounting policies
which will be required from 1st April 2016 as detailed below:

There is a high degree of uncertainty about future levels of funding for Local Government. However, the Council
has determined that this uncertainty is not yet sufficient to provide an indication that the assets of the Council
might be impaired as a result of a need to close facilities and reduce levels of service provision.

The Council's fixed assets are valued on the balance sheet in accordance with the statement of asset valuation 
principles and guidance notes issued by the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors. The Council carries out a 
rolling programme that ensures all Plant, Property and Equipment required to be measured at fair value is 
revalued within a five year cycle. All assets reviewed had a valuation date of 1 April 2015. Any material changes 
after the valuation date have been accounted for.

IAS1   Presentation of Financial Statements - This standard provides guidance on the form of the 
financial statements. The 'Telling the Story' review of the presentation of the Local Authority financial 
statements as well as the December 2014 changes to IAS 1 under the International Accounting 
Standards Board (IASB) Disclosure initiative will result in changes to the format of the accounts in 
2016/17. The format of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the Movement 
in Reserves Statement will change and a new Expenditure and Funding Analysis will be introduced.

The CIPFA Code of Practice on Transport Infrastructure Assets (the Infrastructure Code) takes 
effect from 1 April 2016. The Infrastructure Code confirms that the changes arising do not require 
retrospective adjustment to the accounts. Under the Code transport infrastructure assets will be 
recognised as a separate class of Property, Plant and Equipment and measured at depreciated 
replacement cost. This will consist of seven components: carriageways, footways and cycle tracks, 
structures, street lighting, street furniture, traffic management systems and land. As the Council is 
not a Highways authority, the adoption of the Infrastructure Code is not expected to have a material 
impact on the accounts.

Other minor changes due to Annual Improvement to IFRS cycles, IFRS11 Joint Arrangements, IAS 
16 Property, Plant and Equipment, IAS 38 Intangible Assets and IAS 19 Employee Benefits are not 
expected to have a material effect on the Council's Statement of Accounts.
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5. Events after the Balance Sheet Date

2014/15 2015/16
£'000 £'000
 172 Payments of precepts to parishes  184 

 4 Contributions of housing capital receipts to Government pool  6 
(136) (Gain)/loss on the disposal of non-current (fixed) assets (473)

 40  Total (283)

7. Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

2014/15 2015/16
£'000 £'000
 783 Interest payable and similar charges  806 

 2,991 Net interest on the net defined benefit liability  3,020 
(317) Interest receivable and similar income (228)

(1,188) (1,962)

 496 Trading undertakings  227 

 2,765  Total  1,863 

8. Taxation & Non-Specific Grant Income

2014/15 2015/16
£'000 Note £'000

(9,655) Council Tax (9,881)
(3,536) Business Rate Retention Scheme (4,133)
(7,954) General Government Grants 11 (6,923)

(550) Capital Grants & Contributions 11 (3,081)
(172) Parish Precepts (184)

(21,867)  Total (24,202)

9. Acquired and Discontinued Operations

Gross Gross Net Gross Gross Net

Expend Income Expend Expend Income Expend

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

 974 (343)  631 
Cultural and Related Services (Guild Hall 
Operation)

-                     -                  -                    

 5,298 -                   5,298 
Impairment of asset on transfer (Guild Hall 
Building)

-                     -                  -                    

 6,272 (343)  5,929 Net Cost of Discontinued Operations -                     -                  -                    

2014/15 2015/16

On the 23rd June 2016 the United Kingdom voted to leave the European Union in a referendum.  While many of 
the impacts of this decision are unclear at the current time, the subsequent sharp fall in long-term interest rates 
may  increase the fair value of the Council's long-term financial liabilities.  As the referendum decision has the 
potential to impact on future basis of assumptions and estimates the Council will ensure that this is considered 
in future years. 

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

The Council transferred the Guild Hall operation to Preston Guild Hall Limited (a private entity) on 20 October 2014. The 
building was transferred on a long term lease of 999 years.

6. Other Operating Expenditure

Income and expenditure in relation to investment properties and 
changes in their fair value

The City Treasurer (Section 151 Officer) has, on 21 September 2016, authorised that this Statement of
Accounts should be issued for distribution. This is the date up to which events after the balance sheet date have
been considered.
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2015/16

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Adjustments Primarily involving the Capital Adjustment Account

Reversal of Items debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement (CI&ES)

Charges for depreciation and impairment of non current assets (2,700)  2,700 

Revaluation losses on Property, Plant & Equipment (60)  60 

Movements in the market value of Investment Properties (181)  181 

Amortisation of intangible assets (25)  25 

Capital grants and contributions unapplied  577 (932)  355 

Revenue Expenditure funded from Capital under Statute (134)  134 

Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as part of the
gain/loss on disposal to the CI&ES

(89)  89 

Other Income (507)  507 

Insertion of Items not debited or credited to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement

Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment  693 (693)

Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund balance  314 (314)

Transfer in respect of Community Infrastructure Levy Receipts (2,150) 2,150

Adjustments Primarily involving the Capital Grants Unapplied Account

Application of grants to capital financing transferred to the Capital
Adjustment Account  85 -                   -                   (85)
Adjustments Primarily involving the Capital Receipts Reserve

Transfer of cash sale proceeds credited as part of the gain/loss on disposal
to the CI&ES

(562)  562 

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital expenditure  1,104 (1,104)

Contribution from the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance the payments to
the Government capital receipts pool.

 6 (6)

Transfer from Deferred Capital Receipts upon receipt of cash (6)  6 

Adjustments Primarily involving the Financial Instruments Adjustment
Account

Amount by which finance costs charged to the CI&ES are different from
finance costs chargeable in the year in accordance with statutory
requirements

 8 (8)

Adjustments Primarily involving the Pensions Reserve

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited to the
CI&ES

(7,821)  7,821 

Employer's pensions contributions and direct payments to pensioners
payable in the year

 4,429 (4,429)

Adjustments Primarily involving the Collection Fund Adjustment
Account

Amount by which Council Tax/NNDR income credited to the CI&ES is
different from Council Tax/NNDR income collected for the year in
accordance with statutory requirements

 1,995 (1,995)

Adjustments Primarily involving the Accumulated Absences Account

Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the CI&ES on an accruals
basis is different from remuneration chargeable in year in accordance with
statutory requirements

(4)  4 

Total Adjustments (1,815) (570) (35)  2,420 

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

Usable Reserves

General 
Fund 

Balance

Capital 
Receipts 
Reserve

Capital 
Grants 

Unapplied

Movement 
in Unusable 

Reserves

10. Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulations  

This note details the adjustments that are made to the total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
recognised by the Council in the year in accordance with proper accounting practice to the resources that are
specified by statutory provisions as being available to the Council to meet future capital and revenue expenditure.
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2014/15

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Adjustments Primarily involving the Capital Adjustment Account

Reversal of Items debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement (CI&ES)

Charges for depreciation and impairment of non current assets (2,643)  2,643 -                   -                   

Revaluation losses on Property, Plant & Equipment (6,431)  6,431 -                   -                   

Movements in the market value of Investment Properties (235)  235 -                   -                   

Amortisation of intangible assets (41)  41 -                   -                   

Capital grants and contributions unapplied  264 (327) -                    63 

Revenue Expenditure funded from Capital under Statute (201)  201 -                   -                   

Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as part of the
gain/loss on disposal to the CI&ES

(188)  188 -                   -                   

Other Income -                    (1,018)  1,018 -                   

Insertion of Items not debited or credited to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement

Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment  1,005 (1,005) -                   -                   

Capital expenditure charged against General Fund balance  270 (270)

Transfer in respect of Community Infrastructure Levy Receipts
-                    (222)  222 

Adjustments Primarily involving the Capital Grants Unapplied Account

Application of grants to capital financing transferred to the Capital
Adjustment Account

 52 -                   -                   (52)

Adjustments Primarily involving the Capital Receipts Reserve

Transfer of cash sale proceeds credited as part of the gain/loss on disposal
to the CI&ES

-                    (325)  325 -                   

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital expenditure  1,430 -                   (1,430) -                   

Contribution from the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance the payments to
the Government capital receipts pool.

-                     4 (4) -                   

Transfer from Deferred Capital Receipts upon receipt of cash (4) -                    4 -                   

Adjustments Primarily involving the Financial Instruments Adjustment
Account

Amount by which finance costs charged to the CI&ES are different from
finance costs chargeable in the year in accordance with statutory
requirements

 7 (7) -                   -                   

Adjustments Primarily involving the Pensions Reserve

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited to the
CI&ES

(6,791)  6,791 -                   -                   

Employer's pensions contributions and direct payments to pensioners
payable in the year

 4,177 (4,177) -                   -                   

Adjustments Primarily involving the Collection Fund Adjustment
Account

Amount by which Council Tax/NNDR income credited to the CI&ES is
different from Council Tax/NNDR income collected for the year in
accordance with statutory requirements

(287)  287 -                   -                   

Adjustments Primarily involving the Accumulated Absences Account

Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the CI&ES on an accruals
basis is different from remuneration chargeable in year in accordance with
statutory requirements

(5)  5 -                   -                   

Total Adjustments (9,621)  9,475 (87)  233 

10. Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulations (cont'd)

This note details the adjustments that are made to the total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
recognised by the Council in the year in accordance with proper accounting practice to the resources that are
specified by statutory provisions as being available to the Council to meet future capital and revenue expenditure.

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

Usable Reserves
General 

Fund 
Balance

Capital 
Receipts 
Reserve

Capital 
Grants 

Unapplied

Movement 
in Unusable 

Reserves
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2014/15 2015/16
£'000 £'000

Credited to Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income
Non-ringfenced government grants

 173 New Burdens Grant  232 
 5,542 Revenue Support Grant  3,778 

 278 General Section 31 Grants  578 
 878 New Homes Bonus Grant  977 

 1,083 Business Rates Section 31 Grants  1,358 
 7,954 6,923 

Capital grants and contributions
-                  Disabled Facilities Grant  103 

 222 Community Infrastructure Levy  2,149 
-                  Lancashire County Council  213 

 224 National Lottery Distribution Fund  390 
-                  Lancashire Environmental Fund  85 

 44 Section 106  57 
 60 Other  84 

 550 3,081 

 8,504 Total 10,004 

2014/15 2015/16
£'000 £'000

Credited to Services
Grants Received for Capital Purposes

 517 Disabled Facilities Grant  522 
-                  Community Infrastructure Levy  721 

 526 Other Capital Grants & Contributions  536 
 1,043 Total Grants Received for Capital Purposes 1,779 

Grants received for Revenue Purposes
 106 Electoral Commission (Elections Claims Unit)  92 

 50,075 Department for Work & Pensions Housing Benefits  47,944 
 198 DCLG Localised Council Tax Support Admin Grant  193 
 106 Department for Work & Pensions  129 

 66 Sport England  77 
 11 Football Foundation -                  
 10 Arts Council  106 

 126 Heritage Lottery Fund  215 
 28 Museums Association  37 

-                  Big Local  27 
 81 Other  127 

 50,807 Total Grants Received for Revenue Purposes  48,947 

 51,850 Total Credited to Services  50,726 

2014/15 2015/16
£'000 £'000

Capital Grants Receipts in Advance
 1,272 Heritage Lottery Fund 1,272 
 2,555 North West Development Agency 2,555 
 3,827 Total 3,827 

The Council credited the following grants, contributions and donations to the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure
Statement in 2015/16:

11. Grant Income

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

The Council has received a number of grants, contributions and donations that have yet to be recognised as income
as they have conditions attached to them that could require the monies or property to be returned to the giver. The
balances at year end are as follows:
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12. Property, Plant & Equipment 

Movements on Balances 2015/16 Total
Other Vehicles, Infrastructure Community Surplus Asset

Land and Plant and Assets Assets Assets Under
Buildings Equipment Construction

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Cost or Valuation as at 1 April 2015 51,628 13,226 9,200 11,902 2,807 -                       88,763 

Additions 717  989 29 563 -                      35  2,333 

Revaluation increase/(decrease) and Impairment reversals / (losses) 
recognised in Revaluation Reserve 4,901 -                       -                          -                      237 -                       5,138 

Derecognition - disposals -                        (346) -                          -                      -                      -                      (346)

Revaluation increase/(decrease) and Impairment reversals / (losses)
recognised in the Surplus / Deficit on the Provision of Services (632) (123) -                          -                      -                      -                      (755)

Reclassifications  33 -                        -                           -                        (5) -                         28 

Cost or Valuation 31 March 2016 56,647 13,746 9,229 12,465 3,039 35  95,161 

Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment as at 1 April 2015

Accumulated Depreciation as at 1 April 2015 (3,513) (5,965) (2,199) -                      (23) -                      (11,700)

Accumulated Impairment as at 1 April 2015 (1,757) (10) (11) (122) (242) -                        (2,142)

Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment as at 1 April 2015 (5,270) (5,975) (2,210) (122) (265) -                        (13,842)

Depreciation charge for the year (976) (1,377) (323) -                        (13) -                        (2,689)

Depreciation written back to the Revaluation Reserve on revaluation 1,743 -                       -                          -                      -                      -                       1,743 

Depreciation written back to the Surplus / Deficit on the Provision of 
Services on revaluation 170  10 -                          -                      -                      -                       180 

Other movements in Depreciation and Impairment -                           257 -                           -                         5 -                         262 

Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment as at 31 March 2016 (4,333) (7,085) (2,533) (122) (273) -                        (14,346)

Net book value as at 31 March 2016 52,314 6,661 6,696 12,343 2,766 35  80,815 

Depreciation
The following useful lives and depreciation rates have been used in the calculation of depreciation:

Other Land and Buildings  Up to 95 years
Vehicles, Plant, Furniture and Equipment 3 -20 years
Infrastructure Up to 45 years
Surplus Assets Up to 65 years

Effects of Changes in Estimates
In 2015/16 the Council made no material changes in the way the accounting estimates for Property, Plant and Equipment were prepared.

Notes to the Core Financial Statements
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12. Property, Plant & Equipment (cont'd)

Movements on Balances 2014/15 Total
Other Vehicles, Infrastructure Community Surplus

Land and Plant and Assets Assets Assets
Buildings Equipment

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Cost or Valuation as at 1 April 2014 59,849 12,648 9,174 11,559 2,166 95,396 

Additions 771  1,038 26 345 -                       2,180 

Revaluation increase/(decrease) and Impairment reversals / (losses) 
recognised in Revaluation Reserve (955) -                         -                          -                       296 (659)

Derecognition - disposals (35) (383) -                          -                       (14) (432)

Derecognition - Other -                          7 -                          -                       -                       7 

Revaluation increase/(decrease) and Impairment reversals / (losses)
recognised in the Surplus / Deficit on the Provision of Services (6,443) -                         -                          -                       (359) (6,802)

Reclassifications  159 -                          -                            -                          718  877 

Cost or Valuation 31 March 2015 53,346 13,310 9,200 11,904 2,807 90,567 

Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment as at 1 April 2014

Accumulated Depreciation as at 1 April 2014 (2,939) (4,964) (1,877) -                       (49) (9,829)

Accumulated Impairment as at 1 April 2014 (3,477) (94) (11) (122) (242) (3,946)

Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment as at 1 April 2014 (6,416) (5,058) (1,888) (122) (291) (13,775)

Depreciation charge for the year (918) (1,309) (322) -                       (18) (2,567)

Depreciation written back to the Revaluation Reserve on revaluation -                         -                         -                          -                       43 43 

Depreciation written back to the Surplus / Deficit on the Provision of 
Services on revaluation 264 -                         -                          -                       43 307 

Disposals - Derecognition 35  315 -                          -                       3 353 

Other movements in Depreciation and Impairment  45 (7) -                            -                         (45) (7)

Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment as at 31 March 2015 (6,990) (6,059) (2,210) (122) (265) (15,646)

Net book value as at 31 March 2015 46,356  7,251 6,990 11,782 2,542 74,921 

During 2014/15, the Council transferred the Guild Hall operations to a private company. The resulting transfer has meant that an impairment totalling £5.3m has been made 
on the Revaluation increase/(decrease) and Impairment reversals / (losses) recognised in the Surplus / Deficit on the Provision of Services line above. 

Depreciation
The following useful lives and depreciation rates have been used in the calculation of depreciation:

Other Land and Buildings  Up to 95 years
Vehicles, Plant, Furniture and Equipment 3 -20 years
Infrastructure Up to 45 years
Surplus Assets Up to 65 years

Effects of Changes in Estimates
In 2014/15 the Council made no material changes in the way the accounting estimates for Property, Plant and Equipment were prepared.

Notes to the Core Financial Statements
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 Information on Assets Held Number at Number at
31 March 2015 31 March 2016

Non-Current Assets owned by the Council include the following:-

Operational Buildings
Central Administration Buildings  1  1 
Other Office Buildings  4  4 
Sports Centres  2  2 
Markets  2  2 
Public Conveniences  13  13 
Depots  1  1 
Sub-depots  8  8 
Surface Car Parks  3  3 
Multi-storey Car Parks  2  2 
Cemetery  1  1 
Crematorium  1  1 

Operational Equipment
Vehicles  130  123 

Infrastructure Assets
Lock Gates  4  4 
Railway  1  1 
Swing Bridge  1  1 

Community Assets
Allotment Sites  6  6 
Community Centres  5  5 
Harris Museum & Library  1  1 
Parks and Recreation Grounds (acres)  524  524 
Park and Recreational Buildings and Structures  27  27 
Park Lodges/Houses  2  2 

Heritage Assets
War Memorial  7  7 
Works of Art (value over £100k)  34  38 

Investment and Other Buildings and Properties
Other Office Buildings  14  13 
Guild Hall / Theatre  1  1 
Farms (Land and Buildings)  2  2 
Garage Units  32  32 
Industrial Units  96  96 
Miscellaneous Land and Open Spaces (individual pieces of land)  207  207 
Retail and Commercial Units  66  66 
Surface Car Parks  19  19 

12. Property, Plant & Equipment (cont'd)

Notes to the Core Financial Statements
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 Capital Commitments

£'000
City Centre Investment Fund 559
Moor Park Infrastructure  64 
Total  623 

Total

Other Vehicles, Infra- Community Surplus Asset
Land and Plant & structure Assets Assets Not Under
Buildings Equipment Assets Held for Sale Construction

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Valued at historical cost                -  13,746 9,229 12,465 -                       35 35,475 

Valued at fair value as at;
31 March 2012  1,647 -                       -                     -                       700 -                      2,347 
31 March 2013  13,659 -                       -                     -                      -                      -                      13,659 
31 March 2014  5,749 -                                          -                     -  158 -                      5,907 
31 March 2015  1,100 -                                          -                     -  958 -                      2,058 
31 March 2016  34,492 -                                          -                     -  1,223 -                      35,715 

Current Value 2015/16 
Total  56,647  13,746  9,229  12,465  3,039  35 95,161 

All the Council’s surplus assets have been assessed as Level 2 for valuation purposes (see Note 1 item 27 for explanation of
fair value levels).

The Council carries out a revaluation programme that ensures that all Property, Plant and Equipment required to be measured
at fair value is revalued at least every five years. 

Properties regarded by the Council as operational are to be valued on the basis of existing use value or, where this cannot be
assessed because there is no market for the subject asset, the depreciated replacement cost. Valuations of vehicles, plant,
furniture and equipment are based on depreciated historic cost.

The following statement shows the progress of the Council’s programme for the revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

Property, Plant & Equipment

The Council's property portfolio is valued by the Property Services Manager within the Property Services Department.
Valuations of land and buildings were carried out in accordance with the methodologies and bases for estimation set out in the
professional standards of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. All valuations were carried out internally.

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

12. Property, Plant & Equipment (cont'd)

Depreciation

Depreciation is charged on a straight line basis on all fixed and intangible assets with a finite useful life. Newly acquired
assets are depreciated from the year following acquisition.

During the period a review of the estimate of useful lives and residual values has been undertaken on all significant assets.

As at 31st March 2016, the Council was contractually committed to a total of £0.623m. The individual capital schemes over 
the £0.025m individual threshold are as follows (2014/15 £0.320m): -

As at 31 March 2016

Asset Valuation
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13. Heritage Assets

Total
Fine Decorative Social Civic 
Art Art History Regalia

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Cost or Valuation as at 1 April 2014  28,871  3,018  280  208  32,377 

Additions -                          -                          -                        -                        -                        

Revaluation Gains  457  75  8 -                         540 

Revaluation Losses recognised in the Revaluation Reserve -                          -                          -                        -                        -                        

31 March 2015  29,328  3,093  288  208  32,917 

Cost or Valuation as at 1 April 2015 29,328 3,093 288 208 32,917 

Additions -                          -                          -                        -                        -                        

Revaluation Gains  650  77  8 -                         735 

Revaluation Losses recognised in the Revaluation Reserve -                          -                          -                        -                        -                        

31 March 2016  29,978  3,170  296  208  33,652 

Additions of Heritage Assets

Further Information on Collections, Heritage Assets of Particular Importance and Preservation and Management can be found in the Harris Museum and Art Gallery 
Collection Development Policy (http://www.harrismuseum.org.uk/collections). 

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

The Heritage Assets held by the Council fall into four categories: Fine Art, Decorative Art, Social History and Civic Regalia. All these categories have been in the Council’s
ownership for a number of years and are held for their intrinsic worth as opposed to potential financial gain. As such, they are unlikely to be sold. The Council's Fine and
Decorative Art collection is reported in the Balance Sheet at an indexed external valuation which is based on market value at the time of the valuation. Also, some items
are held at an insurance valuation which is also based on market values. The Council's Social History Collection is disclosed in the accounts as at the valuation in 1996
indexed up to the 31st March 2016. The Civic Regalia as reported on the Balance Sheet is valued annually as part of the insurance renewal process. According to the
Code there is no prescribed minimum period between valuations and so the Council does not intend to revalue its Heritage Assets in the near future. 

There has been no purchased additions to the Heritage Asset portfolio during the 2015/16 financial year. 
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14[a]. Financial Instruments - Balances

Long Term Short Term Long Term Short Term

31/03/15 31/03/15 31/03/16 31/03/16
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Financial Assets

Investments

 5 -                   Loans and Receivables - Principal -                    -                  
-                    255 Loans and Receivables - Accrued interest -                    -                  
-                   -                   Available for Sale - Principal  12,057 -                  

 22,000 -                    10,001                 - 

 22,005  255 Total Investments  22,058 -                  

Debtors

 236  1,161  227  4,307 
 236  1,161  227  4,307 

-                    6,014 Debtors that are not financial instruments -                     3,406 

 236  7,175 Total Debtors  227  7,713 

Cash and Cash Equivalents

-                    7,915 Loans and Receivables - Cash (including bank accounts) -                     6,913 
-                    3 Loans and Receivables - Accrued Interest -                     4 
-                   -                   Available for Sale - Cash Equivalents at Fair Value -                     11,000 
-                   -                   Available for Sale - Accrued Interest -                     3 

-                    7,918 Total Cash and Cash Equivalents -                     17,920 

Long Term Short Term Long Term Short Term

31/03/15 31/03/15 31/03/16 31/03/16
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings

 17,511  186 Total Borrowing  17,505  189 

Creditors

-                    2,738 Financial liabilities at amortised cost -                     4,232 
-                    2,738 Total included in Creditors -                     4,232 
-                    6,738 Creditors that are not financial instruments -                     10,176 

-                    9,476 Total Creditors -                     14,408 

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

Financial liabilities at amortised cost - Loans (Principal sum 
borrowed)

Loans and receivables
Total included in Debtors

The categories of financial instrument are carried in the Balance Sheet:

 17,323  3  17,326 -

Fair Value through profit & loss - Investments held for trading

In 2014/15 the Council had £22m invested with one Fund Manager (Investec). In 2015/16 the Fund Manager changed the
type of investment activities that it undertakes and as a result the Council redeemed £8.7m of investments that were
classified as Fair Value through profit & loss at 31st March 2015. The £8.7m was re-invested in three new Money Market
Funds that are classified as available for sale at 31st March 2016. In addition, Government Bonds of £3.3m were
transferred from the Fund Manager Investec to the Council which are also now classified as available for sale.

 186 

 185 -                   

-                   -                    

 182 -                  

Financial liabilities at amortised cost - Loans (Accrued 
Interest)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost - Market Loans EIR 
Adjustment

 186 
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14[b]. Financial Instruments - Fair Values

Carrying 
amount Fair value

Carrying 
amount Fair value

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Restated

Financial Assets held at fair value:

Money Market Funds 1 -                    -                       8,739  8,739 

Bond Funds 1  22,000  22,000  10,001  10,001 

Government Bonds 1 -                    -                       3,318  3,318 

Assets for which fair value is not disclosed:

Cash & Cash Equivalents*  7,918  7,918  17,920  17,920 

Long-Term Investments  5  5 -                    -                        

Short-Term Investments  255  255 -                    -                        

Long-Term Debtors  236  236  227  227 

Short-Term Debtors  1,161  1,161  4,307  4,307 

Total Financial Assets  31,575  31,575  44,512  44,512 

Financial Liabilities held at amortised cost:

Long-term PWLB Loans 2  6,888  8,574 6,888 8,475

Long-term Market Loans 2  10,623  16,915 10,617 16,857

Liabilities for which fair value is not disclosed:

Short-term Creditors  2,738  2,738 4,232 4,232

Borrowing repayable within 12 months  186  186 189 189

Total Financial Liabilities  20,435  28,413  21,926  29,753 

The fair value of Long-term loans from PWLB has been restated as at 31st March 2015 based on International
Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 13 Fair Values in order to provide a meaningful comparator to the 31st March
2016.

Financial assets and financial liabilities represented by loans and receivables are carried on the balance sheet at
amortised cost. Their fair values can be assessed by calculating the present value of the cash flows that take place
over the remaining life of the instruments, using the following assumptions:

·  No early repayment or impairment is recognised for any financial instrument.

· The fair value of Non PWLB debt have been increased by the value of the embedded options. Lenders' options to
propose an increase to the interest rate on the loan have been valued according to a proprietary model for Bermudan
cancellable swaps. Borrower's contingent options to accept the increased rate or repay the loan have been valued at
zero, on the assumption that lenders will only exercise their options when market rates have risen above the
contractual loan rate.

· The fair value of short-term instruments, including creditors and debtors is assumed to be the invoiced or billed
amount.

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

The fair value of Financial Liabilities is greater than the carrying amount because the Council's portfolio of loans
includes a number of fixed rate loans where the interest rate payable is higher than the rates available for similar
loans in the market at the balance sheet date.  

31 March 2016

Fair values are shown in the table below, split by their level in the fair value hierarchy:

31 March 2015
Fair 

Value 
Level

Level 1 - fair value is only derived from quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities∙

∙
Level 2 - fair value is calculated from inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset
or liability, e.g. interest rates or yields for similar instruments
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14 [c].  Financial Instruments - Risks

(i) Key Risks

-

-

-

(ii) Overall Procedures for Managing Risk

-

-

-









-

(iii) Credit risk





AA+.
 Limits on investments in certain sectors (eg. Money Market Funds, Building Societies, foreign

countries).

The Annual Treasury Management Strategy which incorporates the prudential indicators was approved by Council in
February 2015. This was updated in the Mid Year Prudential Indicators and Treasury Management Monitoring Report in
December 2015.

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

Credit risk – the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to the Council;

Liquidity risk – the possibility that the Council might not have funds available to meet its commitments to make
payments; and,

The Council’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, the key risks are:

Its maximum and minimum exposures of the maturity structure of its debt; and

UK or EU Member Banks domiciled in a country with a minimum sovereign long term rating of

The key areas of the Investment Strategy are that the minimum criteria for investment counterparties include:

Credit ratings of a minimum of Long Term A-.

Market risk - the possibility that financial loss might arise for the Council as a result of changes in such measures as
interest rate movements.

The Council's overall risk management procedures focus on the unpredictability of financial markets, and implementing
controls to minimise these risks. The procedures for risk management are set out through a legal framework as per the
Local Government Act 2003 and the associated regulations. These require the Council to comply with the CIPFA
Prudential Code, the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management in the Public Services and investment guidance
issued through the Act.  Overall these procedures require the Council to manage risk in the following ways:

by approving annually in advance prudential indicators for the following three years limiting:

The Council's overall borrowing;

by the adoption of a Treasury Policy Statement and Treasury Management Procedures within the Constitution.

by formally adopting the requirements of the CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice;

Its maximum exposures to fixed and variable rates;

Its maximum annual exposures to investments maturing beyond a year.

This risk is minimised through the Annual Investment Strategy, which requires that deposits are not made with financial
institutions unless they meet identified minimum credit criteria, in accordance with the Fitch, Moody's and Standard &
Poors Credit Ratings Services. The Annual Investment Strategy also imposes a maximum amount and time to be
invested with a financial institution located within each category.  

Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to the Council's
customers.  

by approving an investment strategy for the forthcoming year setting out its criteria for both investing and selecting
investment counterparties in compliance with the Government guidance.

These are required to be reported and approved before the start of the year to which they relate. These items are
reported with the Annual Treasury Management Strategy which outlines the detailed approach to managing risk in
relation to the Council's financial instrument exposure. Actual performance is also reported quarterly to the Cabinet
Member (Resources), mid year to Council and after year end to Cabinet.

Treasury policies are implemented by an in-house treasury team. The Council maintains written principles for overall risk
management, as well as written policies covering specific areas, such as interest rate risk, credit risk, and the investment
of surplus cash through Treasury Management Practices (TMPs).  
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 14 [c] Financial Instruments - Risks cont'd  

(iii) Credit risk (cont'd)

31/03/2016

Historical 
experience 

of default

Adjustment 
for market 

conditions at 
31/03/16

Estimated 
maximum 

exposure to 
default

£'000 % % £'000
a b a * b

Debtors 4,307 10.57% 455

4,307 455

2015/16
£'000

Less than three months 319 
Three months to one year 132 
More than one year 74 

525 

(iv) Liquidity risk

The maturity analysis of financial liabilities is as follows:

2014/15 2015/16

£'000 £'000
 2,924 Less than one year  4,421 

 3 Between one and two years  3 
 9 Between two and five years  5,009 

 5,015 Between five and ten years  15 
 12,484 More than ten years  12,478 
 20,435  21,926 

 524 

The Council manages its liquidity position through the risk management procedures above (the setting and
approval of prudential indicators and the approval of the treasury and investment strategy reports), as well as
through a comprehensive cash flow management system, as required by the CIPFA Code of Practice. This seeks
to ensure that cash is available when needed.

The Council has ready access to borrowings from the money markets to cover any day to day cash flow
requirements, and access to the Public Works Loans Board and money markets for longer term funds. The
Council is required to provide a balanced budget through the Local Government Finance Act 1992, which ensures
sufficient monies are raised to cover annual expenditure.  

 382 
 116 

 26 

£'000

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

The following analysis summarises the Council’s potential maximum exposure to credit risk from trade debtors
based on local historical experience over the last three financial years.

The Council does not generally allow credit for its debtors. Of the £4.3m (£1.16m 2014/15) outstanding for
debtors, £0.752m (£0.752m 2014/15) is overdue. The overdue but not impaired amount (impaired amount
£0.227m 2015/16) can be analysed by age as follows:

2014/15
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 14 [c] Financial Instruments - Risks cont'd  

(iv) Liquidity risk (cont'd)

The maturity analysis of financial assets is as follows:

2014/15 2015/16
£'000 £'000

 31,347  44,295 
 28  31 
 23  22 

 177  164 
 31,575  44,512 

(v) Market risk (Interest Rate Risk)

£'000
(437)

 75 
(362)

110
 110 

(2,324)

15. Provisions

Out of Date 
Cheques 

(a)
Insurance 

Fund (b)
Redundancy 

(c)
Accumulated 
Absences (d)

Municipal 
Mutual 

Insurance 
(e)

NNDR 
Provision 

for 
Appeals (f) Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

As at 1 April 2015  15  274  863  154  82  3,413  4,801 

 2 -                  -                      158 -                 4,018  4,178 
(1) (10) (863) -                      (63) -                  (937)

-                  -                  -                     (154) -                (3,413) (3,567)

-                  -                  -                     -                      (19) -                  (19)

As at 31 March 2016  16  264 -                   158 -              4,018  4,456 

Purpose of Provisions
(a)
(b)
(c)

(d) Accumulated Absences - to meet accumulated benefits such as annual leave untaken at year end.
(e)

(f)

-  investments at variable rates - the interest income will rise
-  investments at fixed rates - the fair value of the assets will fall

Decrease in fair value of investments held for trading

Decrease in fair value of available for sale financial assets
Impact on Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Redundancy - to cover redundancy costs for employees that have received written notice but have not left the 
council.

Municipal Mutual Insurance - this was the Council's former insurer and it became insolvent and ceased trading in 
1992.  Under the terms of the Scheme of Arrangement, the Council is required to make a payment to achieve a 
solvent run-off.  

NNDR Provision for Appeals - this is to cover future losses in income as a result of refunding ratepayers who 
successfully appeal against the rateable value of their properties. 

The approximate impact of a 1% fall in interest rates would be as above but with the movements being reversed.  

The Council is exposured to risk in terms of its exposure to interest rate movements on its borrowings and investments.
Movements in interest rates have a complex impact on the Council. For instance, a rise in interest rates would have the
following effects:

If interest rates had been 1% higher (with all other variables held constant) the financial effect would be:

Increase in interest receivable on variable rate investments

Impact on Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services

Decrease in fair value of fixed rate borrowings liabilities (no impact on Comprehensive Income &
Expenditure Statement) 

Additional provisions made 
in 2015/16

Unused amounts reversed 
in 2015/16

Amounts used in 2015/16

Out of Date Cheques - for re-issue of cheques which have not been presented and have become out of date.
Insurance Fund - set up to meet certain risks, which would not be covered by the external insurers.

Amounts reclassified in 
2015/16

-  borrowings at fixed rates - the fair value of the liabilities will fall

More than three years

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

Amounts payable relating to statutory debts, eg. council tax, non-domestic rates are not included in the analysis above as
they are outside the scope of the Financial Instrument provisions.

Less than one year
Between one and two years
Between two and three years
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2014/15 2015/16

£'000 £'000
 41,714 Balance as at 1 April  40,493 

(109) Disposals -                       
(235) Net gains/losses from fair value adjustments (182)
(877) Transfers (to)/from Property, Plant & Equipment (485)

 40,493 Balance as at 31 March  39,826 

Recurring fair 
value 
measurements 
using:

Quoted prices 
in active 
markets for 
identical 
assets (Level 
1)

Other 
significant 
observable 
inputs (Level 2)

Significant 
unobservable 
inputs (Level 3)

Fair value as 
at 31 March 

2016
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Advert Hoarding 124 -                           -                              124
Agricultural 1,155 -                           -                              1,155
Car Parks 559 -                           -                              559
Garages 130 -                           -                              130
Ground Rents - Industrial -                          9,261 -                              9,261
Ground Rents - Office -                          6,674 -                              6,674
Ground Rents - Other -                          9,879 -                              9,879
Ground Rents - Retail -                          4,873 -                              4,873
Industrial 4,860 -                           -                              4,860
Licenced Property 42 -                           -                              42
Ofiices 332 -                           -                              332
Retail 1,372 -                           -                              1,372
Retail Housing Shops 565 -                           -                              565
Total 9,139 30,687 0 39,826

2015 Comparative Figures

Recurring fair 
value 
measurements 
using:

in active 
markets for 
identical 
assets (Level 
1)

Other 
significant 
observable 
inputs (Level 2)

Significant 
unobservable 
inputs (Level 3)

Fair value as 
at 31 March 

2015
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Advert Hoarding 126 -                           -                              126
Agricultural 1,106 -                           -                              1,106
Car Parks 720 -                           -                              720
Garages 141 -                           -                              141
Ground Rents - Industrial -                          9,254 -                              9,254
Ground Rents - Office -                          6,672 -                              6,672
Ground Rents - Other -                          9,848 -                              9,848
Ground Rents - Retail -                          4,854 -                              4,854
Industrial 4,936 -                           -                              4,936
Licenced Property 42 -                           -                              42
Ofiices 371 -                           -                              371
Retail 1,864 -                           -                              1,864
Retail Housing Shops 559 -                           -                              559
Total 9,865 30,628 0 40,493

Transfers between Levels of the Fair Value Hierarchy
There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 during the year.

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

16 (b). Fair Value Hierarchy

16 (a). Investment Properties

The following table summarises the movement in the fair value of investment properties over the year.

Details of the Council's investment properties and information about the fair value hierarchy as at 31 March 2016 and 2015 
are as follows:
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As at 31 
March 2015

As at 31 
March 2016

£'000 £'000

 1,201 Central Government Bodies  239 
 2,324 Other Local Authorities  1,818 

 16 NHS Bodies  7 
 646 Public Corporations and Trading Funds  454 

 2,484 Other Entities and Individuals  4,790 
 504 Payments in Advance  405 

 7,175 TOTAL  7,713 

2014/15 2015/16
£'000 £'000

 3,827 Balance as at 1 April  3,827 
-                     Received during the year -                       
-                     Conditions met and released during the year -                       

 3,827 Balance as at 31 March  3,827 

19. Cash & Cash Equivalents

The balance of cash and cash equivalents is made up of the following:

As at 31 
March 2015

As at 31 
March 2016

£'000 £'000

 7 Cash held by the Authority  7 
 6,083 Bank Current Accounts  2,262 
 2,350 Short Term Deposits under 3 months  16,005 

(522) Bank Overdraft (354)
 7,918 Total Cash & Cash Equivalents  17,920 

As at 31 
March 2015

As at 31 
March 2016

£'000 £'000
 2,613 Central Government Bodies  5,442 

 723 Other Local Authorities  1,596 
-                     NHS Bodies  4 

 543 Public Corporations and Trading Funds  656 
 1,846 Other Entities and Individuals  2,330 
 3,751 Income Received in Advance  4,380 
 9,476 TOTAL  14,408 

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

17. Short Term Debtors

18. Capital Grants Receipts in Advance

20. Creditors
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21. Usable Reserves

21[a]. Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves 

Balance as at 
01/04/15 Transfers Out

Transfers 
In

Balance 
as at 

31/03/16

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

(a) Capital Reserves      348 (104)  35  279 
(b) Building Control  47 (19)  35  63 

(c) Voluntary Set Aside for Debt Repayment  1,736 -                      481  2,217 
(d) IT Fund General Reserve  638 (133)  100  605 
(e) Legal Matters Reserve  160 -                      40  200 
(f) Land Charges  159 (11)  54  202 
(g) Performance Reward Grant  14 (14) -                 -                
(h) Land Charges New Legislation Reserve  214 (169) -                  45 
(i) City Centre Regeneration  168 (46) -                  122 
(j) Housing & Council Tax Benefit  173 (17)  139  295 
(k) Investment Properties Dilapidations Reserve  110 -                      27  137 
(l) Alleygate Maintenance Reserve  21 -                     -                  21 

(m) Municipal Mutual Insurance  455 -                      19  474 
(n) General Commuted Sums  635 -                     -                  635 
(o) Community Related Assets Reserve  5,626 -                     -                  5,626 
(p) Localising Council Tax Support  206 (31)  38  213 
(q) Council Tax Equalisation Reserve  53 -                     -                  53 
(r) Business Rates Equalisation Reserve  1,568 (1,294)  70  344 
(s) Guild Reserve  1,000 -                     -                  1,000 
(t) Counter Fraud Fund Reserve  36 (34) -                  2 
(u) Arts & Cultural Strategy Reserve  98 (86) -                  12 
(v) Individual Electoral Registration Reserve  76 -                      67  143 
(w) City Deal Reserve  803 -                      781  1,584 
(x) Large Site Capacity Fund  93 (93) -                 -                
(y) Vehicle Maintenance Reserve  50 -                     -                  50 
(z) Cemetery & Crematorium Reserve  40 -                      40  80 

(aa) Public Health Initiative  102 (59)  16  59 
(ab) Riversway Maintenance Reserve -                     -                      25  25 
(ac) Community Infrastructure Levy Admin -                     -                      71  71 
(ad) Efficiency Planning Reserve -                     -                      173  173 

Total  14,629 (2,110)  2,211  14,730 

Purpose of Earmarked Reserves

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

(h)

(i)

(j) Housing & Council Tax Benefit Conversion Voluntary set aside for completion of Department for Work & Pensions 
benefit assessment and reform projects.

Voluntary set aside available for financing development/regeneration costs.City Centre Regeneration

Legal Matters Reserve

Land Charges

Performance Reward Grant Reserve

Land Charges New Legislation Reserve

Voluntary set aside for future legal fees that may arise.

Surpluses generated on Land Charges set aside for reinvestment into the
service.

Voluntary set aside to support Preston Strategic Projects bids.

Voluntary set aside for potential claims of Land Charge refunds.

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

Capital Reserves

Building Control

Voluntary Set Aside for Debt Repayment

IT Fund General Reserve Funding of new IT initiatives and development of IT systems.

Revenue funds set aside to help finance future capital projects.

Surpluses generated on Building Control Trading services set aside to
support continuing service delivery.

Voluntary set aside for the repayment of debt in respect of the replacement
and purchase of vehicles.

The overall movements in the Council's Usable Reserves can be seen in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Further
details on the movements in the individual Earmarked Reserves can be found below, along with an explanation of the
purpose of each reserve.
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21[a]. Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves (cont'd)

(k)

(l)

(m)

(n)

(o)

(p)

(q)

(r)

(s)

(t)

(u)

(v)

(w)

(x)

(y)

(z)

(aa)

(ab)

(ac)

(ad)

21[b]. Capital Grant Unapplied 

Balance 
as at 

01/04/14
Receipts 

in Year
Payments 

in Year

Balance 
as at 

01/04/15
Receipts 

in Year
Payments 

in Year Transfer
Balance as 
at 31/03/16

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

(a)
Section 106 Unapplied Capital  838  44 (20)  862  57 (20) -                  899 

(b) Unapplied Capital Grants & 
Contributions  64  19 -                    83  298 (11) -                  370 

(c)

Community Infrastructure Levy  54  748 (558)  244  3,073 (774) (204)  2,339 

Total  956  811 (578)  1,189  3,428 (805) (204)  3,608 

Income received in advance for Public Health Initiatives & Welfare Reforms.

Voluntary set aside to fund future maintenance on the dock gates.

Commuted sums set aside to cover the future maintenance of assets which have 
been adopted by the Council.

Sums set aside for financing maintenance expenditure associated with the transfer of 
Community Related Assets from the Homes and Communities Agency endowment.

Voluntary set aside to support the new Localised Council Tax Support scheme.

Voluntary set aside to cover potential future deficits in council tax incomes.

Voluntary set aside to cover potential future deficits in business rates income.

Voluntary set aside for the Preston Guild, an important and historic event held every 
20 years dating back to the granting of Preston's first Charter in 1179.  The next 
Preston Guild is 2032.

Voluntary set aside Department for Work & Pensions grant for establishment of the 
Corporate Fraud Team.

Voluntary set aside to fund investment in the Arts & Cultural offer of the City.

Set aside of Government Grant to fund Individual Electoral Register.

Set aside of Community Provision relating to City Deal.

Public Health Initiatives

Vehicle Maintenance Reserve

Cemetery & Crematorium Reserve

Individual Electoral Registration Reserve

City Deal Reserve

Large Site Capacity Fund

Counter Fraud Fund Reserve

Department for Communities & Local Government Large Site Infrastructure 
Programme grant for the North West Preston Development.

Voluntary set aside to fund future vehicle maintenance costs.

Voluntary set aside to fund future capital maintenance costs.

Localising Council Tax Support

Council Tax Equalisation Reserve

Business Rates Equalisation Reserve

Guild Reserve

Arts & Cultural Strategy Reserve

General Commuted Sums

Community Related Assets Reserve

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

Investment Properties Dilapidations 
Reserve

Alleygate Maintenance Reserve

Municipal Mutual Insurance Reserve

Voluntary set aside for dilapidation works.

Voluntary set aside for maintenance of alleygates.

Voluntary set aside to cover the risk of claw back under the Municipal Mutual 
Insurance (MMI) Scheme of Arrangement.

Riversway Maintenance Reserve

Community Infrastructure Levy Admin

Efficiency Planning Reserve

Set aside of the 5% admin fee allowable under the CIL regulation 123 to fund 
activities concerned with monitoring and reporting on CIL activity.

Set aside towards funding one-off costs of the implementation of the next three years 
savings plan. 
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22. Unusable Reserves

31 March 
2015

31 March 
2016

£'000 £'000
 51,387 Revaluation Reserve  58,181 

(486) Financial Instruments Adjustment Account (478)
 74,590 Capital Adjustment Account  74,491 
(96,768) Pensions Reserve (82,332)

 10 Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve  4 
(2,164) Collection Fund Adjustment Account (169)

-                 Available for Sale Financial Instruments Reserve  15 
(154) Accumulated Absences Account (158)

 26,415 Total Unusable Reserves  49,554 

22[a]. Revaluation Reserve

2014/15 2015/16
£'000 £'000

 51,787 Balance as at 1 April  51,387 

 929 Upward revaluation of assets  7,418 

(1,093) (307)

(164)  7,111 

-                 -                  

(232) (317)
(4) Accumulated gains on assets sold or scrapped

 51,387 Balance as at 31 March  58,181 

 revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost;
 used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation; and,

 disposed of and the gains realised.

22[b]. Financial Instruments Adjustment Account

2014/15 2015/16
£'000 £'000
(493) Balance as at 1 April (486)

 6  6 

 1  2 

(486) Balance as at 31 March (478)

The Financial Instruments Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for
accounting for income and expenses relating to certain financial instruments and for bearing losses or benefiting from
gains per statutory provisions.

The Council uses the Account to manage premiums paid on the early redemption of loans. Premiums are written down to 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement over the term remaining on the loan.

Transfer from Capital Adjustment Account for Change in Accounting 
Estimates / Prior year Revaluation Reserve adjustments
Difference between fair value depreciation and historical cost 
depreciation

Proportion of premiums incurred in previous financial years to be charged against 
the General Fund Balance in accordance with statutory requirements

Adjustment to carrying value of stepped Lender Option Borrower Option loan in 
accordance with statutory requirements

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

The Revaluation Reserve contains gains recognised since 1st April 2007 only, the date of its formal implementation.
Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into the Capital Adjustment Account.

The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Council arising from increases in the value of its Property,
Plant and Equipment (and Intangible Assets).  The balance is reduced when accumulated gains are:-

The Revaluation Reserve represents the gains on revaluation of fixed assets not yet realised through sales.

Downward revaluation of assets and impairment losses not charged 
to the (Surplus)/Deficit on the Provision of Services

Surplus or deficit on revaluation of non-current assets not posted to 
the (Surplus)/Deficit on the Provision of Services
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22[c]. Capital Adjustment Account

2014/15 2015/16
£'000 £'000

 81,072 Balance as at 1 April  74,590 

(2,643) Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-current assets (2,700)
(6,431) Revaluation losses on Property, Plant & Equipment (60)

(41) Amortisation of intangible assets (25)
(201) Revenue Expenditure funded from Capital under Statute (134)

(188)
Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as part of the gain/loss 
on disposal to the CI&ES (89)

(9,504) (3,008)

 235 Adjusting amounts written out of the Revaluation Reserve  318 
(9,269) Net written out amount of the cost of non-current assets consumed in the year (2,690)

Capital financing applied in the year:
 1,430 Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital expenditure  1,104 

 264 
Capital grants and contributions credited to the CI&ES that have been applied to 
capital financing  597 

 53 Application of grants to capital financing from the Capital Grants Unapplied Account  65 

 1,005 
Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment charged against the General 
Fund Balance  693 

 270 Capital Expenditure charged against the General Fund balance 314 
 3,022  2,773 

(235) (182)

 74,590 Balance as at 31 March 74,491 

22[d]. Pensions Reserve

2014/15 2015/16
£'000 £'000

(70,061) Balance as at 1 April (96,768)

(24,093) Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability  17,828 

(6,791)
Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited to the Surplus or 
Deficit on the Provision of Services in the CI&ES (7,821)

 4,177 

Employer's pensions contributions and direct payments to pensioners payable in the 
year  4,429 

(96,768) Balance as at 31 March (82,332)

The Account also contains revaluation gains accumulated on Property, Plant and Equipment before 1st April 2007, the
date that the Revaluation Reserve was created to hold such gains.

Movements in the market value of Investment Properties debited or credited to the 
CI&ES

The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting
for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the acquisition, construction or enhancement of those
assets under statutory provisions. The Account is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or enhancement as
depreciation, impairment losses and amortisations are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement (with reconciling postings from the Revaluation Reserve to convert fair value figures to a historical cost
basis). The Account is credited with the amounts set aside by the Council as finance for the costs of acquisition,
construction and enhancement.

The Account contains accumulated gains and losses on Investment Properties and gains recognised on donated
assets that have yet to be consumed by the Council.

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure debited or credited to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CI&ES):
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22[e]. Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve

2014/15 2015/16
£'000 £'000

 14 Balance as at 1 April  10 
(4) Transfer to the Capital Reserve upon receipt of cash (6)

 10 Balance as at 31 March  4 

22(f). Collection Fund Adjustment Account

2014/15 2015/16
£'000 £'000

Council Tax
(110) Balance as at 1 April (28)

 28  9 
 54  25 

(28) Balance as at 31 March  6 

Business Rates
(1,767) Balance as at 1 April (2,136)
(1,348)  3 

Renewable energy scheme income  2 
 979  1,956 

(2,136) Balance as at 31 March (175)

(2,164) Total Balance as at 31 March (169)

22[g]. Available for Sale Financial Instruments Reserve

2014/15 2015/16
£'000 £'000

- Balance as at 1 April -                   
- Upward revaluation of investments  27 
- (12)

- Balance as at 31 March  15 

22[h]. Accumulated Absences Account

2014/15 2015/16
£'000 £'000
(149) Balance as at 1 April (154)

 149 Settlement or cancellation of accrual made at the end of the preceding year  154 

(154) Amounts accrued at the end of the current year (158)

(5) (4)

(154) Balance as at 31 March (158)

The Accumulated Absences Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on the General Fund Balance
from accruing for compensated absences earned but not taken in the year, eg annual leave entitlement carried forward
at 31st March. Statutory arrangements require that the impact on the General Fund Balance is neutralised by transfers
to or from the Account.

Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement on an accruals basis is different from remuneration 
chargeable in the year in accordance with statutory requirements

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

The Collection Fund Adjustment Account allows for differences between the income included in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement and the amount required by regulation to be credited to the General Fund. The
balance on the account represents the Council's share of the Collection Fund surplus or deficit.

Share of Council Tax surplus / (deficit) for the year
(Surplus) / deficit transferred to the General Fund as determined by regulation

Deferred capital receipts represent capital income still to be received from earlier disposals of Council assets where
deferred payments had been agreed. Income still to be received is also accounted for within long term debtors. As
repayments are received into the Capital Receipts Reserve the deferred capital receipts reserve and long term debtors
are updated accordingly.

Share of Business Rates surplus / (deficit) for the year

(Surplus) / deficit transferred to the General Fund as determined by regulation

Downward revaluation of investments not charged to the Surplus/Deficit
on the Provision of Services

- revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost;
- disposed of and the gains realised

The Available for Sale Financial Instruments Reserve contains the gains made by the Council arising from increases in
the value of its investments that have quoted market prices or otherwise do not have fixed or determinable payments.
The balance is reduced when investments with accumulated gains are:
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23. Cash Flow Statement - Operating Activities

The cash flows for operating activities included the following items

2014/15 2015/16
£'000 £'000
 150 Interest Received  721 
(783) Interest Paid (815)

The Surplus or deficit on the provision of service has been adjusted for the following non-cash movements:

2014/15 2015/16
£'000 £'000

 2,260 Depreciation  2,510 
 6,814 Impairment and downward valuations  251 

 41 Amortisation  26 
-                Increase/(decrease) in impairment for bad 

debts -                  
 891 Increase/(decrease) in creditors  1,412 
(759) Increase/(decrease) in debtors (1,112)

 24 Increase/(decrease) in inventories  8 
 2,614 Movement in pension liability  3,392 

 188  89 

 2,501 (352)

 14,574  6,224 

The Surplus or deficit on the provision of service has been adjusted for the following items that are investing 
and financing activities:

2014/15 2015/16
£'000 £'000

-                 8,929 

(1,343) (1,069)

(549) (3,163)

(1,892)  4,697 

24. Cash Flow Statement - Investing Activities

2014/15 2015/16
£'000 £'000

(2,316) (2,353)

-                (8,750)
(6) (9)

 1,347  1,075 

 861  3,347 
(114) (6,690)

25. Cash Flow Statement - Financing Activities

2014/15 2015/16
£'000 £'000

-                -                  
 2,976  4,167 
(1,103) (3)
 1,873  4,164 Net cash flows from financing activities

Net cash flows from investing activities

Cash receipts of short and long-term borrowing

Repayments of short and long-term borrowing
Council tax and NNDR adjustments

Any other items for which the cash effects are investing or financing cash flows

Purchase of short-term and long-term investments

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

Other receipts from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment property and intangible assets

Other payments for investing activities
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, investment property and 
intangible assets

Carrying amount of non-current assets and non-current assets held for sale, sold or 
derecognised
Other non-cash items charged to the net surplus or deficit on the provision of services

Adjusted net surplus or deficit on the provision of services for non-cash 

Proceeds from short-term (not considered to be cash equivalents) and long-term 
investments (includes investments in associates, joint ventures and subsidiaries)

Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, investment property and 
intangible assets
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The income and expenditure of the Council's Directorates as routinely reported to management is as follows:

Directorate Income & Expenditure 2015/16

Corporate
Customer 
Services

Development Environment
Other 

Services
Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

 307  6,606  5,958  6,088  200  19,159 

Government grants  94  1,199  15  2  3  1,313 
Total Income  401  7,805  5,973  6,090  203  20,472 

Employee expenses  2,471  8,294  2,064  8,301  1,492  22,622 
Other service expenses  1,475  3,131  1,437  4,777  572  11,392 

-                        (310) -                     (312) -                    (622)
Total Expenditure  3,946  11,115  3,501  12,766  2,064  33,392 

Net Cost of Services  3,545 3,310 (2,472) 6,676  1,861  12,920 

Directorate Income & Expenditure 2014/15

RESTATED
Corporate

Customer 
Services

Development Environment
Other 

Services
Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'001 £'000 £'000

                 333               7,141             5,870             6,231               262          19,837 

Government grants  116  1,218  12  1  36  1,383 
Total Income  449  8,359  5,882  6,232  298  21,220 

Employee expenses  2,919  9,379  1,971  9,270  1,479  25,018 

Other service expenses  1,293  3,228  988  4,969  661  11,139 

(10) (336) -                     (347) -                    (693)

Total Expenditure  4,202  12,271  2,959  13,892  2,140  35,464 

Net Cost of Services  3,753  3,912 (2,923)  7,660  1,842  14,244 

RESTATED
2014/15 2015/16

£'000 £'000

 14,244 Net expenditure in the Directorate Analysis  12,920 

 562 Net expenditure of services and support services not included in the Analysis (346)

Amounts in the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement not reported to 
 11,796 management in the Analysis  7,031 

Amounts included in the Analysis not included in the Comprehensive Income and 
(5,003) Expenditure Statement  1,917 

 21,599 Cost of Services in Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement  21,522 

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

26. Amounts Reported for Resource Allocation Decisions

The analysis of income and expenditure by service on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is 
that specified by the Best Value Accounting Code of Practice. However, routine  management reports are prepared on a 
different basis from the accounting policies used in the Financial Statements. In particular: 

Reconciliation of Directorate Income & Expenditure to Cost of Services in the Comprehensive Income and

Expenditure Statement

This reconciliation shows how the figures in the analysis of Directorate income and expenditure relate to the amounts included
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

●  the cost of retirement benefits is based on cash flows (payment of employer's pension contributions) rather than 
    current service cost of benefits accrued in the year. 
●  no charges are budgeted for in relation to the year end accrual for Accumulated Absences (annual and flexi leave 
    accrued but not yet claimed).

Fees, charges & other 
service income

Fees, charges & other 
service income

Support Service Recharges

Support Service Recharges
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Reconciliation to Subjective Analysis

2015/16

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
 A

n
a

ly
s

is

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

 a
n

d
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

 
n

o
t 

in
 A

n
a

ly
s

is

A
m

o
u

n
ts

 n
o

t 
re

p
o

rt
e

d
 t

o
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

fo
r 

d
e

c
is

io
n

 m
a

k
in

g

A
m

o
u

n
ts

 n
o

t 
in

cl
u

d
ed

 i
n

 I
&

E

E
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

a
l 

It
e

m
s

C
o

s
t 

o
f 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 A
m

o
u

n
ts

T
o

ta
l

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Fees, charges & other service 
income  19,159 -                      -                    (3,781) -                  15,378  507  15,885 

Interest and investment income -                  -                      -                    -                   -                 -                    2,145  2,145 

Income from council tax & 
retained NNDR income -                  -                      -                    -                   -                 -                    14,198  14,198 

Government grants and 
contributions  1,313  49,013 -                    -                   -                  50,326  10,004  60,330 

Total Income  20,472  49,013 -                    (3,781) -                  65,704  26,854  92,558 

Employee expenses  22,622 -                       2,317 (288)  24,651 -                    24,651 

Other service expenses  11,392  48,667 -                    (706)  59,353 -                    59,353 

Support Service recharges (622) -                      -                    (735) (1,357) -                   (1,357)
Depreciation, amortisation and 
impairment -                  -                       4,714 (135)  4,579  188  4,767 

Interest Payments -                  -                      -                    -                   -                    3,826  3,826 
Precepts & Levies -                  -                      -                    -                   -                    184  184 

Gain or Loss on Disposal of 
Non-current Assets -                  -                      -                    -                   -                   (473) (473)

Total Expenditure  33,392  48,667  7,031 (1,864) -                  87,226  3,725  90,951 

(Surplus) or Deficit on the 
provision of services  12,920 (346)  7,031  1,917 -                  21,522 (23,129) (1,607)

2014/15
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£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Fees, charges & other service 
income  19,836 -                      -                    (4,062) -                  15,774  1,361  17,135 

Interest and investment income -                  -                      -                    -                   -                 -                    1,243  1,243 
Income from council tax -                  -                      -                    -                   -                 -                    13,363  13,363 
Government grants and 
contributions  1,383  50,302 -                    -                   -                  51,685  8,504  60,189 

Total Income  21,219  50,302 -                    (4,062) -                  67,459  24,471  91,930 

Employee expenses  25,017 -                       1,422 (599) -                  25,840  305  26,145 
Other service expenses  11,139  50,864 -                    (1,047) -                  60,956  293  61,249 
Support Service recharges (693) -                      -                    (1,210) -                 (1,903)  376 (1,527)
Depreciation, amortisation and 
impairment -                  -                       10,374 (6,209) -                  4,165  5,537  9,702 
Interest Payments -                  -                      -                    -                   -                 -                    3,774  3,774 
Precepts & Levies -                  -                      -                    -                   -                 -                    172  172 

Gain or Loss on Disposal of 
Non-current Assets -                  -                      -                    -                   -                 -                   (136) (136)

Total Expenditure  35,463  50,864  11,796 (9,065) -                  89,058  10,321  99,379 

(Surplus) or Deficit on the 
provision of services  14,244  562  11,796 (5,003) -                  21,599 (14,150)  7,449 

This reconciliation shows how the figures in the analysis of Directorate income and expenditure relate to the subjective analysis of the
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

26. Amounts Reported for Resource Allocation Decisions (cont'd)
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27. Agency Services

2014/15 2015/16
£'000 £'000

 2,015 Revenues & Benefits Shared Service  1,803 
 2,015 1,803 

28. Members' Allowances

2014/15 2015/16
£'000 £'000

Allowances
 206    Basic  210 

 65    Special Responsibility  65 
 6    Mayoral Duties  6 
 1    Co-opted Members  2 

 278  283 
Expenses

 3    Travel & Subsistence  3 

 281 Total 286 

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

The Revenues and Benefits Shared Service was formed on 1st July 2011. It is a Jointly Controlled Operation
between Preston City Council and Lancaster City Council to collect Local Taxation and the administration of Housing
Benefit and Council Tax Support. Lancaster's Revenues and Benefits employees transferred to Preston City Council
at the start of the partnership. The total expenditure incurred is split 50/50 between the Authorities. A copy of the
Shared Service Statement of Accounts can be found on the Council's website. The 50% fee received from Lancaster
City Council for the service is detailed below:

On 1st June 2015 a Corporate Enquiry Team Shared Service was established between Preston and Lancaster City
Councils together with Fylde Borough Council. Its purpose was to protect the public purse and prevent, detect and
deter fraud. The host authority of the shared service is Preston City Council. The 2015/16 gross expenditure was
£0.124m and was fully funded through grant receipts received by Preston City Council.   
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29. Officers Remuneration

The numbers of employees whose remuneration (excluding employer's pension contributions)
for the year exceeded £50,000 are as follows:

2014/15 2015/16
No. No.

£50,000 - £54,999 -                -                

£55,000 - £59,999  5 *  4 *

£60,000 - £64,999  1  3 *

£65,000 - £69,999  3  3 *

£70,000 - £74,999  1  1 

£75,000 - £79,999 -                 1 *

£80,000 - £84,999  1  1 *

£85,000 - £89,999 -                 1 *

£90,000 - £94,999 -                -                

£95,000 - £99,999 -                 1 *

£100,000 - £104,999  1 -                

£105,000 - £109,999 -                -                

£110,000 - £114,999 -                -                

£115,000 - £119,999 -                 1 *

£120,000 - £124,999  1  1 

*

The number of exit packages with total cost per band and total cost of the compulsory and other
redundancies are set out in the table below:-

2014/15 2015/16 2014/15 2015/16 2014/15 2015/16 2014/15 2015/16
No. No. No. No. No. No. £'000 £'000

£0 - £20,000 -               40  13  9  13  49  153  166 

£20,001 - £40,000 -               -                 9  7  9  7  245  187 

£40,001 - £60,000 -               -                 2  2  2  2  83  112 

£60,001 - £80,000 -               -                -                 4 -                 4 -                 283 

£80,001 - £100,000  1 -                -                 1  1  1  83  83 

£100,001 - £150,000 -               -                -                 2 -                 2 -                 260 

£150,001 - £200,000 -               -                -                -              -                -               -                -                

£200,001 - £250,000 -               -                -                 1 -                 1 -                 218 

£250,001 - £300,000 -               -                -                 1 -                 1 -                 252 

Total cost included in bandings  564  1,561 

Add: Amounts provided for in CI&ES not included in bandings  863  4 

Less: Amounts previously provided for in CI&ES now included in bandings (863)
Total cost included in CI&ES  1,427  702 

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

The Council's 2015/16 Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement includes £0.004m relating to exit
packages in 2014/15 not being fully provided for. There was additional provision in 2014/15 of £0.863m relating to
12 exit packages agreed for 2015/16, but for which no payments were made in 2014/15. This provision is reversed
out in 2015/16 as the payments have been made and included in the relevant bandings in 2015/16.

bands affected by a total of 1 termination payment made during 2014/15 and 8 during 2015/16

Number of 
compulsory 

redundancies

Exit package cost band 
(including special 
payments)

Number of other 
departures agreed

Total number of 
exit packages by 

cost band

Total cost of exit 
packages in each 

band
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Further details for those Senior Officers whose Salary is £50,000 or more per year are also tabled below:

Senior Officers - salary is between £50,000 and £150,000 per year - 2015/16

Salary 
(incl. fees 
& allow's)

Compen-
sation for 

loss of 
office

Benefits 
in Kind

Total 
Remuner-
ation excl. 

pension 
contrib'ns

Pension 
contrib'ns

Total 
Remuner-
ation incl. 

pension 
contrib'ns

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

 122 -                -               122  14  136 

 11  103  1  115  117  232 

 4  92 -               96  160  256 

 63 -                -               63  8  71 

 64 -                 7  71  8  79 

 63 -                -               63  8  71 

 64 -                 4  68  8  76 

 58 -                -               58  7  65 

 58 -                -               58  7  65 

 67 -                -               67  8  75 

 60 -                -               60  7  67 

 7  69  1  77  4  81 

 34 -                -               34  4  38 

 675  264  13  952  360  1,312 

Note 1: 

Salary includes Returning and Deputy Returning Officer payments for Preston City Council Elections and 
Assistant Returning and Deputy Assistant Returning Officer payments for the Parliamentary Elections.

Note 2: The Corporate Director of Community & Business Services & Deputy Chief Executive, the Corporate 
Director of Environment and the Assistant Director (Head of Community Services) were made redundant on 
8th May 2015, 17th April 2015 and 15th May 2015 respectively. The posts were then deleted. Total 
remuneration includes redundancy costs.

Re-imagining The Harris Project Leader - note 
6

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

29. Officers Remuneration (cont'd)

Chief Executive - note 1

Corporate Director of Environment - note 2

Corporate Dir of Community & Business Serv 
& Deputy CE - note1,2

Director of Environment - note 3

City Treasurer - note 4

AD (Head of Community Services) - note 2

Director of Corporate Services - note 3

Assistant Chief Executive Officer Policy & 
Social Justice - note 3

Director of Customer Services - note 3

Chief Environmental Health Officer/Deputy 
Director of Environment - note 3

Director of Development - note 3

Head of Shared Service/Deputy Director of 
Customer Services - note 3,5

Note 6: A new post of Re-imagining The Harris Project Leader was established and filled from 17th August 2015. 
The annualised salary was £55,021 (including fees and allowances). This is a shared arrangement with 
Lancashire County Council. The post holder is formally employed by Preston City Council and Lancashire 
County Council is recharged 50% of the total remuneration.

Note 3: Following a full management restructure from 1st April 2015 : the Assistant Director (Head of Human 
Resourses) was appointed Director of Corporate Services; the Deputy Director of Community & Business 
Services was appointed Director of Customer Services; the Assistant Director (City Planning Officer) was 
appointed Director of Development; the Deputy Director of Environment was appointed Director of 
Environment; the Assistant Director (Head of Regeneration) was redesignated Assistant Chief Executive 
Officer Policy & Social Justice; the Assistant Director (Chief Environmental Health Officer) was 
redesignated Chief Environmental Health Officer/Deputy Director of Environment and the Assistant Director 
(Head of Revenues & Benefits) was redesignated Head of Shared Service/Deputy Director of Customer 
Services. All substantive posts were deleted.

Note 4: The Assistant Director (Head of Finance) was redesignated City Treasurer and the Acting Assistant Director 
(Head of Finance) was  appointed to this post.

Note 5: The Head of Shared Services/Deputy Director Customer Services provides services for both Preston City 
Council and Lancaster City Council as part of a shared service arrangement. The post holder is formally 
employed by Preston City Council and Lancaster City Council is recharged 50% of the total remuneration.
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29. Officers Remuneration (cont'd)

Senior Officers - salary is between £50,000 and £150,000 per year - 2014/15

Salary (incl. 
fees & 

allow's)
Benefits in 

Kind

Total 
Remuner-
ation excl. 

pension 
contrib'ns

Pension 
contrib'ns

Total 
Remuner-
ation incl. 

pension 
contrib'ns

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

 122 -                     122  13  135 

 88  12  100  11  111 

 78  6  84  10  94 

 61  4  65  8  73 

 61  6  67  8  75 

 57 -                     57  7  64 

 57 -                     57  7  64 

 66 -                     66  8  74 

 57 -                     57  7  64 

 57 -                     57  7  64 

 56  6  62  7  69 

 760  34  794  93  887 

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

30.  External Audit Costs

2014/15 2015/16
£'000 £'000

 82  61 
(8) -                     

 2 -                     

 20  14 
 96 75 

Audit Commission Closure Rebate

Fees payable to the Audit Commission for the National Fraud Initiative

Fees payable to Grant Thornton for the certification of grant claims & 
returns

Salary includes Returning and Deputy Returning Officer payments for Preston City Council Elections and 
Local Returning Officer and Supervisor payments for the European Parliamentary Elections.

The Assistant Director (Head of Revenues & Benefits) provides services for both Preston City Council and 
Lancaster City Council as part of a shared service arrangement. The Assistant Director is formally employed 
by Preston City Council and Lancaster City Council is recharged 50% of the total remuneration.

The Assistant Director (Head of Finance) for the whole of 2014/15 was covered by the Acting Assistant 
Director (Head of Finance) whose salary did not exceed £50,000.

Preston City Council incurred the following fees relating to external 
audit and inspection: 

Grant Thornton with regard to external audit services carried out by the 
appointed auditor

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

Deputy Director of Community & Business 
Services

Deputy Director of Environment

Corporate Director of Environment 

Corporate Dir of Community & Business Serv & 
Deputy CE - note 1

Chief Executive - note 1

AD (Chief Environmental Health Officer)

AD (Head of Regeneration)

AD (Head of Community Services)

AD (Head of Human Resources)

AD (City Planning Officer)

AD (Head of Revenues & Benefits) - note 2
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(i) Central Government

(ii) Members of the Council















(iii) Officers of the Council







(iv) Other public bodies

(v) Shared Services:
Revenues and Benefits Shared Service 

Corporate Enquiry Team Shared Service

Preston and Lancaster City Councils have a combined Revenues and Benefits Shared Service. A Joint Committee 
discharges the functions of the Shared Service which are detailed in the Shared Services Agreement. The host 
authority of the Shared Service is Preston City Council. 

The Shared Service 2015/16 gross expenditure was £3.622m (2014/15 £4.107m) with receipts from Lancaster City 
Council of £1.803m (2014/15 £2.015m). 

Preston and Lancaster City Councils together with Fylde Borough Council have a combined Corporate Enquiry 
Team to protect the public purse and prevent, detect and deter fraud.  The host authority of the shared service is 
Preston City Council. The 2015/16 gross expenditure was £0.124m and was funded through grant receipts.   

Precepts in relation to the Lancashire Police Authority, Lancashire Combined Fire Authority and Lancashire County
Council. Details of these are contained in the Collection Fund. The Council participates in one major pension scheme,
the Lancashire County Pension Fund, administered by Lancashire County Council (see Note 34). 

Two Members are also Members of Lancashire County Council;

Two Members of the Council are Board Members of the Community Gateway Association - to whom the Council
transferred its housing stock on 28th November 2005;

The Council as an independent body paid grants totalling £0.080m (2014/15 £0.125m) to voluntary organisations
and local community groups in which one or more Members had an interest. The grants were made in proper
consideration of declarations of interest, where relevant. Those Members with a declared interest did not take part
in any discussion or decision relating to the grant.

The Director Customer Services has attended the steering group of Preston City Centre Business
Improvement District. 

Officers of the Council also hold positions in other organisations or companies as a consequence of being appointed 
by the Council.

The Chief Executive is a member of the Key Cities Group, with the Assistant Chief Executive attending where
necessary.

Senior Officers are members of board’s set up to deliver the Preston and Lancashire City Deal, a partnership 
between the Council, Lancashire County Council and South Ribble Borough Council.

One Member is on the Blackpool Fylde & Wyre Credit Union Board (GuildMoney Credit Union);

One Member is on the Winckley Square Community Interest Company; and

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

The Leader of the City Council is a Member of the City Deal Executive and the Revenues and Benefits Shared
Service Joint Committee; is an Executive of the Key Cities Group and is on the steering group of the Preston City
Centre Business Improvement District;

One further Member of the Council is also on the Revenue and Benefits Service Joint Committee;

The Council is required to disclose material transactions with related parties, bodies or individuals that have the
potential to control or influence the Council or to be controlled or influenced by the Council. Disclosure of these
transactions allows readers to assess the extent to which the Council might have been constrained in its ability to
operate independently or might have secured the ability to limit another party's ability to bargain freely with the Council. 

31. Related Parties

Members of the Council have direct control over the Council's financial and operating policies. Details of Members
interests are recorded in the Notification of Members Financial and Other Interests file which is open to public
inspection at the Town Hall, Preston. Matters worthy of reference in accordance with the Code include: 

Central government has significant influence over the general operations of the Council – it is responsible for providing
the statutory framework within which the Council operates, provides the majority of its funding in the form of grants and
prescribes the terms of many of the transactions that the Council has with other parties (eg council tax bills, housing
benefits). Grants received from government departments are set out in Note 11 .
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(vi) Partnership working

 Fylde Borough Council Treasury Management Advice

 Chorley Borough Council Strategic Planning

 South Ribble Borough Council Strategic Planning
Preston and Lancashire City Deal 

 St.Catherine’s Hospice Human Resources Services

 Police and Crime Commissioner Deputy Monitoring Officer Duties
Legal Advice

 Lancashire County Council Strategic Planning
Preston and Lancashire City Deal 

 Community Gateway Payroll and ICT Services

 Homes & Communities Agency Housing Zone

 Lancaster City Council Legal Services
Monitoring Officer Duties

Restated
2014/15 2015/16

£'000 £'000
 19,552 Opening Capital Financing Requirement  18,912 

Capital Investment:
 2,181  2,332 

-                  -                        
 1,244  1,913 

Sources of finance:
(1,430) Capital receipts (1,104)
(1,327) Government grants and other contributions (2,376)

Sums set aside from revenue:
-                  Voluntary set aside from Earmarked Reserves (205)

(303) Direct Revenue contributions (174)
-                  Repayment of Capital Debt -                        

(1,005) MRP (Minimum Revenue Provision) (693)

 18,912 Closing Capital Financing Requirement  18,605 

Explanation of movements in year

(1,005) (693)
-                  -                        

 365  386 

(640) (307)

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

31. Related Parties (cont'd)

The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below, together with the
resources that have been used to finance it. Where capital expenditure is to be financed in future years by charges
to revenue as assets are used by the Council, the expenditure results in an increase in the Capital Financing
Requirement (CFR), a measure of the capital expenditure incurred historically by the Council that has yet to be
financed. 

During 2015/16 the Council continued to work both formally and informally in partnership with neighbouring
authorities. The main partnership operations were as follows:

32. Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing

Sums set aside for repayment of Capital Debt

Increase in underlying need to borrow (unsupported by government 
financial assistance)
Increase/(Decrease) in Capital Financing Requirement

Property, Plant & Equipment
Heritage Assets
Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute

Sums set aside from Revenue (MRP)

The 2014/15 comparative figures have been restated following the approval of a revised Minimum Revenue Policy.
As a result, the Capital Financing requirement has moved by £165k following the removal of the sums set aside for
the repayment of capital debt. 
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33. Termination Benefits

34. Defined Benefit Pension Scheme

(a)  Retirement Benefit Obligations

(b)  Governance and Risk Management

Nature of Fund

Governance

The liability associated with the Council’s pension arrangements is material to the Council, as is the cash funding
required. The details in relation to each arrangement, including the relevant provisions for governance and risk
management, are set out below.

The Fund targets a pension paid throughout life. The amount of pension depends on how long employees are
active members of the scheme and their salary when they leave the scheme (a “final salary” scheme) for service up
to 31st March 2014 and on revalued average salary (a “career average” scheme) for service from 1st April 2014
onwards. 

Management of the Fund is vested in Lancashire County Council as Administering Authority of the Fund.
Lancashire County Council has appointed a Pension Fund Committee (comprised of a mixture of County
Councillors and representatives from other employers) to manage the Fund. The Committee is assisted by an
investment panel which advises the Committee on its investment strategy and risk management provisions.

The Lancashire County Pension Fund is a multi-employer arrangement, under which each employer is responsible
for the pension costs, liabilities and funding risks relating to its own employees and former employees. Each
employer’s contributions to the Fund are calculated in accordance with the LGPS Regulations, which require an
actuarial valuation to be carried out every three years. The latest actuarial valuation of the Fund as a whole was
carried out at 31st March 2013, and at that date showed a funding level of 78% (assets of £5.0bn against accrued
liabilities of about £6.4bn). The weighted average duration of the liabilities of the Fund as a whole is 18 years,
measured on the IAS19 actuarial assumptions. The duration of the liabilities for the individual employers which
participate in the scheme can be significantly different from this, reflecting the profile of its employees and former
employees.

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

The Council terminated 55 contracts of employment in 2015/16, incurring liabilities of £702,483 (£1,426,582 in
2014/15). 

The 2015/16 total includes accrued liabilities of £294,284, £120,854 for compensation for loss of office and
£173,430 for enhanced pension benefits, relating to 42 of the above mentioned officers.

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers, the Council makes contributions towards the cost
of post-employment benefits. Although these benefits will not actually be payable until employees retire, the Council
has a commitment to make the payments for those benefits and to disclose them at the time that employees earn
their future entitlement.

At 31st March 2016 the Council’s principal pension arrangement for its employees was the Lancashire County
Pension Fund, which is part of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS). The LGPS is a funded defined
benefit pension arrangement for local authorities and related employers, and is governed by statute (principally now
the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013). 

In 2015/16 £252,185 was paid for the Corporate Director of Environment (£92,184 for compensation for loss of
office and £160,001 for enhanced pension benefits) and £218,273 was paid for the Corporate Director of
Community & Business Services & Deputy Chief Executive (£102,897 for compensation for loss of office and
£115,376 for enhanced pension benefits) and £72,964 was paid for the Assistant Director (Head of Community
Services) (£69,431 for compensation for loss of office and £3,533 for enhanced pension benefits), as disclosed in
note 29.

The next valuation of the Fund will take place with an effective date of 31st March 2016 with any revised
contributions rates being applied to the Council with effect from 1st April 2017.
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34.  Defined Benefit Pension Scheme (cont'd)

Market Risk

Interest Rate Risk

Currency Risk

Credit Risk

Funding the Liabilities

Regulations governing the Fund require actuarial valuations to be carried out every three years. Contributions for each
employer are set having regard to their individual circumstances. The Regulations require the contributions to be set with a
view to targeting the Fund’s solvency, and the detailed provisions are set out in the Fund’s Funding Strategy Statement.
The most recent valuation was carried out as at 31st March 2013, which showed a shortfall of assets against liabilities of
£1.38bn as at that date, equivalent to a funding level of 78%. The Fund’s employers are paying additional contributions over
a period of 19 years in order to meet the shortfall. The weighted average duration of the Council’s defined benefit obligation
is 18 years, measured on the actuarial assumptions used for IAS19 purposes. 

Risks and Investment Strategy

The Fund’s primary long-term risk is that the Fund’s assets will fall short of its liabilities (i.e. promised benefits payable to
members). The aim of investment risk management is to balance the minimisation of the risk of an overall reduction in the
value of the Fund with maximising the opportunity for gains across the whole Fund portfolio. The Fund achieves this through
asset diversification to reduce exposure to market risk (price risk, currency risk and interest rate risk) and keep credit risk to
an acceptable level. In addition, the Fund manages its liquidity risk to ensure there is sufficient liquidity to meet the Fund’s
forecast cash flow.

Market risk is the risk of loss from fluctuations in equity and commodity prices, interest and foreign exchange rates and
credit spreads. To mitigate market risk, the Fund and its investment advisors undertake appropriate monitoring of market
conditions and benchmarking analysis.

Other Price Risk

Other price risk represents the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market
prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or foreign exchange risk). The Fund’s investment managers mitigate
this price risk through diversification. The selection of securities and other financial instruments is monitored by the Fund to
ensure it is within limits specified in the fund investment strategy.

The Fund invests in financial assets for the primary purpose of obtaining a return on investments. These investments are
subject to interest rate risks, which represent the risks that the fair value of future cash flow of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Fund’s interest rate risk is routinely monitored by the Investment
Panel and its investment advisors.

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

Currency risk represents the risk that the fair value cash flow of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates. The Fund’s currency rate risk is routinely monitored by the Fund and its investment advisors in
accordance with the Fund’s risk management strategy.

Liquidity risk represents the risk that the Fund will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Fund
therefore takes steps to ensure that there are adequate cash resources to meet its commitments, and the Fund has
immediate access to its cash holdings.

Credit risk represents the risk that the counterparty to a transaction or a financial instrument will fail to discharge an
obligation and cause the Fund to incur financial loss. Credit risk is minimised by ensuring that counterparties meet the
Fund’s credit criteria. The Fund has also set limits as to the maximum percentage of the deposits placed with any class of
financial institution.

Liquidity Risks
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34.  Defined Benefit Pension Scheme (cont'd)

Other Risks

(c)  Transactions Relating to Retirement Benefits

(d) Pensions Assets and Liabilities Recognised in the Balance Sheet

2014/15 2015/16
£'000 £'000

270,688             Present Value of Funded Liabilities 261,934    

9,592                Present Value of Discretionary Benefit Arrangements 8,959        

(183,512) Fair Value of employer assets (188,561)

96,768               Net Pension Deficit 82,332      

The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the Council's obligation in respect of its defined benefit schemes is
as follows:

Discretionary post-retirement benefits on early retirement are an unfunded defined benefit arrangement, under which
liabilities are recognised when awards are made. There are no plan assets built up to meet these pension liabilities.

We recognise the cost of retirement benefits in the reported cost of services when they are earned by employees, rather
than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. However, the charge we are required to make against council tax is
based on the cash payable in the year, so the real cost of retirement benefits is reversed out of the General Fund via the
Movement in Reserves Statement.  

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

Actions taken by the government, or changes to European legislation, could result in stronger local funding standards, which
could materially affect the Council’s cash flow. 

Settlements shown in the accounting figures relate to the admission of new employers into the Fund, and who take on part
of the Council’s assets and liabilities as a result of employing members who have accrued benefits with the Council.

Amendments, Curtailments and Settlements

The provisions of the Fund were amended with effect from 1st April 2014. For service up to 31st March 2014 benefits were
based on salaries when members leave the scheme, whereas for service after that date benefits are based on career
average salary.  Further details of the changes are available from the Fund’s administering authority.

Curtailments shown in the accounting figures relate to the cost of providing retirement benefits for members who retire early,
to the extent that provision has not already been made for the relevant defined benefit obligations.

There is a risk that changes in the assumptions (e.g. life expectancy, price inflation, discount rate) could increase the
defined benefit obligation and/or the liabilities for actuarial valuation purposes. Other assumptions used to value the defined
benefit obligation are also uncertain, although their effect is less material. The sensitivity analysis in Note 34 (j) indicates the
change in the defined benefit obligation for changes in the key assumptions.
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34.  Defined Benefit Pension Scheme (cont'd)

Local 
Government 

Pension 
Scheme

Discretionary 
Benefits 

Arrangements

Local 
Government 

Pension 
Scheme

Discretionary 
Benefits 

Arrangements

2014/15 2014/15 2015/16 2015/16

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Service Cost:

(3,600) -                                Current service cost (4,292) -                            

(130) -                                Curtailments (809) -                            

-                         -                                Past service cost (24) -                            

(71) -                                Administration expenses of the Pension Fund (65) -                            

 1 -                                Payments to pension fund (higher)/lower than  389 -                            

   Pension Fund estimated amount

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

(2,991) (383)    Net interest expense (3,020) (298)

(6,791) (383)
Total Post Employment Benefits Charged to the 
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services

(7,821) (298)

Remeasurement of the Net Defined Liability 
Comprising:

(37,640) (831)
Actuarial gains and (losses) arising on changes in 
financial assumptions

 14,875  310 

   

 13,547 - Remeasurement gain on assets  2,953 

(24,093) (831) Total remeasurements recognised in other 
comprehensive income

 17,828  310 

(30,884) (1,214) Total Post Employment Benefits Charged to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

 10,007  12 

Movement in Reserves Statement:

Reversal of net charges made to the surplus or deficit on 
the provision of services

Actual amount charged against the General Fund 

Balance for pensions in the year:

(3,545) -                                Employers' contributions payable to scheme (3,807) -                            

-                         (632)    Retirement benefits payable to pensioners -                         (622)

 7,821  298  6,791  383 

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

(e) Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

The following transactions have been made in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the General Fund 
Balance via the Movement in Reserves Statement during the year:

Lancashire County Pension Fund
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34.  Defined Benefit Pension Scheme (cont'd)

Local 
Government 

Pension 
Scheme

Discretionary 
Benefits 

Arrangements

Local 
Government 

Pension 
Scheme

Discretionary 
Benefits 

Arrangements

2014/15 2014/15 2015/16 2015/16

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
 166,190 -                            Opening fair value of scheme assets  183,512 -                           

 7,238 -                            Interest income  5,814 -                           

 13,547 -                            Remeasurements  2,953 -                           

 4,178  632 Contributions from employer  4,818  622 

 1,151 -                            Contributions from employees into the scheme  1,058 -                           

(8,721) (632) Benefits/transfers paid (9,530) (622)

(71) -                            Administration Expenses (65) -                           

 183,512 -                            Closing Fair Value of Scheme Assets  188,560 -                           

Local 
Government 

Pension 
Scheme

Discretionary 
Benefits 

Arrangements

Local 
Government 

Pension 
Scheme

Discretionary 
Benefits 

Arrangements

2014/15 2014/15 2015/16 2015/16

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
 236,251  9,010 Opening fair value of scheme liabilities  280,280  9,592 

 3,600 -                            Current Service Cost  4,292 -                           

 10,229  383 Interest Cost  8,834  299 

 1,151 -                            Contributions from scheme participants  1,058 -                           

Remeasurement  (gains) and losses:

   Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from changes in 

   financial assumptions

-                         -                            Past service cost  24 -                           

 130 -                            Curtailments  809 -                           

(8,721) (632) Benefits/transfers paid (9,530) (622)

 280,280  9,592 Closing Fair Value of Scheme Liabilities  270,892  8,959 

 37,640  831 (14,875) (310)

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

(f) Reconciliation of the Movements in the Fair Value of Scheme Assets

(g) Reconciliation of Present Value of the Scheme Liabilities
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34.  Defined Benefit Pension Scheme (cont'd)

 Quoted 
prices in 

active 
markets 

 Quoted 
prices not 
in active 
markets Total

 Quoted 
prices in 

active 
markets 

 Quoted 
prices not 
in active 
markets Total

Asset Category £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Cash & Cash Equivalents -                    8,891        8,891          -                   6,372       6,372         
Net Current Assets -                    -                  -                    -                   112          112            
Equity Instruments
 - Consumer 20,287       -                  20,287        20,484       -                 20,484       
 - Energy 1,458         -                  1,458          810            -                 810            
 - Financials 10,873       -                  10,873        11,437       -                 11,437       
 - Health Care 6,236         -                  6,236          6,842         -                 6,842         
 - Industrials 8,806         -                  8,806          8,169         -                 8,169         

10,374       -                  10,374        11,605       -                 11,605       
 - Materials 2,486         -                  2,486          2,335         -                 2,335         
 - Telecommunication Services 1,277         -                  1,277          1,564         -                 1,564         
 - Utilities 1,368         -                  1,368          1,562         -                 1,562         

Bonds
 - UK Corporate 1,767         -                  1,767          2,710         -                 2,710         
-  Overseas Corporate 780            -                  780             1,131         -                 1,131         
 - UK Index Linked 5,760         -                  5,760          3,789         -                 3,789         

Property
-  Offices -                    3,804        3,804          -                   3,811       3,811         
-  Offices / Warehouse -                    388           388             -                   390          390            
-  Industrial / Warehouse -                    4,445        4,445          -                   4,453       4,453         
 - Shops -                    3,270        3,270          -                   2,260       2,260         
 - Retail Warehouse -                    3,254        3,254          -                   3,260       3,260         
-  Shopping Centre -                    938           938             -                   940          940            
-  Multi let Commercial Building -                    1,180        1,180          -                   3,012       3,012         

Alternatives
 - UK Private Equity -                    4,605        4,605          -                   3,075       3,075         
 - Overseas Private Equity -                    6,522        6,522          -                   8,280       8,280         
-  Infrastructure -                    10,213      10,213        -                   15,067     15,067       
-  Credit funds -                    47,279      47,279        -                   47,449     47,449       
-  Indirect Property Funds -                    1,344        1,344          -                   2,603       2,603         
-  Overseas Pooled Equity Funds -                    15,907      15,907        -                   15,039     15,039       

Total Assets 71,472       112,040    183,512      72,438       116,123   188,561     

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

(h) Pension Scheme Assets Comprised:

Period Ended 31 March 2015 Period Ended 31 March 2016

 - Information Technology
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34.  Defined Benefit Pension Scheme (cont'd)

The main assumptions used by the actuary have been:

31 March 2015 31 March 2016
% %

2.0 Rate of CPI Inflation 2.0

3.5 Rate of increase in salaries 3.5

2.0 Rate of increase in pensions 2.0

3.2 Rate for discounting scheme liabilities 3.5

Life expectancy at 65 for current pensioners:
22.9 years Men 23 years
25.4 years Women 25.6 years

Life expectancy for future pensioners (aged 65 in 20 years' time):
25.1 years Men 25.2 years
27.8 years Women 27.9 years

£'000

1 year increase in life expectancy

Increase of 0.1% in salaries

Increase of 0.1% in inflation

Increase of 0.1% in discount rate (4,799)

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

(i) Basis for Estimating Assets and Liabilities

Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method of valuation, which is an estimate
of the pensions that will be payable in future years dependent on assumptions about mortality rates, salary levels etc.

The pension fund has been assessed by Mercer Limited, an independent actuary, estimates for the pension fund being
based on the last valuation of the scheme as at 31st March 2013.

(j) Sensitivity Analysis

(k) Impact on the Council's Future Cash Flows

The Council has agreed a funding strategy with the pension fund for the next year. Future employer pension
contributions from 1st April 2016 will be at a rate of 12.8% of pay (£2.1m) together with a cash deficit recovery
contribution, which will be £1.5m in 2016/17, and discretionary post-retirement benefits of £0.6m. The duration of the
defined benefit obligation for scheme members is typically 18 years. The next valuation of the Fund will take place with
an effective date of 31st March 2016 with any revised contributions rates being applied to the Council with effect from
1st April 2017.

The estimate of the defined benefit obligation is sensitive to the actuarial assumptions set out in the table above. The
table below is an analysis of the senitivity of the pension fund deficit to changes in the actuarial assumptions used.

Change in Assumptions at 31 March 2016
Impact on the Defined Benefit Obligation

Increase / (Decrease)

 5,345 

 1,003 

 4,885 
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35. Contingent Liabilities 

(iii) Gateway Stock Transfer

(a) Asbestos Warranties

(b) Disposals Clawback Agreement

(iv) Accountable Body Issues

(a) Preston Bus

(b) Preston Guild Hall

(v) Pension Guarantor

Rotala has agreed to take on the pension liabilities of Preston Bus. The pension contributions are being made in
line with the actuaries requirements reflecting the position as at 31 March 2013. The latest triennial review is
ongoing and will be reflected from 2017/18 onwards.

Under the terms of the 1993 buyout agreement Preston City Council entered into an agreement to act as
guarantor in respect of the pension fund in perpetuity for former Council employees who transferred to Preston
Bus, now owned by Rotala Plc. The Council is still a guarantor of the Preston Bus Pension scheme.

Preston Guild Hall Limited purchased a 999 year lease on the Guild Hall in 2014 with existing staff transferring to
the new company. The Council has entered into an agreement to act as guarantor in perpetuity in respect of the
pension fund for former Council employees who transferred to Preston Guild Hall Limited.

The Council has an exposure to Employers Liability Claims occurring before it took out external insurance cover in
1989 but only recently reported. Monies are set aside for both (a) claims reported and, (b) claims Incurred But Not
Reported (IBNR). There are currently five outstanding claims – one for Vibration White Finger and four for Industrial
Deafness (Noise Induced Hearing Loss). At the time of preparing these accounts the outcome and eventual values of
the claims received are not known nor can it be determined what claims may arise in the future for pre 1989
employment. The Fund balance is regularly monitored and reviewed to ensure its adequacy to pay presented claims.

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

The Council has Accountable Body status for a number of schemes operated by the Government and related
agencies. Accountable Bodies have to operate within extremely rigorous and stringent Government regulations giving
wide ranging rights for grants to be clawed back, if specific output targets are not met by the partner organisations.
These accounts have been prepared on the basis that none of the grants involved will either be clawed back or
withheld. 

The stock transfer to Community Gateway Association (CGA) took place on the 28th November 2005. There remains a
number of Contingent Liabilities.

The Council was required as standard practice to provide an Asbestos Warranty. On the first £4.2m of these
warranties, any expenditure would be met by the Community Gateway Association (CGA). The next £5.8m would
be shared 50/50 between CGA and the Council. Any expenditure above £10m would be met in full by the
Council. CGA have agreed an Asbestos Management Policy with the Council and the Council is monitoring their
progress with asbestos removal from their properties, which is therefore not currently giving the Council cause for
concern.

The disposal agreement provides that CGA has a full warranty for land transferred in respect of ground
conditions should redevelopment for social housing occur at some future date. If redevelopment was to occur the
Council would negotiate with CGA on a case by case basis.

(i) Employee Industrial Disease Claims

S106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 allows a local planning authority to enter in to a legally binding
agreement or planning obligation with a landowner in association with the granting of planning permission. The
obligation is termed a S106 Agreement and S106 monies received by the Council are used to fund the provision of
infrastructure, such as highways, recreational facilities, education, health and affordable housing, which is necessary
as part of the development or to mitigate its impact. Such agreements or obligations may lay down conditions that
monies must be spent by a specified date and on specified items, if these conditions are not met then monies may be
returnable and in some cases with interest applied. The Council has a number of S106 agreements in place.

(ii) Section 106 (S106) Agreements
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35. Contingent Liabilities (cont'd)

(vi) Municipal Mutual Insurance (MMI)

(vii) Applications for Mandatory Relief for NHS Trusts

36. Contingent Assets

(i) Compound Interest on VAT Claims

(ii) Right to Buy Receipts (RTB)

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

The Council continues to share in ‘Right to Buy’ receipts generated by the Community Gateway Association (CGA).
The amount the Council received £0.507m in 2015/16 (2014/15 £0.725m). The amount the Council receives in future
years is dependent on future market conditions.

The Council has submitted a claim to the High Court for the payment of interest on VAT claims to be calculated on a
compound basis rather than a simple basis At the time of writing there is no certainty that the claim will be successful
or the timescale on when the outcome will be known. If successful, the amount due could be significant in value.

Municipal Mutual Insurance was the predominant insurer of public sector bodies prior to its cessation of underwriting
operations in September 1992. A Scheme of Arrangement was implemented in 1993 which, due to an unfavorable
ruling from the Supreme Court, has been triggered. An initial payment of £0.095m was paid in 2013/14 and a further
£0.063m has been accrued in 2015/16. The balance of potential liability has been placed in an earmarked reserve
(£0.474m).

The Council has received applications for mandatory business rates relief from various Lancashire NHS Trusts. The
total business rates receivable from these NHS Trusts in 2015/16 was £1.8m. If successful, they would be entitled to
relief of up to 80% potentially backdated 6 years. The costs of any relief would be shared between the Council (40%),
Central Government, Lancashire County Council and Lancashire Combined Fire Authority. Under the business rates
retention scheme if the costs were significant the Council would qualify for a 'safety net' payment to ensure that
income does not fall below 92.5% of baseline income.
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2014/15 

National 
Non 

Domestic 
Rates

Council Tax Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Income

 57,002 Council Tax -                      59,365  59,365 
 67,762 National Non-Domestic Rates  68,922 -                     68,922 

Apportionment of Previous Year Deficit
 1,224 Central Government  2,450 -                     2,450 
 1,033 Preston City Council  1,960  24  1,984 

 431 Lancashire County Council  441  95  536 
 30 Police and Crime Commissioner for Lancashire -                      13  13 
 36 Lancashire Combined Fire Authority  49  6  55 

 2,754  4,900  138  5,038 

 127,518 Total Income 73,822  59,503 133,325 

Expenditure

Precepts, Demands and Shares
 32,751 Central Government  32,746 -                     32,746 
 35,827 Preston City Council  26,197  9,871  36,068 
 44,047 Lancashire County Council  5,894  39,123  45,017 

 5,371 Police and Crime Commissioner for Lancashire -                      5,508  5,508 
 2,847 Lancashire Combined Fire Authority  655  2,246  2,901 

 172 Parish Councils -                      184  184 
 121,015  65,492  56,932  122,424 

Charges to the Collection Fund
 837 Write offs of uncollectable amounts  1,214  387  1,601 

 1,605 Increase in Bad and Doubtful Debts Impairment Allowance  326  1,994  2,320 
 3,637 Increase in Provision for Appeals  1,512 -                     1,512 

 240 Cost of Collection Allowance  238 -                     238 

 660 
National Non-Domestic Rates Transitional Protection 
Payments  129 -                     129 

 4 Renewable Energy amounts  2 -                     2 
 6,983  3,421  2,381  5,802 

 127,998 Total Expenditure 68,913  59,313 128,226 

 480 Movement on fund balance (Surplus) / Deficit (4,909) (190) (5,099)

 5,025 Balance on Collection Fund  Brought Forward  5,350  156  5,506 

 5,505 (Surplus) / Deficit on Collection Fund Carried Forward 441 (34) 407 

2015/16

The Collection Fund (England) is an agent's statement that reflects the statutory obligation for billing authorities to
maintain a separate Collection Fund. The statement shows the transactions of the billing Authority in relation to the
collection from taxpayers and distribution to local authorities and the Government of council tax and non-domestic rates.

Collection Fund
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Index of Explanatory Notes to Collection Fund

Note
CF1 General
CF2 Council Tax
CF3 National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR)
CF4 Distribution of Surpluses and Deficits
CF5 Council Tax/NNDR Bad Debts impairment Allowance and NNDR Provision for Appeals

Collection Fund

CF1. General

The Collection Fund is an agent's statement that reflects the statutory obligation of billing authorities to maintain a
separate Collection Fund. The statement shows the transactions of the billing authority in relation to the collection from
taxpayers of Council Tax and National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR) and its distribution to local government bodies and
the Government.

The Council has a statutory requirement to operate the Collection Fund as a separate account to the General Fund. The
purpose of the Collection Fund therefore, is to isolate the income and expenditure relating to Council Tax and NNDR.
The administrative costs associated with the collection process are charged to the General Fund.

Collection Fund surpluses or deficits declared by the billing authority in relation to Council Tax are apportioned to the
relevant precepting bodies in the subsequent financial year. Preston's Council Tax precepting bodies are Lancashire
County Council (LCC), the Police and Crime Commissioner for Lancashire (PCCL) and Lancashire Combined Fire
Authority (LCFA).

Council Tax derives from charges raised according to the value of residential properties, which have been classified into
nine valuation bands (A-H) for this specific purpose. Individual charges are calculated by estimating the amount of
income required to be taken from the Collection Fund by the Council for the forthcoming year and dividing this by the
Council Tax base i.e. the equivalent number of Band D dwellings.

In 2013/14 Central Government revised how local government was financed by introducing the retained business rate
scheme. The aim of the scheme is to give Councils a greater incentive to grow businesses in their area. It does,
however, also increase the financial risk due to non-collection and the volatility of the NNDR tax base.

Under the scheme Preston City Council retains 40% of the NNDR collected, with the remainder being paid to precepting
bodies, Central Government (50%), LCC (9%) and LCFA (1%).

Collection Fund surpluses or deficits declared by the billing authority in relation to the NNDR are apportioned to the
relevant precepting bodies in the subsequent financial year. 

The CIPFA code of practice stipulates that a Collection Fund Income and Expenditure account is included in the
Council's annual accounts. Meanwhile, the Collection Fund Balance Sheet is incorporated into the Council's
Consolidated Balance Sheet.

CF2. Council Tax
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CF2. Council Tax (cont'd)

31 March 2015 31 March 2016
Number of  Chargeable Dwellings per Band at 31st March No. No.

Band A 26,291             26,561           
Band B 11,297             11,399           
Band C 9,087               9,106             
Band D 6,123               6,109             
Band E 2,434               2,442             
Band F 1,253               1,272             
Band G 876                  873                
Band H 38                    38                  

Total 57,399             57,800           

Band 'D' Equivalent Properties (Tax Base for the calculation of Council Tax) 34,364 34,907           

CF3. National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR)

31 March 2015 31 March 2016
NNDR Rateable Value at 31st March £168,719,718 £170,596,719
NNDR Multiplier 0.482 0.493

When the scheme was introduced Central Government set a baseline level for each billing authority identifying the
expected level of retained business rates and a top up or tariff amount to ensure that all authorities receive their
funding baseline amount. Tariffs are due from authorities who exceed their funding baseline amount, these are
payable to Central Government and used to finance top ups to those authorities who do not achieve their targeted
baseline funding. In 2015/16 Preston City Council paid a tariff of £21.746m to Central Government.

In addition, a ‘safety net’ figure is calculated at 92.5% of baseline amount which ensures that authorities are protected
to this level of NNDR income. The comparison of business rate income to the safety net uses the total income
collected from business rate payers and adjusts for losses in collection, losses on appeal, transitional protection
payments, the cost of collection and the revision to Small Business Rate Relief (announced in the Autumn Statement
2013) not allowed for when the safety net was set.  The Council did not receive any safety net payments in 2015/16.

In addition to the local management of business rates, authorities are expected to finance appeals made in respect of
rateable values as defined by VOA, and business rates outstanding as at 31 March 2016. As such, authorities are
required to make a provision for these amounts. Appeals are charged and provided for in the same proportion as the
precepting shares. The total provision required as at 31 March 2016 has been calculated at £10.046m (Preston City
Council's share is £4.018m) to mitigate against the expected impact of these appeals on NNDR income in future
years.

Notes to the Collection Fund

Chargeable dwellings takes into account disabled relief, exemptions and the effect of estimated successful
outstanding appeals reducing properties by one band. The increase in chargeable dwellings between 31st March
2015 and 31st March 2016 is largely due to new properties built during the year.

The Council collects NNDR for its area based on local rateable values provided by the Valuation Office Agency (VOA)
multiplied by a uniform business rate set nationally by Central Government.

Under the new retained business rate scheme introduced 1st April 2013, instead of paying NNDR to the central pool,
local authorities retain a proportion of the total collectable rates due.

In previous financial years the total amount due, less certain allowances, was paid to a central pool administered by
Central Government, who then distributed the pool to Local Authorities based on a standard amount per head of the
local adult population as part of the formula grant.

Conversely, if income exceeds the baseline amount, the Council must pay 50% of this growth as a levy to Central
Government.  In 2015/16, the Council is liable to pay a levy of £0.338m.
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CF4.  Distribution of Surpluses and Deficits

2014/15 2015/16
£'000 £'000

 4,542 Balance at 1 April  5,483 

(403) Write-offs during the year for previous years (387)
 1,344 Contributions to provisions during year  2,381 

 941 Net increase in provision  1,994 
 5,483 Balance at 31 March  7,477 

2014/15 2015/16
£'000 £'000
 801 Balance at 1 April  967 

(71) Write-offs during the year for previous years (68)
 237 Contributions to provisions during year  402 
 166 Net increase in provision  334 
 967 Balance at 31 March  1,301 

2014/15 2015/16
£'000 £'000

 1,786 Balance at 1 April  2,450 

(434) Write-offs during the year for previous years (1,214)
 1,098 Contributions to provisions during year  1,540 

 664 Net increase in provision  326 
 2,450 Balance at 31 March  2,776 

The Collection Fund account also provides for bad and doubtful debts on NNDR arrears on the same basis.

CF5.  Council Tax / NNDR Bad Debts Impairment Allowance and NNDR Provision for Appeals

The Collection Fund account provides for bad and doubtful debts on Council Tax arrears based on prior years 
experience and current year collection rates.

The Council's proportion of these write-offs and increase in provision is shown below.

(ii) a surplus of £0.034m on Council Tax (Preston City Council's share is £0.006m) mainly because the exemptions,
discounts and council tax support were lower than forecast. 

(i) a deficit of £0.441m on NNDR (Preston City Council's share is £0.176m) because the estimated deficit that was
distributed during the year was lower than the actual deficit in 2014/15.

Notes to the Collection Fund

Any year end surpluses or deficits relating to Council Tax and NNDR collection are returned to, or recovered from, the
relevant precepting authorities in the following years. The amount to be distributed is based on the forecast surplus or
deficit on the fund estimated in January each year.

The closing deficit balance on the Collection Fund of £0.407m represents:
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2014/15 2015/16
£'000 £'000
 714 Balance at 1 April  980 

(174) Write-offs during the year for previous years (485)
 439 Contributions to provisions during year  616 
 266 Net increase in provision  131 
 980 Balance at 31 March  1,111 

2014/15 2015/16
£'000 £'000

 4,897 Balance at 1 April  8,534 

(3,208) Amounts charged to provision (2,230)
 6,845 Contributions to provisions during year  3,742 
 3,637 Net increase in provision  1,512 
 8,534 Balance at 31 March  10,046 

The Council's proportion of this provision is shown below.

2014/15 2015/16
£'000 £'000

 1,959 Balance at 1 April  3,414 

(1,283) Amounts charged to provision (892)
 2,738 Contributions to provisions during year  1,496 
 1,455 Net increase in provision  604 
 3,414 Balance at 31 March  4,018 

Notes to the Collection Fund

CF5.  Council Tax / NNDR Bad Debts Impairment Allowance and NNDR Provision for Appeals (cont'd)

The Council's proportion of these write-offs and increase in provision is shown below.

The Collection Fund account also provides for appeals against the rateable value set by the Valuation Office Agency
(VOA) not yet settled as at 31 March 2015.  
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Balance Expenditure/ Income/ Gains/ Balance 
as at Transfers Transfers (Losses) on as at

1 April Investments* 31 March
2015 2016

£ £ £ £ £

Preston Relief in Need
Restricted Endowment Fund  86,216 (9,678) 76,538 
Unrestricted Endowment Fund  126,633  56,386 (11,095) 171,924 
Restricted Grant Fund  2,333  1,031  5,182 6,484 
Unrestricted Grant Fund  2,237  5,217  7,247 4,267 

Preston Relief in Sickness 
Endowment Fund  56,369  56,386  17 -                          
Grant Fund  50  1,099  1,049 -                          

Dr Shepherd's Library Trust Fund
Endowment Fund  3,666  2  1 (104) 3,565 
Grant Fund  546 (2)  92 636 

Woods Bequest
Endowment Fund  819  819 -                          
Grant Fund  779  780  1 -                          

*  Investments are externally managed by Hedley's (Preston Relief In Need, Preston Relief In Sickness & the     
 former Geoffrey Sumner) and AXA (Dr Shepherd's)

Balance (Expenditure) Income/ Gains/ Balance 
as at /Transfers Transfers (Losses) on as at

1 April Investments 31 March
2015 2016

£  £ £ £ £
Mayors Fund Raising Account

Grant Fund  1 (150)  150 -                        1 

Bequests and Trust Funds (Unconsolidated)

In May 2015, the Woods Bequest Fund closed and transferred its total assets of to the Preston Relief in Need Charity 
with a restriction of assisting children of Preston.  In November, the Preston and District Relief in Sickness Fund 
closed and also transferred all its assets to the Preston Relief in Need Charity.

Other Funds (Unconsolidated)
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The Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance with the law 
and proper standards and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for and 
used economically, efficiently and effectively.  

  

In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council has put in place arrangements for the 
governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective exercise of its functions and which includes 
arrangements for the management of risk. 

 

This Annual Governance Statement provides an overview of the Council’s key governance 
systems and explains how they are tested and the assurance that can be relied upon to show 
that those systems are working effectively. 

 

The statement comprises an overview of the key elements of its governance framework and 
what evidence has been received in order to determine the effectiveness of the Council’s 
governance arrangements.  In addition the statement contains an update on areas for 
improvement identified last year together with proposed areas for improvement for the 
coming year.  

 

Corporate governance refers to the processes by which organisations are directed, controlled, 
led and held to account.   

 

The Council has adopted a Code of Corporate Governance which is consistent not only with the 
six core principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework “Delivering Good Governance In Local 
Government” but the general principles of openness, transparency and accountability. 

 

The governance framework enables the Council to monitor the achievement of its strategic 
objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate 
cost-effective services. 
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The framework comprises a multitude of systems and processes designed to regulate, monitor 
and control the various activities of the authority in its pursuit of its vision and objectives.  

 

The key elements of the Council’s Corporate Governance Framework are set out below:-  

 

PRINCIPLE 1:  Focusing on the 
objectives of the authority and on 
the outcomes for the community 
and creating and implementing a 
vision for the local area 

PRINCIPLE 2: Members and 
Officers working together to 
achieve outcomes with clearly 
defined functions and roles 

PRINCIPLE 3:  Promoting values for 
the authority and demonstrating 
the values of  good governance 
through upholding high standards 
of conduct and behaviour 

THE COUNCIL ACHIEVES THIS BY 
• Clearly communicating the 

Council’s objectives and 
vision and the intended 
outcome for citizens and 
service users 

• Making best use of 
resources and providing 
services that are good value 
for money 

• Seeking the views of service 
users on the quality of 
services provided 

 

• Setting out executive and 
non-executive functions and 
the roles and responsibilities 
of the scrutiny function 

• Clearly setting out the roles 
and responsibilities of 
Members and Officers 

• Introducing and maintaining 
arrangements that clearly set 
out the standards of conduct 
and behaviours expected 
from Members and Officers 

 

PRINCIPLE 4:  Develop the capacity 
and capability of Members and 
Officers to be effective 

PRINCIPLE 5: Taking informed and 
transparent decisions which are 
subject to effective scrutiny and 
managing risk 

PRINCIPLE 6: 
Engaging with local people and 
other stakeholders to ensure 
robust accountability 

THE COUNCIL ACHIEVES THIS BY 
• Introducing and maintaining 

systems and resources that 
allow Members and Officers 
to develop and gain the skills 
and knowledge they need to 
perform well in their roles 

• Evaluating Members’ and 
Officers’ performance 

• Having rigorous and 
transparent decision making 
processes in place 

• Maintaining an effective 
scrutiny process 

• Acting within the law 

• Providing good quality 
information, advice and 
support to Members and 
partners 

• Ensuring that an effective 
risk management system is 
in place 

• Developing constructive 
relationships with 
stakeholders 

• Taking an active and 
planned approach to 
dialogue with the public 

• Regularly consulting with 
employees and their 
representatives 
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The Council’s Objectives 

The Council is always striving to be more responsive to what the community needs.  It does so by 
openness and transparency in its decision making, enabling the view of the community to be 
heard as much as possible.  It achieves this through specific consultation exercises which help to 
formulate its objectives. The vision and objectives for the authority are agreed by Cabinet as the 
decision making body, working with the Council’s Corporate Management Team.  The Council’s 
vision is to see Preston as a growing, vibrant City. 

To achieve the Council’s vision and medium to long term objectives for the City the Council has set 
out three priority areas.  These are Your City; Your Council, and Fairness For You.  Underpinning 
the Corporate Priorities is the Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) which sets out the revenue 
and capital resources available to the Council and how they are used to deliver essential services 
and objectives to the priority areas.  The Council’s vision, priorities and MTFS are all encapsulated 
in the document Achieving Preston’s Priorities approved by Council in February 2015.  This can be 
found on the Council’s website.  Each of the three priority areas has a number of corporate 
projects associated with them which are designed to progress the priorities.  Further, each Service 
Delivery Plan includes key work areas which again reflect contributions to the priorities. 

Values of Good Governance 
The Council promotes and demonstrates the values of good governance through upholding high 
standards of conduct and behaviour.  This is achieved by the following means: 

 

Codes of Conduct 
▪ for Officers 
▪ for Members 

▪ Professional Ethics codes   

Governance Assurance Reviews (GARS)  
▪ Signed Statements: 
▪ Senior Officers 
▪ Section 151 Officer 
▪ Monitoring Officer 
▪ Head of HR 
▪ Emergency Planning Officer 
▪ Chief Internal Auditor 

Council Policies 
▪ Zero Tolerance approach to fraud (demonstrated through   
the Anti-Fraud Corruption Statement) 
▪ Whistleblowing Policy 
▪ Anti Money Laundering Policy 
▪ Anti Bribery Policy 
▪ Counter Fraud training courses 

The Council has Codes of Conduct for both Officers 
and Members in order to ensure appropriate 
standards of behaviour are maintained. 

Accountability for good governance is evidenced at 
senior officer level through a half-yearly system of 
reporting. 

The Council has a number of policies in place 
which assist to achieve high standards of conduct 
and behaviour throughout the Council. 
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How the Council works 
All Members meet together as “The Council”.  Meetings are normally open to the public.  The 
conduct of the Council’s business is defined by formal procedures and rules which are set out in 
the Constitution.  This explains the roles and responsibilities of the Cabinet, the non-executive, 
Scrutiny and Officer functions together with the delegation arrangements that are in place.  It also 
contains the Procedure Rules and the Code of Conduct for Members.  The diagram below shows 
the Council’s structure and its committees.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Council  
Consists of 57 elected councillors covering 22 wards. Appoints the Overview and Scrutiny and other 

committees/panels. 
 

  
Non-Executive and 

Regulatory  
Cabinet  

(Leader of the Council/ 
 5 Executive Members) 

Overview and 
Scrutiny 

Planning 

Standards 

Audit 

Employment 
 

Environmental Protection 
& Licencing 

 

Resources 

Planning & Regulation 

Culture & Leisure 

Community & Environment 

Social Justice, Inclusion & 
Policy 

Overview and Scrutiny 
Management 

Task & Finish Panels 

Crime & Disorder 

Taxi & 
Misc Sub 

Licencing 
Sub 

Shared Revenues and 
Benefits Joint Committee 
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How the Council Gains Assurance 
As mentioned, a key feature of the Statement is how the Council gains assurance as to the 
effectiveness of its governance arrangements.  In the first place it needs to identify the areas 
where assurance is required, be clear about where that assurance comes from and then consider 
the effectiveness of the assurance it receives.  This is shown in the table below: 

 

 

One of the key ways of facilitating assurance gathering is through the Council’s Corporate 
Governance Group of senior officers whose role is to plan and co-ordinate improvements to the 
Council’s Governance Framework.  The group receives reports from the various sources of audit 
and inspection.  Any recommendations from these reports are incorporated into a Corporate 
Improvement Plan which is used as a basis for monitoring the achievement of the actions.  Reports 
on progress are provided to Audit Committee, Corporate Management Team and Cabinet.  

 

Assurance required upon 
•Delivery of Council’s aims and 

objectives 
•Services are delivered 

economically, efficiently and 
effectively 
•Management of risk 
•Effectiveness of internal controls 
•Public accountability 
•Budget & financial management 

arrangements 
•Roles & responsibilities of 

Members & Officers 
•Standards of conduct and 

behaviour  
•Compliance with legislation & 

regulations, internal policies and 
procedures 
•Action Plans dealing with 

significant issues are approved, 
actioned and reported on 

Sources of Assurance 
•Constitution (Statutory Officers, 

Scheme of Delegation, financial 
management and Contract 
Procedure Rules) 
•Corporate Governance Group 
•Internal and External Audit 
•Independent external sources 
•Scrutiny function 
•Council, Cabinet and Panels 
•Medium Term Financial Strategy 
•Complaints Procedure 
•HR policies & procedures 
•Whistleblowing & counter fraud 

arrangements 
•Risk Management Framework 
•Performance Management 

Framework 
•Codes of Conduct 
•Corporate Management Team 

Assurances received 
•Governance Assurance Review 

(GARs) 
•Statement of Accounts 
•External Audit Reports 
•Internal Audit Reports 
•External Inspection reports 
•Scrutiny Reviews 
•Effectiveness reviews of Internal 

Audit and Audit Committee 
•External testing of ICT network 
•Public Service Network 

accreditation 
•Audit Committee review of 

Corporate risks 
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The Council’s Audit Committee monitors the performance of the Council’s assurance and 
governance framework.  This is a Committee which is independent of the Cabinet and reports 
directly to Council.  The Committee has the responsibility to ensure that the monitoring and 
probity of the Council’s Governance Framework is undertaken to the highest standard and in line 
with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) guidelines.  The following 
governance improvements/business was carried out during 2015/16 by the Corporate Governance 
Group and Audit Committee: 

Corporate Governance Group/Audit Committee:  
Key Business during 2015/16 

April 2015 Mid-June   2015 Late-June   2015 September  2015 November 2015 January      2016 

Approve the 
External Audit 
Plan 

Approve the 
2014/15 Annual 
Governance 
Statement (AGS) 

Review the 
unaudited 
2014/15 
Statement of 
Accounts 
 

Receive the 
External 
Auditor’s Audit 
Findings Report 

Receive the 
Annual Audit 
Letter 

Receive the 
External Auditors 
Certification 
Report 

Approve the  
Internal Audit 
Plan 

Consider and 
approve the 
Chief Internal 
Auditor’s Annual 
report 
 

 Receive the 
Internal Audit 
Progress report 

Receive the 
Internal Audit 
Progress report 

Receive the  
Internal Audit 
Progress report 

Note the 
proposal for the 
establishment of 
a Counter Fraud 
Team 

Approve reviews 
of both Internal 
Audit and the 
Audit Committee 

 Approve the 
Statement of 
Accounts 
2014/15 

Review the 
Treasury 
Management 
report 

Receive an 
updated Action 
Plan on the Code 
of Practice on 
Fraud and 
Corruption 
 

Note the 
Corporate 
Improvement 
Plan 
 

Note the 
Corporate 
Improvement 
Plan 

 Review the 
Corporate Risk 
Register 

Note the 
Corporate 
Improvement 
Plan 

Note the 
Corporate 
Improvement 
Plan 

Note the Waivers 
granted under 
the Contract 
Procedure Rules 
 

Note updated 
Action Plan on 
Code of Practice 
on Fraud  

 Receive direct 
assurance on 
Corporate risks 

Receive direct 
assurance on 
Corporate risks 

Receive direct 
assurance on 
Corporate risks 

Note the 
quarterly 
Regulation of 
Investigatory 
Powers Report 
(RIPA) 
 

Note the 
quarterly 
Regulation of 
Investigatory 
Powers Report 
(RIPA) 

 Note the Waivers 
granted under 
the Contract 
Procedure Rules 

Note the 
quarterly 
Regulation of 
Investigatory 
Powers Report 
(RIPA) 

Note the 
quarterly 
Regulation of 
Investigatory 
Powers Report 
(RIPA) 

Note Debtor 
Write Offs 
 

Note Debtor 
Write Offs 

 Note Debtor 
Write Offs 

 Note Debtor 
Write Offs 

 Note Annual 
Fraud report 

 Note the 
Treasury 
Management 
report 1st QTR 
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Statutory Regulations    
The principal statutory obligations and functions of the Council are identified in the Constitution 
and reflected in the Budget and Policy Framework which is approved by Council.  However the 
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 now require an annual review of the effectiveness of the 
system of internal control. 

 

Responsible Financial Officer 
The Council has incorporated the requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief 
Financial Officer into its governance and has produced evidence to demonstrate its compliance 
with these criteria as set out in the Good Governance Action Plan. 

 

Internal Audit 
In addition to the above, the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require the Council to 
undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control 
and governance processes, taking into account the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS).  
The PSIAS require the introduction and maintenance of a Quality Assurance and Improvement 
Programme (QAIP) which must include both an internal and external assessment of the internal 
audit service as a means of demonstrating compliance with these Standards.  Additionally, the 
effectiveness of the Audit Committee is also reviewed annually. 

 

Internal Audit now use the Three Lines of Defence model as a basis for identifying and 
commenting on the various sources of assurances that are available.  Furthermore, Audit 
Committee continues to seek direct assurance from Officers on significant corporate risks. 

 

The Chief Internal Auditor has been given the responsibility to annually review the Corporate 
Governance Framework and report his findings to Audit Committee.  In addition he provides 
assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of its Code and the extent of compliance with it.  

 

Senior Officers 
Directors are required to individually sign a Statement of Assurance, acknowledging their 
responsibility for internal control and countering fraud and corruption.  In addition they confirm 
that all significant risks have been identified and recorded and that mitigating controls are in 
place. 
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Internal Control  

The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and it is designed to manage 
risk to a reasonable level.  It cannot eliminate all risks of failure to achieve the Council’s aims and 
objectives and can therefore only provide a reasonable and not an absolute assurance of 
effectiveness.  The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process which is designed to 
identify and prioritise the risks associated with achieving the Council’s priorities.  It also evaluates 
the likelihood of those risks being realised and what impact they would have should they be 
realised and attempts to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. 

 

Inherent within the role of Internal Audit is a review of internal control arrangements.  This 
includes the need to assess the extent of compliance with statutory requirements and the 
Council’s rules and regulations, which comprise its Financial and Contract Procedure Rules, 
Scheme of Delegation and Codes of Conduct.  In addition, the Chief Internal Auditor is required to 
produce an Annual Report and provide an opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of 
the Council’s control environment. 

 

Performance Management 

The Council has its own Performance Management Framework, the overall aim of which is to 
ensure a culture of continuous performance and improvement.  The Council monitors its 
performance through performance indicators and by tracking key project milestones.  There is also 
a reporting framework through to Members for their scrutiny and review. 

 

Risk Management 
The Risk Management Policy requires Officers to understand and accept their responsibility for 
risk and for implementing appropriate controls to mitigate those risks.  The Council’s risk 
management software system (GRACE) allows all risk owners to record these risks and importantly 
review them in accordance with the Risk Management Framework to ensure they are appropriate 
and relevant.  A close monitoring of these reviews now takes place to ensure the registers are up 
to date.  In addition, Internal Audit carries out an annual review of the Risk Management 
Framework in accordance with the terms of the Risk Management Policy. 
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Dealing with last year’s Key Improvement Areas  
The following shows the progress that was made against the Areas for Improvement reported in last year’s 
Annual Governance Statement. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Intranet and Electronic Records and 
Document Management System 

(ERDMS) project – we are nearing 
completion of our Corporate project 
to implement an improved intranet.  

In year we will ensure that each 
service embraces the potential 

improvement opportunities. 
 

Action taken 

The Council has undertaken a 
review of how Planning 
Committee operates in order to 
improve the running of 
meetings and to provide a more 
efficient and effective planning 
service.  It has established an 
all-party working group chaired 
by the Leader of the Council 
and developed an Action Plan.  
This has included changes to 
the Scheme of Delegation, 
agreed in December 2015.  The 
Council will continue to 
implement the action plan and 
review it. 

Action taken 

The Council is now fully 
complaint with the 
requirements of the Local 
Government Transparency 
Code 2015 and has a dedicated 
Open Data page on the 
Council’s website with links to 
the relevant information.  The 
data is regularly updated in 
accordance with the statutory 
requirements contained within 
the Code. 

 

Action taken 

This project is being driven 
forward within the context of 
an overall ICT strategy and it 
will significantly impact on 
other key Corporate priorities 
and programmes. 

The project was completed, 
delivered within budget and 
without any major risks being 
encountered.  

The delivered intranet platform 
is a significant improvement on 
the previous version (internal 
user survey indicated a 34% or 
more, improved user 
satisfaction rating) utilising 
Sharepoint 2013. 

The Service Improvement Board 
received a project closure 
report in April 2016. 

 

The Council will work towards 
securing compliance with the Local 

Government Transparency Code 2015 
to aid greater transparency in the 

availability of information. 

The Council is undertaking a review of 
its Planning Committee procedures in 
order to improve the running of the 

meetings and to provide a more 
efficient and effective Planning 

service. 
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Action taken 

We have implemented a new 
way of working for the 
Overview and Scrutiny process. 
The new arrangement engages 
Members because they decide 
the study topics for the work 
plans.  Members can focus on 
those topics which they have a 
specific interest in and can 
become fully involved in areas 
which matter to them. 

The task and finish model also 
makes the process quicker. 

 

Action taken 

Lancashire Councils have been 
working together throughout 
2015/16 on proposals for a 
Lancashire Combined 
Authority.  Preston has made a 
significant contribution to that 
work. 
 
Council received and approved 
a Governance Review of 
arrangements in Lancashire 
together with a draft Scheme 
of Governance in December 
2015.  The initial scope of the 
CA is to provide economic 
development, transport, skills, 
housing and public service 
reform.  Council also approved 
a scheme for public 
consultation which took place 
during January and February 
2016.  A majority of 
respondents confirmed their 
approval of the proposals. 
 
14 of 15 Lancashire authorities 
have approved a submission to 
support the formation of 
Lancashire Combined 
Authority now.  Negotiations 
have commenced and the 
intention is to operate in 
shadow form from July 2016. 
 

Action taken 

The Peer Review of the Council 
was carried out by the Local 
Government Association (LGA) 
in February 2016.  The Peer 
Review report can be viewed at 
Preston City Council Peer 
Review | Preston City Council 
The peer team were asked to 
explore how the council can 
better: (i) Support investment 
and business growth and (ii) 
Develop community resilience. 
The Peer Review Team used a 
series of guiding questions 
which it uses for all corporate 
peer challenges e.g. looking at 
the Councils set priorities, 
successful implementation of 
the long term financial plan, 
effective political & managerial 
leadership, partnerships, 
effective governance & decision 
making arrangements, capacity 
and resources focused in the 
right areas. 
 
Following the Review the 
Council has an Action Plan to 
address some issues with the 
delivery of new development 
and to reassess organisational 
capacity.   
 
The Peer Team recognised that 
this was an exciting time and 
that the Council has the 
potential to deliver great 
outcomes for the City.  

The Council will give serious 
consideration to Combined Authority 

(CA) arrangements. 

 

The Council will review the 
arrangements for O&S to ensure they 

are fit for purpose, relevant, robust 
and focussed on the challenges faced 

by the City. 
 

The Council plans to commission a 
Local Government Association (LGA) 

Peer Challenge Review during 2015.  A 
Peer Challenge is a proven tool for 
improvement which is designed to 

constructively challenge Councils own 
performance and improvement. 
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Other areas where Improvement has been made: 

MTFS & PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK IMPROVEMENTS 

i) The new Corporate Management Team (CMT) set out with an initial 100-day plan which it 
successfully delivered. Following a six month review CMT extended the plan to the end of the 
financial year and it is currently reviewing any outstanding actions.  The Council has been 
mindful and has paid significant attention to the governance arrangements to ensure that no 
lines of defence have been weakened following the loss of experienced Officers and others 
taking up new roles within the Council. 

   

ii) City Deal and other Collaborative Working - The Council has continued to play an active role 
in delivering the commitments in the Preston, South Ribble and Lancashire City Deal.  Progress 
against the Infrastructure Delivery Plan is on track and has been reported to Council in the 
Leaders update report.  The governance arrangements have been reviewed and streamlined 
to become more flexible and efficient.  Consideration is being given to broadening the scope 
of the governance arrangements in the light of the emerging Combined Authority proposals. 

 

The City Centre Collaboration Board has been extended to include UCLAN who are making 
major investments in the Preston Campus.  Progress is being made on most of the identified 
potential projects with the exception of the Docklands which is a long term prospect in the 
absence of private sector investment. 

 

iii) Progress toward a Lancashire Combined Authority - During March and April, 14 Lancashire 
Leaders recommended to their Councils the benefits of forming a Combined Authority and to 
operate in a shadow form from July 2016.  All councils resolved to support this proposition and 
confirmed their commitment to join a Combined Authority. 

 

Next Steps:  Officers are working with the Department of Communities and Local Government 
(DCLG) to finalise the submission documents so that the Parliamentary Order can be drafted.  
It is anticipated that a draft Order will be available in late summer and the Secretary of State 
will require written consent from each Council to confirm the Order can be laid.  It is likely 
that the Combined Authority will be formally established early next year.   
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Progress has also been made in developing devolution proposals which include measures on 
growth, productivity, skills, and transport.  Work is underway with government departments 
to progress these proposals further.   

 

The first shadow Combined Authority meeting is on 11 July 2016.  An early priority for the 
Combined Authority will be to develop and agree a Lancashire Plan which will set out a clear 
vision for Lancashire and a Delivery Plan to achieve ambitions which will benefit Lancashire 
residents and businesses.  

 

The message from Government has been clear; if we are to benefit from available funding and 
programmes councils must work collaboratively.  The Combined Authority will provide the 
mechanism to do this. 

 

iv) Preston Cultural Framework Board is made up of 9 strategic cultural partners: Preston City 
Council (PCC), Lancashire County Council (LCC), Business Improvement District (BID), 
University of Central Lancashire (UCLan), Marketing Lancashire, Preston Creative Partnership 
(PCP), Guild Hall, Creative Lancashire and Curious Minds.  The Board’s vision and purpose is to 
establish Preston as a major centre for culture in the North West, with a thriving creative 
sector, where everyone has opportunities to inspire and be inspired to participate in arts and 
heritage.  The Board has been meeting quarterly throughout 2015/16 with administrative 
support provided by Preston City Council.  

 

v) Service Improvement Board (SIB) was established in 2015 to provide strategic leadership, 
governance and direction in terms of delivering the Council’s service improvement 
programme.  The Board brings together the Contact Centre, ICT services, Web team and 
specific back office services with the sole remit of improving customer service and delivering 
efficiencies.  

 

SIB oversees a number of projects running in parallel including Virtual Desktop Infrastructure 
(VDI), Interactive Voice Response (IVR) and the LGA Digital Project “My Preston”. 

 

vi) Innovation and Delivery Group (IDG). A key group of officers (formally known as middle 
managers) have formed as the new IDG.  The group will act as a catalyst for creativity and 
innovation and will influence the strategic decision making process by providing clear and 
evidence based feedback to Senior Managers and Elected Members leading change and 
innovation.   
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Review of Effectiveness during 2015/16 
Preston City Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the 
effectiveness of its governance framework including the system of internal control. The review of 
effectiveness is informed by the following sources of assurance:- 

A fuller description of each is provided below:- 

Assurance from: Assurance 
Received 

Comment 

Management – Directors  Directors have each completed a Statement of Assurance 
stating they acknowledge their responsibility for internal 
control, risk management, the prevention and detection 
of fraud and corruption and that they are satisfied these 
risks are being managed and controls are effective.    
 
Following a significant one-off payment of funds made to 
the wrong recipient, which appeared to be the result of a 
systems error, amendments to the system application 
have been made by the supplier. Management have 
introduced additional controls and existing controls have 
been strengthened/reintroduced to prevent any 
reoccurrence.  

Management – Senior Officers  Senior Officers have completed their review of 
governance arrangements within their areas of operation 
and have signed and submitted their Governance 
Assurance Reviews in respect of 2015/16. 
 

Management – Key Officers 
 Section 151 Officer 
 Monitoring Officer 
 Head of Human Resources 
 Emergency Planning Officer 
 Chief Internal Auditor 
 Governance Officer 

 

 As part of the Governance Assurance Review process, 
these Officers have provided additional assurance on 
major risks within their areas of responsibility. 
 

Review of Internal Audit  Internal Audit has completed a self-assessment against 
the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) which 
has been challenged by the Corporate Governance Group 
and reported to Audit Committee.  The results show a 
continued level of overall compliance. 
 

Audit Committee / Standards 
Committee 

 Audit Committee has completed a self-assessment 
checklist and is satisfied it remains an effective 
Committee.  In addition, the Committee has received 
assurance from Directors regarding the effective 
management of a number of the corporate risks. 
 

Standards Committee produces an Annual Report setting 
out the work of the Committee, the training provided and 
the number of complaints that have been addressed.  
Two Register of Interest Forms are reviewed at every 
meeting to ensure they are accurate and up-to-date.  
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Advice is provided prior to every Council meeting on 
standards issues.  The Committee has also undergone an 
open recruitment exercise and has appointed two co-
opted Parish Council representatives and three 
Independent Persons to the Committee.  New Members 
will all receive appropriate training. 
 

Corporate Governance / Risk 
Management 

 Internal Audit review of the Corporate Governance and 
Risk Management Frameworks supports a substantial 
level of assurance and reports that the Council continues 
to have an effective framework of governance in place.  
 

Head of Internal Audit Opinion  The overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s 
control environment continues to be of a good standard. 
 

Health & Safety  
 

Further to the transfer of staff into the Town Hall, fire 
evacuation procedures have been reviewed and a recent 
test confirmed their effectiveness. 
 

The Health and Safety Section continues to monitor both 
equipment vibration and noise levels in key areas of the 
Council’s activities, helping to ensure that daily exposure 
levels are not exceeded. 
 
 

An audit of the leisure centres, being one of the highest 
risk areas in the Council, found no major issues, 
demonstrating a clear commitment to health and safety 
by management.  
 

Safety at public events is a major part of the team’s 
workload. The Council is part of the multi-agency Event 
Safety Advisory Group and ensures that all relevant 
standards are adhered to. 
The accident rate within the Council has risen from 0.28 
to 0.5.  However this is still well below the target set for 
the year and represents only a small number of 
occurrences, all of which were reported to the Health and 
Safety Executive within time.   
 

Counter Fraud  At the beginning of June 2015, the Council set up a new 
shared Corporate Fraud Team.  The partnership is 
between Preston City Council, Lancaster City Council and 
Fylde Borough Council.  The team has initially focused on 
Revenues and Council Tax Support fraud and acts as 
single point of contact for the Department of Work and 
Pensions (DWP) investigators and associated work. 
 

From 1 April 2015 to 31 May 2015, the team secured 
three cautions, undertook two prosecutions and 
identified over-payments of £150,322.86.  From 1 June 
2015 to 31 March 2016 the new team secured twelve 
cautions, nine administrative penalties with a value of 
£3,706.14 and identified over-payments of £78,871.09.  
The team also recovered one Community Gateway 
Association property, which can now be re-let.  
In January 2016, Audit Committee received an updated 
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Action Plan showing the Council’s position against the 
CIPFA Code of Practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud and 
Corruption.  Having considered all the principles, the 
Committee was satisfied that the Council had adopted a 
response that was appropriate for its fraud and 
corruption risks and showed a commitment to maintain 
its vigilance to tackle fraud. 
  

External Audit  An unqualified opinion on the Council’s accounts together 
with an unqualified conclusion on the Council’s 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of resources. 
 

Partnerships  Reports on the Council’s key partnerships are made to the 
relevant Executive Member on a regular basis and to 
Cabinet when required.  A reporting cycle for each 
partnership is now also in place for extended CMT. 
 

Business Continuity (BC)  Both the Corporate Business Continuity Plan and Policy 
have been updated to reflect changes to the 
management structure and accommodation changes. In 
addition, the Terms of Reference of the Business 
Continuity Recovery Group have been reviewed and 
updated.  
 

All the individual BC Plans have been updated and copies 
placed on the Council’s intranet (Cityspace). 
The Council’s Disaster Recovery Plan involves using a 
second site to recover ICT systems and this has now 
moved to Harbour House on Preston Docks.  There is an 
action plan to test recovery of various software systems 
used by the Council throughout 2016/17. 
  

Information Management  The number of Freedom of Information (FOI) requests 
received in 2015 was 565 which is a decrease from the 
638 received in the previous year.  The Council has 20 
working days to respond to a request under FOI and the 
deadline was complied within 86.5% of cases.  The 
Information Commissioner has issued no Decision Notices 
in 2015/16 in relation to FOI requests.  One complaint 
was made to the ICO following a refusal to disclose 
information on the ground of costs.  Following the 
intervention of the Information Commissioner a 
compromise was reached with the complainant. 
 

The Council has also processed 7 subject access requests 
made under the Data Protection Act 1998. 
 

During the year the Council has had 3 data breaches. In 
each case a review has been undertaken and appropriate 
action taken.  None of the breaches were serious enough 
to warrant reporting the breaches to the Information 
Commissioner. 
 

Policies and procedures relating to Information 
Governance and Data Protection have been updated and 
communicated to employees electronically.  There is a 
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requirement that employees acknowledge the policies 
and procedures that they have been read and 
understood.  
 

Information Communication 
Technology (ICT) 

 The Council has a mature and robust ICT infrastructure as 
a result of continuing upgrades throughout the year and 
demonstrating good practice.  The Council still remains 
fully compliant to connect to the Public Services Network 
(PSN) and has recently undergone an annual health check 
and undertaken both internal and external penetration 
tests.  All were successful and the consultant reported “it 
was evident that a great deal of work and time has been 
spent configuring and securing the network. From a stand 
point of patch management the network is well above 
average.” 
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Key Areas for Improvement 

Building on the improvements in 2015/16 the Council has identified the following areas where it 
wishes to see stepped improvements in 2016/17:- 

 

Key Improvement Areas for 2016/17 

Peer Review Action Plan 
Corporate Management Team (CMT) formulated an action plan following the outcome of the LGA Peer 
Review undertaken during February 2016. Both Members and Officers will work together during 2016/17 
implementing the recommended actions. 
 

Planning Action Plan 
Following the outcome of the Peer Review a number of recommended actions have been incorporated 
into an updated plan and subsequently agreed by the cross party planning working group.  During 
2016/17 the Planning Service and the cross party group will continue to work together to ensure that the 
actions are implemented. 
 

Virtual Desktop Infrastructure (VDI) 
VDI is a key project in the current ICT Strategy.   Virtualisation will be a more efficient method for 
managing the Council’s desktops.  It will increase operational flexibility and scalability and improve 
responsiveness to changing business requirements.  As everything is controlled centrally the governance 
of desktops will be significantly improved. The business case and funding have already been approved by 
Members. The project is underway with a timeframe to complete in the next 18 months. 
 

Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity testing 
Information is increasingly being recognised as the most important strategic resource that any 
organisation has to manage.  The ICT infrastructure supporting the delivery of ICT services has become 
increasingly complex and all activity is susceptible to disruption from both internal and external events.  
ICT continuity management ensures that the required information, communications technology and 
services are resilient, they need to be recovered to predetermined levels within timescales agreed with 
management and support the overall business continuity management process of the Council.  
 
As the Council has moved its Disaster Recovery (DR) site in recent months and reconfigured the setup, it 
is very important that all critical corporate and departmental applications are rigorously tested to ensure 
the above requirements can be met.  A schedule of application testing is now being developed between 
ICT Services and key users to ensure compliance.  
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Conclusion 

On the basis of the work carried out, which has been reviewed by the Audit Committee, we are 
satisfied that the Governance Framework is effective and continues to be regarded as fit for 
purpose.  We propose over the coming year to take steps to address the above matters to further 
enhance our governance arrangements.  We are satisfied that these steps will address the need 
for improvements that were identified in our review of the effectiveness and will monitor their 
implementation and operation as part of our next annual review.  We recognise that over the next 
few years whilst implementing the next three years savings plan both Members and Officers will 
need to be vigilant to ensure that our governance arrangements remain robust and sustainable. 

 

Signed: 
 

 

………………………………………………….    ……………………………………………….. 

Leader of the Council     Chief Executive 

 

 

         

…………………………………………    ……………………………………….. 

Monitoring Officer    Section 151 Officer 
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Glossary of Terms 

 
 

This Glossary of Terms is designed to aid interpretation of the Council’s Statement of Accounts. 
 
Accounting Policies 
 
The rules and practices adopted that determine how transactions and other events are reflected in 
financial statements.   
 
Accruals 
 
The concept is that income is recorded when it is earned rather than when it is received and expenses are 
recorded when goods or services are received rather than when the payment is made.  
 
Accumulated Absences Account 
 
The Accumulated Absences Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on the General 
Fund from accruing for compensated absences earned but not taken in the year, e.g. annual leave 
entitlement carried forward at 31st March. 
 
Actuarial Gains and Losses Remeasurement of Net Defined Benefit Liability 
 
Actuaries assess financial and non-financial information provided by the Council to project levels of future 
pension fund requirements.  Changes in actuarial deficits or surpluses can arise leading to a loss or gain 
because: 
 

 events have not coincided with the actuarial assumptions made for the last valuation; and 
 the actuarial assumptions have changed. 

 
Actuary 
 
An actuary is an expert on pension scheme assets and liabilities. The Local Government Pension Scheme 
Actuary reassesses the rate of employer contributions to the pension fund every three years. 
 
Agency Services 
 
These are services that are performed by another Authority or public body, where the principal (the 
Authority responsible for the service) reimburses the agent (the Authority carrying out the work) for the 
costs of the work. 
 
Amortised Costs (using effective interest rate method) 
 
The amortised cost using the effective interest rate method applies to both financial liabilities and assets 
carried at amortised cost. It is a method of determining the Balance Sheet carrying amount and periodic 
charges or credits to the Income and Expenditure Account of a financial instrument from the expected 
cash flows.  
 
Appointed Auditors 
 
From 1 April 2015 the appointment of External Auditors to Local Authorities is undertaken by Public Sector 
Audit Appointments Limited (PSAA), an independent company limited by guarantee and incorporated by 
the Local Government Association in August 2014. The role was previously undertaken by The Audit 
Commission. The Council’s appointed audit is Grant Thornton. 
 
Authorised Limit  
 
This represents the legislative limit on the Council’s external debt under the Local Government Act 2003. 
 
Balances 
 
The total level of funds the Council has accumulated over the years, available to support revenue 
expenditure within the year (also known as reserves). 
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Bequest and Trust Funds 
 
Funds administered by the Council on behalf of charitable organisations and/or specific organisations. 
 
Budget 
 
A statement of the Council’s spending plans for revenue and capital expenditure over a specified period of 
time. 
 
Business Improvement District (BID) 
 
BIDs are provided for under Part 4 of the Local Government Act 2003 (England & Wales) whereby a levy 
is collected from Business Ratepayers to provide agreed additional services.  
 
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 
 
CIL is a planning charge available to Local Authorities for new types of development in their areas. 
 
 
Capital Expenditure 
 
Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of a non-current asset e.g. property, plant and 
equipment that have a long term value to the Council. 
 
 
Cash Equivalents 
 
Cash Equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts 
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 
 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) 
 
The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) is the leading accountancy body for 
the public sector.  The statement of accounts is prepared in accordance with the code of practice 
published by CIPFA. 
 
Collection Fund 
 
The Collection Fund is a separate statutory fund which Billing Authorities have to maintain. It shows the 
transactions in relation to collection from taxpayers of National Non-Domestic Rates and the Council Tax, 
and illustrates the way in which these have been distributed to Precepting Authorities and the General 
Fund.  
 
Community Assets 
 
A class of asset within property, plant and equipment, that the Local Authority intends to hold in perpetuity, 
that have no determinable useful life and that may have restrictions on their disposal. Examples of 
community assets are parks and historic buildings. 
 
 
Contingency 
 
This is money set aside in the budget to meet the cost of unforeseen items of expenditure, or shortfalls in 
income.   
 
Council Tax 
 
This is a banded property tax which is levied on domestic properties throughout the country.  The banding 
is based on estimated property values as at 1 April 1991.  The level of tax is set annually by each Local 
Authority for the properties in its area. 
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Council Tax Requirement 
 
This is the estimated revenue expenditure on General Fund services that need to be financed from the 
Council Tax after deducting income from fees and charges, certain specific grants and any funding from 
reserves. 
 
Council Tax Support Scheme 
 
This is the assistance provided by Billing Authorities to households on low incomes to help them pay their 
Council Tax bill. This scheme replaced Council Tax benefit in April 2013 and is a locally based scheme. 
 
Creditors 
 
Amounts owed by the Council for work done, services rendered or goods received for which payment has 
not been made by the Balance Sheet date. 
 
Current Service Cost (Pensions) 
 
The increase in the pension liabilities as a result of one year of service earned. 
 
Curtailments 
 
Curtailments are normally the result of increased benefits paid in the event of pension fund members 
retiring early during the year as a result of redundancy or efficiency retirements. 
 
Debtors 
 
Amounts owed to the Council for work carried out, services rendered or goods provided by the Council for 
which income has not been received by the Balance Sheet date. 
 
Defined Benefit Scheme  
 
A pension or other retirement benefits scheme other than a defined contribution scheme, where the 
scheme rules define the benefits independently of the contributions payable, and the benefits are not 
directly related to the investments of the scheme. 
 
Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) 
 
A Department of Central Government with an overriding responsibility for determining the allocation of 
general resources to Local Authorities. 
 
Depreciation 
 
This is the measure of the wearing out, consumption, or other reduction in the useful economic life of a 
property, plant and equipment, whether arising from use, passage of time or obsolescence through 
technological or other change. 
 
Direct Revenue Financing 
 
Resources provided from an Authority’s revenue budget to finance the cost of capital projects. 
 
Discretionary Benefits (Pensions) 
 
These are unfunded employers’ pension liabilities.  This means that they are not a liability of the Local 
Government Pension Scheme, and are instead met by the employer out of its own financial resources.  
The most common form of discretionary benefits is added years benefits which have been awarded to 
current pensioners when they first retired. 
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Events after the Balance Sheet Date 
 
These are events, favorable or adverse, that occur between the Balance Sheet date and the date when 
the Statement of Accounts are authorised for issue. 
 
Expected Rate of Return on Pensions Assets 
 
The expected rate of return is the assumed return the assets of the Fund will achieve over the entire life of 
the related obligation based on market expectations at the beginning of the period. 
 
External Audit 
 
The independent examination of the activities and accounts of Local Authorities to ensure the accounts 
have been prepared in accordance with legislative requirements and proper practices and to ensure the 
Council has made proper arrangements to secure value for money in its use of resources. 
 
Finance Lease 
 
This is a lease that transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of a non-current asset 
to the lessee.   
 
Financial Instruments  
 
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability 
or equity instrument of another. The term ‘financial instrument’ covers both financial assets and financial 
liabilities and includes both the most straightforward financial assets and liabilities such as trade 
receivables (debtors) and trade payables (creditors) and complex ones such as derivatives and embedded 
derivatives.  
 
General Fund 
 
This is the main revenue account of the Council covering day to day spending on services other than the 
provision of housing. Credited to the fund are charges made by the Council, specific Government and 
other grants and receipts from the Collection Fund. 
 
Heritage Assets 
 
These assets are held due to their historical, artistic, scientific, technological, geophysical or 
environmental qualities. They are intended to be preserved in trust for future generations, which are held 
and maintained for its contribution to knowledge and culture. 
 
Housing Benefit 
 
This is financial help to persons on low income to meet, in whole or part, their rent. Benefit is paid by Local 
Councils but Central Government refunds part of the cost of these benefits and of the running costs of the 
services to Local Councils.   
 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)   
 
Defined Accounting Standards that must be applied by all reporting organisations to their financial 
statements, in order to provide a true and fair view of the organisation’s financial position, and enable a 
direct comparison with financial statements of the other organisations. 
 
Impairment 
 
This is a reduction in the value of a non-current asset below its carrying amount on the Balance Sheet. 
Examples of factors which may cause such a reduction in value include general price decreases, a 
significant decline in a non-current assets market value and evidence of obsolescence or physical damage 
to the asset. 
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Infrastructure Assets 
 
A category of property, plant and equipment that are inalienable, expenditure on which is recoverable only 
by continued use of the asset created. Examples of infrastructure assets are highways and footpaths. 
 
Interest Cost (Pensions)  
 
For a defined benefit scheme, the expected increase during the period in the present value of the scheme 
liabilities because the benefits are one period closer to settlement. 
.  
Lender Option Borrower Option (LOBO)  
 
A LOBO is a type of loan instrument. The borrower borrows a principal sum for the duration of the loan 
period (typically 50 years), initially at a fixed interest rate. Periodically (typically every six months to 3 
years), the lender has the ability to alter the interest rate. Should the lender make this offer, the borrower 
then has the option to continue with the instrument at the new rate or alternatively to terminate the 
agreement and pay back the principal sum with no other penalty. 
 
Long Term Investments (Non Pension Fund) 
 
A long-term investment is an investment that is intended to be held for use on a continuing basis in the 
activities of the Council. Investments are so classified only where an intention to hold the investment for 
the long term can clearly be demonstrated or where there are restrictions as to the investor’s ability to 
dispose of the investment.  
 
Materiality 
 
The concept that any omission from or inaccuracy in the statement of accounts should not be so large as 
to affect the understanding of those statements by the reader. 
 
Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 
 
This is a financial planning document that sets out the future years financial forecasts for the Council. It 
considers local and national policy influences and projects their impact on the general fund revenue 
budget and capital programme. 
 
Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) 
 
The minimum amount (as laid down in Statute) that the Council must charge to the accounts each year in 
order to meet the costs of repaying amounts borrowed. 
 
National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR) 
 
NNDR is a tax levied on business properties and sometimes known as Business Rates.  This tax is set 
nationally by the Government.  Sums based on rateable values are collected by billing authorities and 
shared between major preceptors (10%), central Government (50%) and themselves (40%). 
 
Net Book Value 
 
The amount at which non-current assets are included in the Balance Sheet, i.e. their historical cost or 
current value less the cumulative amount provided for depreciation. 
 
Net Current Replacement Cost 
 
This is the cost of replacing or recreating the particular asset in its existing condition and in its existing 
use, i.e. the cost of its replacement or of the nearest equivalent asset, adjusted to reflect the current 
condition of the existing asset. 
 
Net Realisable Value 
 
The open market value of an asset in its existing use (or open market value in the case of non-operational 
assets), less the expenses to be incurred in realising the asset. 
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Non-current Assets  
 
Assets that yield benefits to the Authority and the services it provides for a period of more than one year. 
 
Non-distributable Costs 
 
These are costs that cannot be specifically applied to a service or services and are held centrally, 
comprising certain pension costs and the costs of unused shares of IT facilities and other assets. 
 
Operating Leases 
 
An operating lease is a lease other than a finance lease. This is a method of financing assets which allows 
the Council to use, but not own an asset. The asset remains the property of the lessor and the lease costs 
are revenue expenditure to the Council. 
 
Precept 
 
This is a charge levied by one Authority which is collected on its behalf by another by adding the precept 
to its own Council Tax and paying over the appropriate cash collected. 
 
Premiums 
 
These are discounts that have arisen following the early redemption of long term debt, which are written 
down over the lifetime of replacement loans where applicable. 
 
Principal 
 
An amount of money borrowed or invested, not including interest charges. 
 
Prior Year Adjustments 
 
Prior year adjustments are material adjustments, arising from changes in accounting policies or from the 
correction of fundamental errors.  A fundamental error is one that is of such significance as to destroy the 
validity of the financial statements.  They do not include normal recurring corrections or adjustments of 
accounting estimates made in prior years. 
 
Projected Unit Method 
 
An accrued benefits valuation method in which the pension scheme liabilities make allowance for 
projected earnings. An accrued benefits valuation method is a valuation method in which the scheme 
liabilities at the valuation date relate to: 
 the benefits for pensioners and deferred pensioners (i.e. individuals who have ceased to be active 

members but are entitled to benefits payable at a later date) and their dependants, allowing where 
appropriate for future increases, and 

 the accrued benefits for members in service on the valuation date.  The accrued benefits are the 
benefits for service up to a given point in time, whether vested rights or not. 

 
Property / Plant & Equipment  
 
Assets that are held and occupied, used or consumed by the Council in the direct delivery of those 
services for which it has either a statutory or discretionary responsibility.  Examples include council 
dwellings, other land and buildings, vehicles, plant, equipment, infrastructure assets and community 
assets. 
 
Provision  
 
These are monies set aside for liabilities or losses which are likely or certain to be incurred but the exact 
amount and dates are not currently known. 
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Prudence 
 
Prudence is the inclusion of caution in the exercise of the judgements needed in making the estimates 
required under conditions of uncertainty, such that assets or income are not overstated and liabilities or 
expenses are not understated 
 
Prudential Code for Capital Finance 
 
The basic principle of the Code is that Local Authorities will be free to invest in capital expenditure so long 
as their capital spending plans are affordable, prudent and sustainable.  The Code sets out indicators that 
the Authority must use and factors that they must take into account to demonstrate that they have fulfilled 
this objective. 
 
Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) 
 
PWLB is a government agency which provides longer-term loans to Local Authorities. 
 
Related Parties 
 
Two or more parties are related parties when at any time during the financial period: 
 
 one party has direct or indirect control of the other party; or 
 the parties are subject to common control from the same source; or 
 one party has influence over the financial and operational policies of the other party to an extent that 

the other party might be inhibited from pursuing at all times its own separate interest; or 
 the parties, in entering a transaction, are subject to influence from the same source to such an extent 

that one of the parties to the transaction has subordinated its own separate interests.  
 
Related Party Transactions 
 
A related party transaction is the transfer of assets or liabilities or the performance of services by, to or for 
a related party irrespective of whether a charge is made.   
 
Reporting Standards 
 
The Code of Practice prescribes the accounting treatment and disclosures for all normal transactions of a 
Local Authority. It is based on International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), International Standards 
(IAS) and International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) plus UK Generally Accepted 
Accounting Practice (GAAP) and Financial Reporting Standards (FRS). 
 
Reserves 
 
Amounts set aside in one year’s accounts which can be spent in later years.  Reserves are often 
earmarked for specific purposes, including the financing of future capital expenditure, replacement or 
renewals and the funding of future defined Council initiatives.   
 
Residual Value 
 
This is the estimated amount which can be obtained from selling an asset after deducting disposal costs. 
 
Revaluation Reserve 
 
The Reserve records the accumulated gains on the non-current assets held by the Council arising from 
increases in value as a result of inflation or other factors (to the extent that theses gains have not been 
consumed by subsequent downward movements in value).  
 
Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute (REFCUS) 
 
Expenditure that does not result in creation of a non-current asset, but can be classified as capital for 
funding purposes. Such expenditure is charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
and an adjustment made in the Movement in Reserves Statement to enable the expenditure to be funded 
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from capital resources rather than impact on the Council Tax. Examples include works on property owned 
by other parties, renovation grants and capital grants to other organisations. 
 
Revenue Support Grant (RSG) 
 
This is a general grant received from Central Government to contribute towards the cost of providing 
services.  
 
Scheme Liabilities (Pensions) 
 
The liabilities of a defined benefit pension scheme for outgoings due after the valuation date. Scheme 
liabilities measured using the projected unit method, reflect the benefits that the employer is committed to 
provide for service up to the valuation date. 
 
Service Reporting Code of Practice (SeRCOP) 
 
A code of practice prepared to provide accounting guidance on financial reporting to stakeholders which is 
designed to enhance the comparability of Local Authority financial information.  The code represents 
proper accounting practice for the purpose of best value reporting.  
 
Treasury Management 
 
This is the process by which the Council controls its cash flow and its borrowing and lending activities. 
 
Treasury Management Strategy  
 
A strategy prepared with regard to legislative and CIPFA requirements setting out the framework for 
treasury management activity for the Council. 
 
Unusable Reserves 
 
Unusable Reserves are not available to use to support services and are in the main used to hold 
unrealised gains and losses. 
 
Usable Reserves 
 
Usable Reserves can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation. 
 
Useful Life 
 
The period over which the Local Authority will derive benefits from the use of an asset. 
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